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Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The statements contained in this report omFt-K that are not purely historical are forwaodiing statements within the meaning of
applicable securities laws. Forward-looking statetménclude statements regarding our “expectatidasticipation,” “intentions,” “beliefs,”
or “strategies” regarding the future. Forward-lagakistatements relating to our future economic parémce, plans and objectives for future
operations, and projections of revenue and othanfiial items that are based on our beliefs asagalssumptions made by and information
currently available to us. Actual results couldeatifmaterially from those currently anticipatedsagsult of a number of factors, including

those discussed in Item 1, “Business — Risk Fa¢tors
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PART |

Iltem 1. Business

Introduction

Our Company

We are the largest recreational boat dealtrdérinited States. Through 71 retail location8ledbama, Arizona, California, Colorado,
Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Maryland, Minnesotay&ta, New Jersey, North Carolina, Ohio, South @aaplTennessee, Texas, and Utah,
we sell new and used recreational boats, includiagsure boats (such as sport boats, sport cruggerg yachts, yachts, and mega-yachts),
and fishing boats, with a focus on premium bramdsach segment. We also sell related marine predmciuding engines, trailers, parts, and
accessories. In addition, we arrange related lwanding, insurance, and extended service contraside repair and maintenance services;
offer boat and yacht brokerage services; and, wéreadable, offer slip and storage accommodations.

We are the nation’s largest retailer of Seg, Baston Whaler, Meridian, and Hatteras recreatitwoats and yachts, all of which are
manufactured by Brunswick Corporation. Sales of Beunswick boats accounted for approximately 60%wfrevenue in fiscal 2005.
Brunswick is the worlds largest manufacturer of marine products and raamngines. We believe our sales represented irsgxtel 0% of al
Brunswick marine sales, including approximately 38R4s Sea Ray boat sales, during our 2005 figeal. Through operating subsidiaries,
we are a party to dealer agreements with Brunsadelering Sea Ray products and we are the exclusaker of Sea Ray boats in our
geographic markets.

We are the exclusive dealer for Italy-basedd®e Group for Ferretti Yachts, Pershing, Rivaagréamare, and Mochi Craft mega-yachts,
yachts, and other recreational boats for the Uriitiades, Canada, the Bahamas, and Mexico. We @sbheexclusive dealer for Bertram
the United States (excluding the Florida peninsmld certain portions of New England), Canada, hadBahamas.

We commenced operations as a result of theihar1998 acquisition of five previously indepemidescreational boat dealers. Since that
time, we have acquired 18 additional previoushejmehdent recreational boat dealers, two boat bagkeoperations, and one full-service
yacht repair operation. We capitalize on the exgreré and success of the acquired companies in réstablish a new national standart
customer service and responsiveness in the higigyrfented retail boating industry. As a resultwf @mphasis on premium brand boats, our
average selling price for a new fiberglass bodisical 2005 was approximately $110,000, an incredd2% from 2004, compared with the
industry average selling price of approximately $88, versus $30,000 in the prior year, based dusiny data published by the National
Marine Manufacturers Association. Our stores, whipbrated at least 12 months, averaged approxiyriél.4 million in annual sales in
fiscal 2005. We consider a store to be one or meteel locations that are adjacent or operate asemtity. For the fiscal year ended Septer
30, 2005, we had revenue of $947.3 million, opagaincome of $64.5 million, and net income of $3&ion. Our same-store sales
increased approximately 23% in fiscal 2005 andavasaged approximately 9% for the last five yeimduding a decline of 9% in fiscal
2001.

We adopt the best practices developed by doanacquired companies as appropriate to entaurcability to attract more customers,
foster an overall enjoyable boating experience,&fat boat manufacturers stable and professiatallrdistribution and a broad geographic
presence. We believe that our full range of sessine-haggle sales approach, prime retail locatipresmium product offerings, extensive
facilities, strong management and team memberseamhasis on customer service and satisfactiondefud after a boat sale are
competitive advantages that enable us to be meponsive to the needs of existing and prospectigemers.

The U.S. recreational boating industry geregt@pproximately $33.0 billion in retail sales alendar 2004, including sales of new and
used boats; marine products, such as enginegrgadquipment, and accessories; and related expers] such as fuel, insurance, docking,
storage, and repairs. Retail sales of new and lisats, engines, trailers, and accessories accofortagproximately $25.9 billion of these
sales in 2004 based on industry data from the Natiblarine Manufacturers Association. The highbgimented retail boating industry
generally
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consists of small dealers that operate in a simgleket and provide varying degrees of merchandigimafessional management, and custc
service. We believe that many small dealers adirfiit increasingly difficult to make the managém@nd capital commitments necessary to
achieve higher customer service levels and upggstems and facilities as required by boat manufarct and demanded by customers. We
also believe that many dealers lack an exit styateigtheir owners. We believe these factors cobote to our opportunity.

Strategy

Our goal is to enhance our position as thionatleading recreational boat dealer. Key elemeifitour operating and growth strategy
include the following:

. emphasizing customer satisfaction and loyaltgt®ating an overall enjoyable boating experienggriméng with a negotiation-free
purchase process, superior customer service, amligr facilities;

. implementing the¢*best practice” developed by us and our acquired dealers as apgt@inroughout our dealershij
. achieving efficiencies and synergies among ouratjmars to enhance internal growth and profitahi

. emphasizing employee training and developm

. offering additional products and services, inclgdihose involving higher profit margin

. pursuing strategic acquisitions to capitalizeruffte significant consolidation opportunities ie thighly fragmented recreational boat
dealer industry by acquiring additional dealers ssidted operations and improving their performaanee profitability through the
implementation of our operating strategi

. opening additional retail facilities in our exigfiand new territories
. expanding our Internet retail operations and mange
. promoting national brand name recognition and ttagiiMax connectior
. operating with a decentralized approach to theatjmral management of our dealerships;
. utilizing technology throughout operations, whiekilitates the interchange of information anda&mtes cross-selling opportunities
throughout our compan
Development of the Company; Expansion of Business

MarineMax was founded in January 1998. MariagMself, however, conducted no operations uhglacquisition of five independent
recreational boat dealers on March 1, 1998, andosmgpleted our initial public offering in June 19%8nce the initial acquisitions in
March 1998, we have acquired 18 additional reaveatiboat dealers, two boat brokerage operatiospae full-service yacht repair
operation. Each of our acquired dealers is comiits operations under the MarineMax name as dlywbwned operating subsidiary of our
company.

We continually attempt to expand our busiri®sproviding a full range of services, offering exsive and high-quality product lines,
maintaining prime retail locations, pursuing therMaMax Value Price sales approach, and emphasibmbighest level of customer service
and customer satisfaction.

We also evaluate opportunities to expand @erations by acquiring recreational boat dealeexfmand our geographic scope; expanding
our product lines; opening new retail locationshivitour existing territories; and providing new guats and services for our customers.

2
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Acquisitions of additional recreational boattkrs represent an important strategy in our @oahhance our position as the nation’s
leading retailer of recreational boats. The follogvtable sets forth information regarding the besses that we have acquired and their

geographic regions.

Acquired Companies

Acquisition Date

Geographic Region

Bassett Boat Company of Flori

Louis Del[Homme Marin

Gulfwind USA, Inc.

Gulfwind South, Inc

Harrison’s Boat Center, Inc. and Harrison’s Mar@enters of
Arizona, Inc.

Stovall Marine, Inc

Cochrar's Marine, Inc. and C & N Marine Corporati

Sea Ray of North Carolina, In

Brevard Boat Compan

Sea Ray of Las Veg:

Treasure Cove Marina, In

Woods & Oviatt, Inc

Boating World

Merit Marine, Inc.

Suburban Boatworks, In

Hansen Marine, Inc

Duce Marine, Inc

Clark's Landing, Inc. (selected New Jersey locationscpatations

Associated Marine Technologies, I

Gulfwind Marine Partners, In

Seaside Marine, Ini

Sundance Marine, In

Killinger Marine Center, Inc. and Killinger Marir@enter of
Alabama, Inc

Emarine International, Inc. and Steven Myers,

Imperial Marine

Port Jacksonville Marin

March 199
March 199!
March 199t
March 199!

March 199i
April 1998
July 199¢

July 199¢
September 19¢
September 19¢
September 19¢
October 199
February 199
March 199!
April 199¢
August 199
December 19¢
April 200C
January 20C
April 2002
July 200:

June 200

September 20(
October 200
June 200
June 200

Southeast Florid

Dallas and Houston, Tex
West Central, Florid
Southwest Florid:

Northern California and Arizon
Georgia

Minnesota

North and South Carolir
East Central Florid
Nevada

Northern Ohic
Southeast Florid

Dallas, Texa:

Southern New Jerse
Central New Jerse
Northeast Florid:

Utah

Northern New Jerse
Southeast Florid

West Floride

Southern Californi:
Colorado

Northwest Florida and Alaban
Southeast Florid

Baltimore, Marylanc
Northeast Florid:

Apart from acquisitions, we have opened 16 retail locations in existing territories, exclugithose opened on a temporary basis for a
specific purpose. We also monitor the performarfaauo retail locations and close retail locatiohattdo not meet our expectations. Based on
these factors, we have closed 7 retail locatiomsesMarch 1998, excluding those opened on a tempbeesis for a specific purpose.

As a part of our acquisition strategy, we freatly engage in discussions with various recreatiboat dealers regarding their potential
acquisition by us. In connection with these distrss we and each potential acquisition candidatba@nge confidential operational and
financial information, conduct due diligence indgesdy, and consider the structure, terms, and camditdf the potential acquisition. In certain
cases, the prospective acquisition candidate agids discuss a potential acquisition with arfyeotparty for a specific period of time,
grants us an option to purchase the prospectiierdies a designated price during a specific tiared agrees to take other actions designed to
enhance the possibility of the acquisition, suchraparing audited financial information and conivey its accounting system to the system
specified by us. Potential acquisition discussiveguently take place over a long period of timd avolve difficult business integration and
other issues, including in some cases, managernec¢ssion and related matters. As a result of thedether factors, a number of potential
acquisitions that from time to time appear likedyoccur do not result in binding legal agreements@e not consummated.
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In addition to acquiring recreational boatldessand opening new retail locations, we alsorasld product lines to expand our operations.
The following table sets forth various product 8rthat we have added to our existing locations:

Product Line Fiscal Year Geographic Regions
Boston Whale 1997 West Central Florida; Stuart, Florida; Dallas, T&
Hatteras Yachts 199¢ Florida (excluding the Florida panhandle) and istion rights for

products over 82 feet for North and South Ameriba,
Caribbean, and the Bahan

Boston Whale 199¢ Ohio

Boston Whale 200( North Palm Beach, Florid

Baja 2001 Houston, Texas and Las Vegas, Nev

Meridian Yachts 200z Florida, Georgia, North and South Carolina, Nevgdgr Ohio,
Minnesota, Texas, and Delaw:

Grady White 200z Houston, Texa

Hatteras Yacht 2002 Texas

Boston Whale 200¢ North and South Carolir

Century 200¢ North and South Carolir

Ferretti Yachts, Pershing, Riva, Apreamare, Mochi

Craft, and Custom Lin 200¢ United States, Canada, the Bahamas, and M«

Bertram 200¢ United States (excluding the Florida peninsula jpoidions of New
England), Canada, and the Bahai

Princecraft 200¢ California, Delaware, Georgia, Maryland, Minnesi®aw Jersey,
Ohio, and Texa

Baja 200t Tempe, Arizona, Colorado, Dallas, Texas, and |

Boston Whale 200t Houston and Dallas, Tex

Sea Ray 200t Wyoming

Tracker Marine 200t Las Vegas, Nevac

As we add a brand, we believe we are offesimgigration for our existing customer base orrfglia gap in our product offerings. As a
result, we do not believe that new product offesimgll compete with or cannibalize the businessegated from our other prominent brands.

We plan to continue to expand our businessutiin acquisitions in new geographical territoriemy store openings in existing territories,
and new product lines. In addition, we plan to ourg to expand other services, including conductised boat sales; offering yacht and boat
brokerage services; offering our customers thetald finance new or used boats; offering extenslexvice contracts; arranging insurance
coverage, including boat property, credit-life, ideat, disability, and casualty coverage; sellie@ted marine products, including engines,
trailers, parts, and accessories; providing maariea and repair services at our retail locationkeadrstand-alone service facilities, including
our full-service yacht repair facility in Southe&$prida; and expanding our ability to provide sdipd storage accommodations.

We maintain our executive offices at 18167.UH§hway 19 North, Suite 300, Clearwater, Flor88¥ 64, and our telephone number is
(727) 531-1700. We were incorporated in the sthf@ataware in January 1998. Unless the contextraftise requires, all references to
“MarineMax” mean MarineMax, Inc. prior to its acgition of five previously independent recreatiobaat dealers in March 1998 (including
their related real estate companies) and all ref&®to the “Company,” “our company,” “we,” “us fih“our” mean, as a combined compa
MarineMax, Inc. and the 18 recreational boat dsakevo boat brokerage operations, and one fulliseryacht repair operation acquired to

date (the “acquired dealers,” and together withbitekerage and repair operations, “operating sidr$és$” or the “acquired companies”).

Our website is located wivw.MarineMax.com Through our website, we make available free @irgh our annual report on Form 10-K,
our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our currenbrepon Form 8-K, our proxy statements, and anyratments to those reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
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Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These reportaaadable as soon as reasonably practicable aftezlectronically file those reports with
Securities and Exchange Commission. We also postiowebsite the charters of our Audit, Compensatamd Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committees; our Corporate Governanceeiues, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, artte ©f Ethics for the CEO and
Senior Financial Officers, and any amendments dvava thereto; and any other corporate governaratenals contemplated by SEC or

NYSE regulations. These documents are also availalprint to any stockholder requesting a copynflmur corporate secretary at
principal executive offices.
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BUSINESS

General

We are the largest recreational boat dealtrdérinited States. Through 71 retail location8ledbama, Arizona, California, Colorado,
Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Maryland, Minnesotayatil, New Jersey, North Carolina, Ohio, South @aaplTennessee, Texas, and Utah,
we sell new and used recreational boats, includiagsure boats (such as sport boats, sport cruggmrg yachts, and yachts), and fishing
boats, with a focus on premium brands in each sagridée also sell related marine products, includingines, trailers, parts, and accessc
In addition, we arrange related boat and yachnfiiray, insurance, and extended service contraaisjde repair and maintenance services;
offer boat and yacht brokerage services; and, wineaéable, slip and storage accommodations.

We are the nation’s largest retailer of Seg, Baston Whaler, Meridian, and Hatteras recreafitmoats and yachts. Sales of new Sea Ray,
Boston Whaler, Meridian, and Hatteras recreatitoals and yachts, each of which is manufactureBrbypswick Corporation, accounted for
approximately 60% of our revenue in fiscal 2005ui&wick is the world’s largest manufacturer of maproducts and marine engines. We
believe our sales represented in excess of 10% Bfunswick marine sales during our 2005 fiscahgeEach of our principal operating
subsidiaries is a party to a dealer agreementBritimswick covering Sea Ray products and is theusiet dealer of Sea Ray boats in its
geographic market. We also have the right to sattédas Yachts throughout the state of Floridal(elg the Florida panhandle) and the
state of Texas, as well as the distribution rigbtdHatteras products over 82 feet for North andtB@&merica, the Caribbean, and the
Bahamas. We have distribution rights for Meridiaachits in most of our geographic markets, excludirigona, California, Colorado,

Nevada, and Utah. We are the exclusive dealetdty-based Ferretti Group for Ferretti Yachts, Pershitiga, Apreamare, and Mochi Craft
megayachts, yachts, and other recreational boats flthited States, Canada, the Bahamas, and Mexie@l¥d are the exclusive dealer
Bertram in the United States (excluding the Flopeainsula and certain portions of New Englandpatia, and the Bahamas. We believe the
brands we are adding offer a migration for our mgscustomer base or fill a void in our produdeoihgs and accordingly will not compete
with or cannibalize the business generated fronother prominent brands.

U.S. Recreational Boating Industry

The total U.S. recreational boating industenerated approximately $33.0 billion in retail satecalendar 2004, including retail sales of
new and used recreational boats; marine produatk, & engines, trailers, parts, and accessoridgetated boating expenditures, such as
fuel, insurance, docking, storage, and repairsaiRedles of new boats, engines, trailers, andssora&s accounted for approximately
$25.9 billion of such sales in 2004. Retail redmee! boating sales were $17.9 billion in the [B880s, but declined to a low of $10.3 billion
in 1992 based on industry data published by théoNak Marine Manufacturers Association. We beliévis decline was attributed to several
factors, including a recession, the Gulf War, draimposition throughout 1991 and 1992 of a luxasyon boats sold at prices in excess of
$100,000. The luxury tax was repealed in 1993 wiitth, the exception of 1998 and 2003, retail redoeet! boating sales have increased every
year since

The recreational boat retail market remaighlyi fragmented with little consolidation havingcocred to date and consists of numerous
boat retailers, most of which are small companigseal by individuals that operate in a single madgat provide varying degrees of
merchandising, professional management, and custeeneéice. We believe that many boat retailerssa@untering increased pressure from
boat manufacturers to improve their levels of sendnd systems, increased competition from larggomal retailers in certain product lines,
and, in certain cases, business succession issues.

Strategy
Our goal is to enhance our position as thnatleading recreational boat dealer. Key elemefiour strategy include the following:
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Emphasizing Customer Satisfaction and Loyallye seek to achieve a high level of customerfsation and establish longrm custome
loyalty by creating an overall enjoyable boatingesience beginning with a negotiation-free purchaseess. We further enhance and
simplify the purchase process by helping to arrdirgancing and insurance at our retail locationthwbmpetitive terms and streamlined
turnaround. We offer the customer a thorough inewatientation of boat operations where availabdewell as ongoing boat safety,
maintenance, and use seminars and demonstratiotissfoustomer’s entire family. We also continue customer service after the sale by
leading and sponsoring MarineM&etawaysgroup boating trips to various destinations, rendes gatherings, and on-the-water organized
events to provide our customers with pre-arranggzbdunities to enjoy the pleasures of the bodtfegtyle. We also endeavor to provide
superior maintenance and repair services, ofteutfir mobile service at the customer’s wet slip witll extended service department hours
and emergency service availability, that minimize bhassles of boat maintenance.

Emphasizing Best Practice¥Ve emphasize the “best practices” developed lndsour acquired dealers as appropriate throughout
locations. As an example, we follow a no-hagglesalpproach at each of our dealerships. Under #rendMax Value-Price approach, we
sell our boats at posted prices, generally reptesea discount from the manufacturer's suggestegilrprice, thereby eliminating the
anxieties of price negotiations that occur in musdt purchases. In addition, we adopt, where beiagfthe best practices developed by us
our acquired dealers in terms of location, dedmyqut, product purchases, maintenance and repaiices (including extended service hours
and mobile or dockside services), product mix, @y training, and customer education and services.

Achieving Operating Efficiencies and Synergi¥ge strive to increase the operating efficiencieand achieve certain synergies among
our dealerships in order to enhance internal gramth profitability. We centralize various aspedtsertain administrative functions at the
corporate level, such as accounting, finance, arsee coverage, employee benefits, marketing, gtcapdanning, legal support, purchasing
and distribution, and management information systebentralization of these functions reduces dafilie expenses and permits the
dealerships to benefit from a level of scale anuketise that would otherwise be unavailable to esiership individually. We also seek to
realize cost savings from reduced inventory cagyiosts as a result of purchasing boat inventarea national level and directing boats to
dealership locations that can more readily selhsa@ats; lower financing costs through our creditrses; and volume purchase discounts and
rebates for certain marine products, supplies,aawertising. The ability of our retail locationsdffer the complementary services of our
other retail locations, such as offering custom&uesion opportunities, providing maintenance agphir services at the customer’s boat
location, and giving access to a larger inventorgreases the competitiveness of each retail logaBy centralizing these types of activities,
our store managers have more time to focus onuswmer and the development of their teams.

Emphasizing Employee Training and Developméitt promote continued internal growth, we devaetiestantial efforts to train our
employees to understand our core retail philosaphidich focus on making the purchase of a boattarslibsequent use as hassle-free and
enjoyable as possible. Through our MarineMax Ursiitgr or MMU, we teach our retail philosophies tasting and new employees at vari
locations and online, through MMU-online. MMU isreodularized and instructor-led educational progtiaat focuses on our retailing
philosophies and provides instruction on such ma#s the sales process, customer service, F&uatiog, leadership, and human
resources.

Offering Additional Products and Services, Inclglifthose Involving Higher Profit Marging/e plan to continue to offer additional
product lines and services throughout our dealpssbii, when appropriate, in selected dealershigsai® offering throughout our dealerships
product lines that previously have been offered anlcertain of our locations. We also may obtaiditonal product lines through the
acquisition of distribution rights directly from mafacturers and the acquisition of dealerships digtribution rights. We have increased our
used boat sales and yacht brokerage services theumcreased emphasis on these activities, catipeefforts among our dealerships, and
the use of the Internet. We also plan to contilougrow our financing and insurance, parts and aceces, service and boat storage busine
to better serve our customers and thereby increaseue and improve profitability of these highargin businesses.
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Pursuing Strategic AcquisitiondNe capitalize upon the significant consolidatigportunities available in the highly fragmented
recreational boat dealer industry by acquiring petelent dealers and improving their performancepaofitability through the
implementation of our operating strategies. Thenpriy acquisition focus is on well-established, héyid recreational boat dealers in
geographic markets not currently served by usjqaatly geographic markets with strong boating dgnaphics, such as areas within the
coastal states and the Great Lakes region. Weradgoseek to acquire boat dealers that, while lociatattractive geographic markets, have
not been able to realize favorable market shapgaditability and that can benefit substantiallgrr our systems and operating strategies. We
may expand our range of product lines, servicerioffis, and market penetration by acquiring compattiat distribute recreational boat
product lines or boating-related services diffeffeotn those we currently offer. As a result of considerable industry experience and
relationships, we believe we are well positionedlntify and evaluate acquisition candidates asss their growth prospects, the qualit
their management teams, their local reputation witstomers, and the suitability of their locationg& believe we are regarded as an attra
acquiror by boat dealers because of (1) the hestbperformance and the experience and reputafionrananagement team within the
industry; (2) our decentralized operating strategyich generally enables the managers of an aafjdigaler to continue their involvement in
dealership operations; (3) the ability of managemaead employees of an acquired dealer to partieipabur growth and expansion through
potential stock ownership and career advancemearamities; and (4) the ability to offer liquiditp the owners of acquired dealers through
the receipt of common stock or cash. . We haverest@to an agreement regarding acquisitions wi¢hSea Ray Division of Brunswick.
Under the agreement, acquisitions of Sea Ray deafiirbe mutually agreed upon by us and Sea Raly rgiasonable efforts to be made to
include a balance of Sea Ray dealers that havedqweerssful and those that have not been. Theragreé@rovides that Sea Ray will not
unreasonably withhold its consent to any proposegigition of a Sea Ray dealer by us, subjectecctinditions set forth in the agreement
further described in “Business — Brunswick AgreeftrRalating to Acquisitions.”

Opening New FacilitiesWe intend to continue to establish additionaditdacilities in our existing and new territoriéd/e believe that
the demographics of our existing geographic targatosupport the opening of additional facilitiaad we have opened 16 new retail facilities,
excluding those opened on a temporary basis fpeaific purpose, since our formation in January8l9%e also plan to reach new customers
through various innovative retail formats developgdis, such as mall stores and floating retailifes. Our mall store concept is unique to
the boating industry and is designed to draw maffit, thereby providing exposure to boating floee honboating public as well as displayi
our new product offerings to boating enthusiasizating retail facilities place the sales facilityith a customer reception area and sales
offices, on or anchored to a dock in a marina sseladjacent boat slips to display our new and beats in areas of high boating activity. '
continually monitor the performance of our retaitdtions and close retail locations that do nottroaeexpectations or that were opened 1
specific purpose that is no longer relevant. SMeech 1998, we have closed 7 retail locations, wkiclg those opened on a temporary basis
for a specific purpose.

Utilization of the Internet Our web initiativeywww.MarineMax.com provides customers with the ability to learn mabeut our compar
and our products. Our website generates direcs said provides our stores with leads to potentisiamers for new and used boats and
brokerage services. We also plan to expand ouityatwl offer financing and parts and accessoriesanwebsite.

Promoting Brand Name Recognition and the Marinel@axnection We are promoting our brand name recognition lte &dvantage of
our status as the nation’s only coast-to-coastmaaetailer. This strategy also recognizes thatyneaisting and potential customers who
reside in Northern markets and vacation for subistgperiods in Southern markets will prefer to ghase and service their boats from the
same well-known company. We refer to this strategyhe “MarineMax Connection.” As a result, oumsige emphasizes the MarineMax
name at each of our locations, and we conduct matedvertising in various print and other media.

Operating with Decentralized Managemeit/e maintain a generally decentralized approathdmperational management of our
dealerships. The decentralized management apptakes advantage of the extensive experience of hoaaagers, enabling them to
implement policies and make decisions, includirgyappropriate product mix, based on the needsedbttal market. Local management
authority also fosters
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responsive customer service and promotes long-temmunity and customer relationships. In addittbe, centralization of certain
administrative functions at the corporate levelartes the ability of local managers to focus ta#orts on day-to-day dealership operations
and the customers.

Utilizing Technology Throughout Operationg/e believe that our management information systenich currently is being utilized by
each operating subsidiary and was developed omandoer of years through cooperative efforts witbenmon vendor, enhances our ability
to integrate successfully the operations of ouraipgg subsidiaries and future acquired dealers. Siistem facilitates the interchange of
information and enhances cross-selling opportunttiecoughout our company. The system integratds leael of operations on a company-
wide basis, including purchasing, inventory, reables, financial reporting, budgeting, and salesagament. The system also provides sales
representatives with prospect and customer infaomdhat aids them in tracking the status of tieeintacts with prospects, automatically
generates follow-up correspondence to such prosplecilitates the availability of boats companydeijilocates boats needed to satisfy
particular customer requests, and monitors the te@amce and service needs of customawats. Our representatives also utilize the comm
system to assist in arranging customer financirtjiasurance packages. Our managers use a web-foa$énl access essentially all financial
and operational data from anywhere at any time.

Products and Services

We offer new and used recreational boats aladed marine products, including engines, trailpasts, and accessories. While we sell a
broad range of new and used boats, we focus onipmefrand products. In addition, we assist in agiag related boat financing, insurance,
and extended service contracts; provide boat maniee and repair services; provide boat brokeraggces; and offer slip and storage
accommodations.

New Boat Sale:

We primarily sell recreational boats, incluglipleasure boats (such as sport boats, sport sugg®rt yachts, yachts, and meggahts) anc
fishing boats. The principal products we offer mr@nufactured by Brunswick, the leading worldwidenofacturer of recreational boats,
including Sea Ray pleasure boats, Boston Whalkinfisboats, Meridian Yachts, and Hatteras Yachit§istal 2005, approximately 60% of
our revenue was derived from the sale of new hoatsufactured by Brunswick. We believe that we repnéed in excess of 10% of all of
Brunswick’s marine product sales during that perid also sell mega-yachts, yachts, and otheradoreal boats manufactured by Bertram
and the Italy-based Ferretti Group, including Reiriéachts, Pershing, Riva, Apreamare, Mochi Ceaiftl Custom Line. Certain of our
dealerships also sell luxury yachts, fishing boait&] pontoon boats provided by other manufactubBarsng fiscal 2005, new boat sales
accounted for approximately 70.5% of our revenue.

We offer recreational boats in most marketrsents, but have a particular focus on premium tupleasure boats and yachts as reflected
by our fiscal 2005 average new fiberglass boatsgaliee of approximately $110,000, an increase28b from 2004, compared with an
estimated industry average selling price of apprately $38,000, versus $30,000 in the prior yeased on industry data published by the
National Marine Manufacturers Association. Givem lmeations in some of the more affluent, offshboating areas in the United States
emphasis on high levels of customer service, weaselatively higher percentage of large recrewtidoats, such as megaehts, yachts, ar
sport cruisers. We believe that the product linesoffer are among the highest quality within thregpective market segments, with well-
established trade-name recognition and reputafarguality, performance, and styling.

The following table is illustrative of the @@ and approximate manufacturer suggested reted pange of new boats that we offer, but is
not all inclusive:
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Manufacturer Suggested

Product Line and Trade Name Overall Length Retail Price Range
Mega-Yachts

Custom Line 94' to 143 $9,000,000 to $12,000,00
Motor Yachts

Hatteras Motor Yacht 64' to 100 2,300,000 to 10,000,00

Ferretti 46' to 88' 1,100,000 to 7,500,001
Convertibles

Hatteras Convertible 50' to 90 1,000,000 to 7,000,00!

Bertram 36'to 67 500,000 to 3,500,00(
Pleasure Boats

Sea Ray 17'to 68 21,000 to 4,000,0(

Meridian 35'to 59 300,000 to 1,600,0(
Fishing Boats

Boston Whale 11'to 32 8,000 to 210,0C
Specialty Boats & Yachts

Pershing 50'to 115 1,600,000 to 13,000,00

Riva 33'to 115 600,000 to 9,000,00(

Apreamare 25'to 53 350,000 to 2,000,00(

Mochi Craft 44'to 74 1,200,000 to 4,600,001

Mega-Yachts Custom Line is considered one of the world’'s gegrmega-yacht product lines and represents out exgensive product
offering. All models include state-of-the-art desgvith live-aboard luxuries. The Custom Line srianging from 94 feet to 143 feet, offers
multiple decks with an enormous amount of livingep, luxurious salon/galley arrangements, and plel#/IP and guest staterooms.

Motor Yachts Hatteras Yachts and Ferretti Group are two ofabdd’s premier yacht builders. The motor yachidurct lines typically
include state-of-the-art designs with live-aboarxries. The Hatteras series offers a flybridgédnweittensive guest seating; covered aft deck,
which may be fully or partially enclosed, providitige boater with additional living space; an elégaton; and multiple staterooms for
accommodations. Ferretti is known for its Europs@ting, speed, performance, and offers luxuricalerggalley arrangements and multiple
staterooms with private heads.

Convertibles Hatteras Yachts and Bertram are two of the werfatemier convertible yacht builders and offerestattheart designs witl
live-aboard luxuries. Convertibles are primarilgtfing vessels, which are well equipped to meenhéweels of even the most serious
tournament-class competitor. The Hatteras serasiffies interiors that offer luxurious salon/gakdgyangements, multiple staterooms with
private heads, and a cockpit that includes a Igittackle center, fishbox, and freezer. The Bertsanes feature interiors that offer spacious
living room and salon/galley arrangements, multgilterooms with private heads, and a cockpititithtides storage for big catches, ample
prep area, open sink area, live-bait storage, tamtisup rod storage.

Pleasure Boats Sea Ray and Meridian pleasure boats target betlukury and the family recreational boating mésland come in a
variety of configurations to suit each custorsgrarticular recreational boating style. Sea Raytsmachts and yachts serve the luxury segr
of the recreational boating market and includedbfhe-line living accommodations with a salonullyf equipped galley, and multiple
staterooms. Sea Ray sport yachts and yachts aitetdean cabin, bridge cockpit, and cruiser mod&sa Ray sport boat and sport cruiser
models are designed for performance and depentyaibilmeet family recreational needs and includeynaf the features and
accommodations of Sea Ray’s sport yacht and yaodefs. Meridian sport yachts and yachts are knawmhieir solid performance and
thoughtful use of space with 360-degree views g@aaisus salon, galley, and stateroom accommodatidesdian sport yachts and yachts
are available in sedan, motoryacht, and pilothoosdels. All
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Sea Ray and Meridian pleasure boats feature custtnumentation that may include an electronickpge; various hull, deck, and cockpit
designs that can include a swim platform, bow piuoid raised bridge; and various amenities, ss@wavel bucket helm seats, lounge seats,
sun pads, wet bars, built-in ice chests, and refnesit centers. Most Sea Ray and Meridian pleaaatsiieature Mercury or MerCruiser
engines.

Fishing Boats The fishing boats we offer, such as Boston Whatarge from entry level models to advanced modetsgned for fishing
and water sports in lakes, bays, and off-shorenswatéth cabins with limited live-aboard capabilityhe fishing boats typically feature
livewells, in-deck fishboxes, splash-well gateswibdholders, rigging stations, cockpit coaminggahd fresh and saltwater washdowns.

Specialty Boats Pershing, Riva, Apreamare, and Mochi Craft spgckoats and yachts are known for exceptionaligualesign, and
innovation and are considered premium productheir tespective segments. The Pershing serieqisdared a perfect blend of high
performance, luxury, and the comfort of perfectlgruled interior space. The Riva series is consibyethose who want the best, expect the
best, and live the best as the luxury boat of @ghditie Apreamare series is considered one of ttst exciting and most desirable express
cruisers on the market with an unparalleled Eurngkzsign. The Mochi Craft series is an stglle revolution that rediscovers the natural li
of the 1950s.

Used Boat Sales

We sell used versions of the new makes ancetaade offer and, to a lesser extent, used boatthef makes and models generally taken
as tradans. During fiscal 2005, used boat sales accoufwtedpproximately 17.6% of our revenue, and apprately 81.1% of the used bo
we sold were Brunswick models.

Our used boat sales depend on our abilitptwce a supply of high-quality used boats at ditragrices. We acquire substantially all of
our used boats through customer trade-ins. Wedntieicontinue to increase our used boat busineasesult of the increased availability of
quality used boats generated from our expandiressfforts, the increasing number of used boatsatleawellmaintained through our servi
initiatives, our ability to market used boats thgbaut our combined dealership network to match teed demand, and the experience of our
yacht brokerage operations. Additionally, substdlytiall of our used boat inventory is posted onweb site www.MarineMax.com which
expands the awareness and availability of our mtsdo a large audience of boating enthusiasts.

At most of our retail locations, we offer thea Ray Legacy warranty plan available for usedR2gaboats less than six years old. The
Legacy plan applies to each qualifying used Seali®ay, which has passed a 48-point inspectionpaowdes protection against failure of
most mechanical parts for up to three years. Wiewethat the Sea Ray Legacy warranty plan, whianly available for used Sea Ray boats
purchased from a Sea Ray dealer, enhances ourdalsed Sea Ray boats by motivating purchasensed Sea Ray boats to purchase only
from a Sea Ray dealer and motivating sellers offSgaboats to sell through a Sea Ray dealer.

Marine Engines, Related Marine Equipment, and Boagj Accessorie

We offer marine engines and propellers, sulisily all of which are manufactured by Mercury e, a division of Brunswick. We sell
marine engines and propellers primarily to retagtomers as replacements for their existing engin@sopellers. Mercury Marine has
introduced various new engine models that redugéeremissions to comply with current Environmeiftadtection Agency requirements.
See “Business — Environmental and Other Reguldssyes.” An industry leader for almost six decadlés;,cury Marine specializes in state-
of-the-art marine propulsion systems and accessdvlany of our operating subsidiaries have beeogrized by Mercury Marine as
“Premier Service Dealers.” This designation is galty awarded based on meeting certain standardigjaalifications.

We also sell related marine parts and accessancluding oils, lubricants, steering and cohstystems, corrosion control products, engine
care, maintenance, and service products (primitdycury Marine’s Quicksilver line); high-performamaccessories (such as propellers) and
instruments; and a complete line of boating acaesso
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including life jackets, inflatables, and water gpa@quipment. We also offer novelty items, sucbhags, caps, and license plates bearing the
manufacturer’s or dealer’s logo.

The sale of marine engines, related maringetent, and boating accessories accounted for gppately 3.0% of our fiscal 2005
revenue.

Maintenance, Repair, and Storage Servic

Providing customers with professional, prommgtintenance and repair services is critical tosales efforts and contributes to our
profitability. We provide maintenance and repaivames at most of our retail locations, with exteddervice hours at certain of our locatic
In addition, in many of our markets, we provide nt®inaintenance and repair services at the locatidche customer’s boat. We believe that
this service commitment is a competitive advaniagbhe markets in which we compete and is criticabur efforts to provide a trouble-free
boating experience. To further this commitmentgeéntain of our markets, we have opened stand-at@ietenance and repair facilities in
locations that are more convenient for our custemaed that increase the availability of such sesidVe also believe that our maintenance
and repair services contribute to strong customlationships and that our emphasis on preventaiaiatenance and quality service increases
the potential supply of well-maintained boats far ased boat sales.

We perform both warranty and non-warranty iepervices, with the cost of warranty work reiméent by the manufacturer in accordance
with the manufacturer’'s warranty reimbursement paiog For warranty work, Brunswick reimburses a patage of the dealer’s posted
service labor rates, with the percentage varyimedding on the dealer’s customer satisfaction indérg and attendance at service training
courses. We derive the majority of our warrantyeraxe from Brunswick products, as Brunswick prodaotsprise the majority of products
sold. Certain other manufacturers reimburse wayraotrk at a fixed amount per repair. Because baatufacturers permit warranty work to
be performed only at authorized dealerships, weivecsubstantially all of the warranted maintenagoa repair work required for the new
boats we sell. The third-party extended warrantytreets we offer also result in an ongoing demamaiir maintenance and repair services
for the duration of the term of the extended wasraontract.

Our maintenance and repair services are peddby manufacturer-trained and certified sernéohmicians. In charging for our
mechanics’ labor, many of our dealerships use abigrrate structure designed to reflect the difficand sophistication of different types of
repairs. The percentage markups on parts are siyrilased on manufacturer suggested prices andanheokditions for different parts.

At many of our locations, we offer boat sta@agrvices, including in-water slip storage anédm&nd outside land storage. These storage
services are offered at competitive market ratesimclude in-season and winter storage.

Maintenance, repair, and storage servicesuasted for approximately 4.6% of our revenue dufiegal 2005. This includes warranty and
non-warranty services.

F&I Products

At each of our retail locations, we offer @uistomers the ability to finance new or used boathmases and to purchase extended service
contracts and arrange insurance coverage, inclushagproperty, credit life, and accident, disépiland casualty insurance coverage
(collectively, “F&I").

We have relationships with various national mapneduct lenders under which the lenders purchaaé iestallment contracts evidenci
retail sales of boats and other marine productsatteaoriginated by us in accordance with exisfingrsale agreements between us and the
lenders. These arrangements permit us to recgieetion of the finance charges expected to be €asnehe retail installment contract based
on a variety of factors, including the credit stigdof the buyer, the annual percentage rate oftiméract charged to the buyer, and the
lender’s then current minimum required annual paiage rate charged to the buyer on the contracs. Th
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participation is subject to repayment by us if lliger prepays the contract or defaults within agieged time period, usually 90 to 180 days.
To the extent required by applicable state law,dmalerships are licensed to originate and selllriestallment contracts financing the sale of
boats and other marine products.

We also offer third-party extended servicetraxts under which, for a predetermined price, veevie all designated services pursuant to
the service contract guidelines during the contierch at no additional charge to the customer aldodeductible. While we sell all new boats
with the boat manufacturer’s standard hull warrasftgenerally five years and standard engine wayrahgenerally one year, extended
service contracts provide additional coverage bdybe time frame or scope of the manufacturer'savey. Purchasers of used boats
generally are able to purchase an extended seswitteact, even if the selected boat is no longeeed by the manufacturer’s warranty.
Generally, we receive a fee for arranging an exadrakrvice contract. Most required services urttecontracts are provided by us and paid
for by the third-party contract holder.

We also are able to assist our customerstivittopportunity to purchase credit life insurarazgident and disability insurance, and
property and casualty insurance. Credit life inaaeapolicies provide for repayment of the boatriitiag contract if the purchaser dies while
the contract is outstanding. Accident and disahifisurance policies provide for payment of the thncontract obligation during any peri
in which the buyer is disabled. Property and cdguasurance covers loss or damage to the boatdd\fet act as an insurance broker or ¢
or issue insurance policies on behalf of insunéfs, however, provide marketing activities and otte¢aited services to insurance companies
and brokers for which we receive marketing feese Ghour strategies is to generate increased magkites by offering more competitive
insurance products.

During fiscal 2005, fee income generated fieh products accounted for approximately 3.1% of myvenue. We believe that our
customersability to obtain competitive financing quickly aeasily at our dealerships complements our alititsell new and used boats.
also believe our ability to provide customer-tagldifinancing on a “same-day” basis gives us anmdga over many of our competitors,
particularly smaller competitors that lack the i@ses to arrange boat financing at their dealessbigghat do not generate sufficient volum
attract the diversity of financing sources thatarailable to us.

Brokerage Service

Through employees or subcontractors thatieeased boat or yacht brokers, we offer boat ohyybokerage services at most of our retail
locations. For a commission, we offer for sale lerekl boats or yachts, listing them on the “BUCtegs and advising our other retail
locations of their availability through our intetgd computer system and posting them on our webmitw.MarineMax.com The BUC
system, which is similar to a real estate multligtng service, is a national boat or yacht ligtservice of approximately 900 brokers
maintained by BUC International. Often sales ardkered, with the commission split between thgifiy and selling brokers. We believe
that our access to potential used boat customersn@thods of listing and advertising customerskbred boats or yachts is more extensive
than is typical among brokers. In addition to gatiag revenue from brokerage commissions, our legeservices also enable us to offer a
broad array of used boats or yachts without inénga®lated inventory costs. During fiscal 200Karage services accounted for
approximately 1.2% of our revenue.

Our brokerage customers generally receivesdnee high level of customer service as our newuaad boat customers. Our waterfront
retail locations enable in-water demonstrationarobn-site brokered boat. Our maintenance andrrseaiices, including mobile service, also
are generally available to our brokerage custonTdrs.purchaser of a Sea Ray boat brokered throsigitso can take advantage of
MarineMaxGetawaysWweekend and day trips and other rendezvous gafseaind in-water events, as well as boat operatidrsafety
seminars. We believe that the array of servicesffez are unique in the brokerage business.

Retail Locations

We sell our recreational boats and other negoitoducts and offer our related boat serviceautiirc/1 retail locations in Alabama, Arizol
California, Colorado, Delaware, Florida, Georgiaaryland, Minnesota,
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Nevada, New Jersey, North Carolina, Ohio, SouttolBea, Tennessee, Texas, and Utah. Each retaifitwcgenerally includes an indo
showroom (including some of the industry’s largasibor boat showrooms) and an outside area fotalispg boat inventories, a business
office to assist customers in arranging financing msurance, and maintenance and repair facilities

Many of our retail locations are waterfronbperties on some of the nation’s most popular bgdtications, including the Delta Basin and
Mission Bay in California; multiple locations oretlintracoastal Waterway, the Atlantic Ocean, BiseaBay, Naples Bay (next to the Gulf of
Mexico), Tampa Bay, and the Caloosahatchee RivEldrida; Lake Lanier and Lake Altoona in Geordidtesapeake Bay in Maryland;
Leech Lake and the St. Croix River in Minnesotarriggat Bay, the Delaware River, the Hudson Rivakd Hopatcong, Little Egg Harbor,
and the Manasquan River in New Jersey; Lake Eri@hio; and Clear Lake, Lake Canroe, and Lake Lellésin Texas. Our waterfront retail
locations, most of which include marina-type fd@h and docks at which we display our boats, asélyeaccessible to the boating populace,
serve as in-water showrooms, and enable the saies o give customers immediate in-water demotisirs.of various boat models. Most of
our other locations are in close proximity to water

We plan to reach new customers by expandimgvn locations through various innovative retaihiiats, such as mall stores and floating
retail facilities. Our mall store concept is unigoahe boating industry and is designed to draw tredfic, thereby providing exposure to
boating to the non-boating public as well as digiplg our new product offerings to boating enthusiaBloating retail facilities place the sales
facility, with a customer reception area and saféises, on or anchored to a dock in a marina as®&ladjacent boat slips to display new and
used boats in areas of high boating activity.

Operations

Dealership Operations and Manageme

We have adopted a generally decentralizedoapprto the operational management of our deafezsthile certain administrative
functions are centralized at the corporate leweial management is primarily responsible for theg-tdaday operations of the retail locations.
Each retail location is managed by a store managey,oversees the day-to-day operations, persoanélfinancial performance of the
individual store, subject to the direction of atded manager, who generally has responsibilitytfar retail locations within a specified
geographic region. Typically, each retail locatadso has a staff consisting of a sales managé¢t&hmanager, a parts and service manager,
sales representatives, maintenance and repairitéis) and various support personnel.

We attempt to attract and retain quality erppés at our retail locations by providing them vagtigoing training to enhance sales
professionalism and product knowledge, career ashrapnt opportunities within a larger company, awbfable benefit packages. We
maintain a formal training program, called MarineManiversity or “MMU,” which provides training foemployees in all aspects of our
operations. Training sessions are held at our uaniegional locations covering a variety of topM#4U-online offers various modules over
the Internet. Highly trained, professional salggesentatives are an important factor to our sisfaksales efforts. These sales represente
are trained at MMU to recognize the importanceostdring an enjoyable sales process, to educatencess on the operation and use of the
boats, and to assist customers in making techaitdidesign decisions in boat purchases. The ovetais of MMU is to teach our core
retailing values, which focus on customer service.

Sales representatives receive compensatioraghly on a commission basis. Each store manages#éaried employee with incentive
bonuses based on the performance of the managkisiép. Maintenance and repair service manageeswe compensation on a salary b
with bonuses based on the performance of theirrttepats. Our management information system provideh store and department
manager with daily financial and operational infatian, enabling them to monitor their performanoeaadaily, weekly, and monthly basis.
We have a uniform, fully integrated managementrimi@tion system serving each of our dealerships.
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Sales and Marketing

Our sales philosophy focuses on selling tkagqires of the boating lifestyle. We believe thatdritical elements of our sales philosophy
include our appealing retail locations, our no-fasales approach, highly trained sales represeasahigh level of customer service,
emphasis on educating the customer and the custfasiily on boat usage, and providing our custaweith opportunities for boating. We
strive to provide superior customer service angetbefore, during, and after the sale.

Each retail location offers the customer thpartunity to evaluate a large variety of new aeddiboats in a comfortable and convenient
setting. Our full-service retail locations facititaa turn-key purchasing process that includeadiue lender financing packages, extended
service agreements, and insurance. Many of ouf letations are located on waterfronts and matimdsch attract boating enthusiasts and
enable customers to operate various boats primraking a purchase decision.

We sell our boats at posted value pricesghagerally represent a discount from the manufacaiseiggested retail price. Our sales
approach focuses on customer service by minimieirgjomer anxiety associated with price negotiation.

As a part of our sales and marketing effors also participate in boat shows and in-the-wsddss events at area boating locations,
typically held in January and February, in eacbwfmarkets and in certain locations in close prityi to our markets. These shows and
events are normally held at convention centersamimas, with area dealers renting space. Boat shod®ther offsite promotions are an
important venue for generating sales orders. Tla¢ fltows also generate a significant amount oféstén our products resulting in boat s
after the show.

We emphasize customer education through onerereducation by our sales representatives asonag locations, our delivery captains,
before and after a sale, and through in-house semfor the entire family on boat safety, the use @peration of boats, and product
demonstrations. Typically, one of our delivery @aps$ or the sales representative delivers the oweste boat to an area boating location and
thoroughly instructs the customer about the opemati the boat, including hands-on instructionsdocking and trailering the boat. To
enhance our customer relationships after the seldead and sponsor MarineM&etawaysigroup boating trips to various destinations,
rendezvous gatherings, and on-the-water organizedit® that promote the pleasures of the boatiegtlife. Each company-sponsored event,
planned and led by a company employee, also preadavorable medium for acclimating new custoni@tsoating and enables us to
promote actively new product offerings to boatimgheisiasts.

As a result of our relative size, we believe lvave a competitive advantage within the indusyripeing able to conduct an organized and
systematic advertising and marketing effort. Pduw marketing effort includes an integrated pextpmanagement system that tracks the
status of each sales representative’s contactsajtiospect, automatically generates follow-upespondence, facilitates company-wide
availability of a particular boat or other marin@guct desired by a customer, and tracks the mantze and service needs for the customer’s
boat.

Suppliers and Inventory Manageme!

We purchase substantially all of our new boatntory directly from manufacturers, which allteaew boats to dealerships based on the
amount of boats sold by the dealership. We alsbaxge new boats with other dealers to accommodaterner demand and to balance
inventory.

We purchase new boats and other marine-refatetlicts from Brunswick, which is the world’s lasj manufacturer of marine products,
including Sea Ray, Boston Whaler, Baja, HatterascBEcraft, and Meridian. We also purchase newsaat! other marine related products
from other manufacturers, including Bertram, Cepntiierretti, Grady White, Sea Pro, and Tracker Warin fiscal 2005, sales of new
Brunswick boats accounted for approximately 60%wfrevenue. No other manufacturer accounted faerttan 10% of our revenue in
fiscal

15




Table of Contents

2005. We believe our Sea Ray boat purchases repeeisapproximately 35% of new Sea Ray boat salésraexcess of 10% of all
Brunswick marine product sales during fiscal 2005.

Through operating subsidiaries, we have edtet® agreements with Brunswick covering Sea Raglpcts. The dealer agreements with
the Sea Ray division of Brunswick do not restrigt dght to sell any Sea Ray product lines or cotimgeproducts. The terms of the mujgai
dealer agreement appoints a designated geograpéidgedry for the dealer, which is exclusive te tthealer as long as the dealer is not in
breach of the material obligations and performataadards under the agreement and Sea Ray'’s thremtmaterial policies and programs
following notice and the expiration of any applit@bure periods without cure.

The dealer agreement with Ferretti Group aedrBm does not restrict our right to sell any E&riGroup and Bertram product lines but
has certain restrictions relating to competing pitsl. The multi-year dealer agreement appointsubeexclusive dealer for the retail sale,
display, and servicing of designated Ferretti Grang Bertram products and repair parts currentin ¢ie future sold by Ferretti Group and
Bertram in the designated geographic areas. Tha-yaar dealer agreement currently expires in Atg@eg7.

Arrangements with certain other manufactuneay restrict our right to offer some product limegertain markets.

We typically deal with each of our manufactarether than the Sea Ray division of Brunswickré&tti Group, and Bertram, under an
annually renewable, non-exclusive dealer agreenvamufacturers generally establish prices on amakipasis, but may change prices in
their sole discretion. Manufacturers typically disat the cost of inventory and offer inventory figing assistance during the manufacturers’
slow seasons, generally October through March.Baio lower cost of inventory, we strive to capitalon these manufacturer incentives to
take product delivery during the manufacturersivséeasons. This permits us to gain pricing advastamd better product availability during
the selling season.

We transfer individual boats among our rdtaihtions to fill customer orders that otherwisghtitake substantially longer to fill from the
manufacturer. This reduces delays in delivery, figpmaximize inventory turnover, and assists immizing potential overstock or out-of-
stock situations. We actively monitor our inventtayels to maintain levels appropriate to meeteniranticipated market demands. We are
not bound by contractual agreements governing i@uat of inventory that we must purchase in any f®sn any manufacturer, but the
failure to purchase at agreed upon levels maytrasthe loss of certain manufacturer incentiveg pdrticipate in numerous end-of-summer
manufacturer boat shows, which manufacturers spdosell off their remaining inventory at reducabts before the introduction of new
model year products, typically beginning in July.

Inventory Financing

Marine manufacturers customarily provide iegtrassistance programs to retailers. The intagstance varies by manufacturer and may
include periods of free financing or reduced ingerate programs. The interest assistance mayibelpactly to the retailer or the financial
institution depending on the arrangements the natuifer has established. We believe that our fimgnarrangements with manufacturers
are standard within the industry.

In March 2003, the Emerging Issues Task F@ECEF) of the Financial Accounting Standards Bo@ASB) revised certain provisions of
its previously reached conclusions on EITF 02-2g;counting by a Customer (Including a Reseller)Gartain Consideration Received from
a Vendor” (EITF 02-16), and provided additionahi#ional guidance. We determined that EITF 02fffacts the way we account for
interest assistance received from vendors begirafiteg July 1, 2003 with the renewal of and amenus& our dealer agreements with the
manufacturers of our products. EITF 02-16 mostificantly requires us to classify interest assistareceived from manufacturers as a
reduction of inventory cost and related cost ofésas opposed to netting the assistance againsttergst expense incurred with our lenders.
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Our revolving credit facility currently prowed us with a line of credit with asset-based boimgvavailability of up to $340 million for
working capital and inventory financing and an &ddial $20 million for traditional floorplan borrangs, all of which are determined
pursuant to a borrowing base formula. The creditifg requires us to satisfy certain covenants|uding maintaining a leverage ratio tied to
our tangible net worth. The credit facility curdgmmatures in March 2008, with two one-year renes@ions remaining. The credit facility
was last amended in February 2005 to extend thestand increase the borrowing availability.

As of September 30, 2005, we owed an aggref@&50.0 million under our revolving credit fagil As of September 30, 2005, our
revolving credit facility provided us with an addital available borrowing capacity of approximat®80.0 million. Advances on the facility
accrued interest at a rate of 5.2% as of SepteBhe2005. We were in compliance with all covenamthe facility as of September 30, 2005.

Management Information Syster

We believe that our management informatioiesgswhich currently is being utilized by each af operating subsidiaries and was
developed over a number of years through cooperafiorts with the vendor, enhances our abilitintegrate successfully the operations of
our operating subsidiaries and future acquisitiées|itates the interchange of information, anti@mces cross-selling opportunities
throughout our company. The system integrates keaeth of operations on a company-wide basis, inalggurchasing, inventory,
receivables, financial reporting and budgeting, salés management. The system enables us to meaibrdealership’s operations in order
to identify quickly areas requiring additional f@cand to manage inventory. The system also progdies representatives with prospect and
customer information that aids them in tracking stetus of their contacts with prospects, autoraliyigenerates followsp correspondence
such prospects, facilitates the availability ofaatjgular boat company-wide, locates boats neealedtisfy a particular customer request, and
monitors the maintenance and service needs of mest) boats. Company representatives also utitizesystem to assist in arranging
financing and insurance packages. In October 2BAswick acquired the vendor of our managemeiarimétion system.

Brunswick Agreement Relating to Acquisitions

We and the Sea Ray Division of Brunswick hamtered into a revised agreement replacing ouriqueagreement to provide a process
our continued growth through the acquisition ofiiddal Sea Ray boat dealers that desire to beiatjby us. The revised agreement
extends through June 2015. Under the agreementistgons of Sea Ray dealers will be mutually agrapon by us and Sea Ray with
reasonable efforts to be made to include a balahSea Ray dealers that have been successful asd that have not been. The agreement
provides that Sea Ray will not unreasonably withtitd consent to any proposed acquisition of afsgadealer by us, subject to the
conditions set forth in the agreement. Among othings, the agreement provides for us to provide Bay with a business plan for each
proposed acquisition, including historical finan@ad fiveyear projected financial information regarding #uguisition candidate; marketi
and advertising plans; service capabilities andagarial and staff personnel; information regardhegyability of candidate to achieve
performance standards within designated period$jrEformation regarding the success of our prevaguisitions of Sea Ray dealers. The
agreement also contemplates Sea Ray reaching afgittodetermination whether the acquisition wolbiédin its best interest based on our
dedication and focus of resources on the Sea Radtand Sea Rayconsideration of any adverse effects that theosapwould have on th
resulting territory configuration and adjacent trey dealer sales and the absence of any violafiapplicable laws or rights granted by Sea
Ray to others.

Dealer Agreements with Sea Ray

Brunswick, through its Sea Ray division, argl wihrough our principal operating subsidiaries, @arties to Sales and Service Agreements
relating to Sea Ray products extending through 20d&. Each of these dealer agreements appointsfane operating subsidiaries as a
dealer for the retail sale, display, and serviahgll Sea Ray products, parts, and accessoriesntly or in the future sold by Sea Ray. Each
dealer agreement designates a designated geogbignittory for the dealer, which is exclusivetb@ dealer as long as
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the dealer is not in breach of the material oblagest and performance standards under the agreemdr8ea Ray’s then current material
policies and programs following notice and the eaqon of any applicable cure periods without ciifach dealer agreement also specifies
retail locations, which the dealer may not clo$mrnge, or add to without the prior written cons#rbea Ray, provided that Sea Ray may not
unreasonably withhold its consent. Each dealereagest also restricts the dealer from selling, atbiag (other than in recognized and
established marine publications), soliciting folesar offering for resale any Sea Ray productsidetits territory without the prior written
consent of Sea Ray as long as similar restrictiss apply to all domestic Sea Ray dealers seflomgparable Sea Ray products. In addition,
each dealer agreement provides for the lowest ptqatices charged by Sea Ray from time to timeth@iodomestic Sea Ray dealers, subject
to the dealer meeting all the requirements anditiond of Sea Ray’s applicable programs and thietrig Sea Ray in good faith to charge
lesser prices to other dealers to meet existingpesitive circumstances, for unusual and non-orditmusiness circumstances, or for limited
duration promotional programs.

Among other things, each dealer agreemeninesjthe dealer to

. devote its best efforts to promote, display, afilse, and sell Sea Ray products at each of il tetations in accordance with the
agreement and applicable lav

. purchase and maintain at all times sufficieneimory of current Sea Ray products to meet theoredide demand of customers at
each of its locations and to meet Sea’s applicable minimum inventory requiremet

. maintain at each retail location, or at anotlezeatable location, a service department thatdpgnty staffed and equipped to service
Sea Ray products promptly and professionally anddmtain parts and supplies to service Sea Raguate properly on a timely
basis;

. perform all necessary product rigging, instadlatiand inspection services prior to delivery tochasers in accordance with Sea
Ray's standards and perform -sale services of all Sea Ray products sold by ¢faded and brought to the dealer for serv

. provide or arrange for warranty and service workSea Ray product
. provide appropriate instructions to purchasers@m to obtain warranty and service work from thelee:

. furnish product purchasers with Sea Ray'’s limitedranty on new products and with information aghing as to the safe and
proper operation and maintenance of the prod

. assist Sea Ray in performing any product defectracall campaigns

. achieve sales performance in accordance wittafalrreasonable standards and sales levels elstabby Sea Ray in consultation
with the dealer based on factors such as populataias potential, market share percentage of SggRducts sold in the territory
compared with competitive products sold in theitigry, local economic conditions, competition, psates history, number of retail
locations, ant
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other special circumstances that may affezshle of Sea Ray products or the dealer, in eash consistent with standards
established for all domestic Sea Ray dealers gatiimparable product

. provide designated financial information that igtful and accurate

. conduct its business in a manner that preseng&ahances the reputation and goodwill of bothFsaand the dealer for providing
quality products and service

. maintain the financial ability to purchase and rtaiimon hand and display Sea I's current product model

. maintain customer service ratings in compliancé\8Bita Ra’s criteria;

. comply with those deal's obligations that may be imposed or establishefdsyRay applicable to all domestic Sea Ray de:
. maintain a financial condition that is adequatseatisfy and perform its obligations under the agrest;

. achieve within designated time periods or mamiaaster dealer status or other applicable ceatifio requirements as established
from time to time by Sea Ray applicable to all detiteSea Ray dealet

. notify Sea Ray of the addition or deletion of aatail locations

. sell Sea Ray products only on the basis of SgésRablished applicable limited warranty and makeother warranty or
representations concerning the limited warrantpressed or implied, either verbally or in writir

. provide timely warranty service on all Sea Rayduicts presented to the dealer by purchasers ordanece with Sea Ray’s then
current warranty program applicable to all domeSta Ray dealers selling comparable Sea Ray pdara

. provide Sea Ray with access to the desleooks and records and such other informatioreasRaly may reasonably request to ve
the accuracy of the warranty claims submitted @ Bay by the dealer with regard to such warrargintd;

Sea Ray has agreed to indemnify each of caledeagainst any losses to third parties resuftimp Sea Ray’s negligent acts or omissions
involving the design or manufacture of any of itequcts or any breach by it of the agreement. Bhchur dealers has agreed to indemnify
Sea Ray against any losses to third parties raguitom the dealer’s negligent acts or omissionsliving the dealer’s application, use, or
repair of Sea Ray products, statements or reprseminot specifically authorized by Sea Ray, tis#dllation of any after market compone
or any other modification or alteration of Sea Ragducts, and any breach by the dealer of the agrre

Each dealer agreement may be terminated

. by Sea Ray, upon 60 days prior written noticéyéf dealer fails or refuses to place a minimuralstg order of the next model year’
products in accordance with requirements applicabldl Sea Ray dealers generally or fails to nitsdtnancial obligations as they
become due to Sea Ray or to the di's lenders

. by Sea Ray or the dealer, upon 60 days writtercadti the other, in the event of a breach or defauthe other with any of the of t
material obligations, performance standards, caves
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representations, warranties, or duties imghdosethe agreement or the Sea Ray manual thatdtdseen cured within 60 days of the
notice of the claimed deficiency or within a reasiole period when the cure cannot be completed nit60eay period, or at the er
of the 6(-day period without the opportunity to cure when ¢hese constitutes bad fai

. by Sea Ray or the dealer if the other makeswafrignt misrepresentation that is material to gie@ment or the other engages in an
incurable act of bad faitl

. by Sea Ray or the dealer in the event of the irsaly, bankruptcy, or receivership of the otl
. by Sea Ray in the event of the assignment of theeagent by the dealer without the prior writtensemt of Sea Ra

. by Sea Ray upon at least 15 dgysor written notice in the event of the failuregay any sums due and owing to Sea Ray that a
disputed in good faith; ar

. upon the mutual consent of Sea Ray and the dt

Employees

As of September 30, 2005, we had 1,623 empkyk 546 of whom were in store-level operatiorts @hof whom were in corporate
administration and management. We are not a pauwdpy collective bargaining agreements and areawate of any efforts to unionize our
employees. We consider our relations with our eygss to be excellent.

Trademarks and Service Marks

We have registered trade names and trademéitkshe U.S. Patent and Trademark Office for vasioames, including “MarineMax,”
“MarineMax Getaways!,” “MarineMax Care,” “Deliveninthe Dream,” “MarineMax Delivering the Boating @re,” “Women on Water,and
“Newcoast Financial Services.” We have registeheditame “MarineMax” in the European Community. Véeda trademark application
pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Offire'¥arineMax Boating Gear Center.” We have tradene and trademark applications
pending in Canada for various names, including ‘iN&vlax,” “Delivering the Dream,” and “The Water GehThere can be no assurance
that any of these applications will be granted.

Seasonality and Weather Conditions

Our business, as well as the entire recrealtiomating industry, is highly seasonal, with seadity varying in different geographic marke
Over the three-year period ended September 30, 200%verage revenue for the quarters ended Deweditb March 31, June 30, and
September 30 represented approximately 19%, 25%, 8ad 25%, respectively, of our average annuamess. With the exception of
Florida, we generally realize significantly lowedes and higher levels of inventories and relakedtsterm borrowings, in the quarterly
periods ending December 31 and March 31. The arigbe public boat and recreation shows in Janstinpulates boat sales and allows us to
reduce our inventory levels and related short-teomowings throughout the remainder of the fisazdry

Our business is also subject to weather pettevhich may adversely affect our results of op@na. For example, drought conditions (or
merely reduced rainfall levels) or excessive raiay close area boating locations or render boa#mgerous or inconvenient, thereby
curtailing customer demand for our products. Initaitl unseasonably cool weather and prolongederiodnditions may lead to a shorter
selling season in certain locations. Hurricanesathdr storms could result in disruptions of oueigions or damage to our boat inventories
and facilities, as was the case during the 20042808 hurricane season when Florida and other nsavkere affected
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by numerous hurricanes. Although our geographiemity is likely to reduce the overall impact toafsadverse weather conditions in any
market area, these conditions will continue to@epnt potential, material adverse risks to us amduture financial performance.

Environmental and Other Regulatory Issues

Our operations are subject to extensive réigmasupervision, and licensing under various fatjestate, and local statutes, ordinances, anc
regulations. While we believe that we maintairredjuisite licenses and permits and are in compdiavith all applicable federal, state, and
local regulations, there can be no assurance thatilvbe able to maintain all requisite licensesl @ermits. The failure to satisfy those and
other regulatory requirements could have a matadakrse effect on our business, financial condlitamd results of operations. The adoption
of additional laws, rules, and regulations coukbdilave a material adverse effect on our busiMesus federal, state, and local regulatory
agencies, including the Occupational Safety andthldaministration, or OSHA, the United States Eovimental Protection Agency, or
EPA, and similar federal and local agencies, haxisdiction over the operation of our dealershippair facilities, and other operations with
respect to matters such as consumer protectiorkengrsafety, and laws regarding protection oféhgironment, including air, water, and
soil.

The EPA has various air emissions regulationsutboard marine engines that impose more s#rigssions standards for two-cycle,
gasoline outboard marine engines. Emissions frarh sagines must be reduced by approximately 75%awine-year period beginning
with the 1998 model year. Costs of comparable negines, if materially more expensive than previengines, or the inability of our
manufacturers to comply with EPA requirements, dddve a material adverse effect on our busingemdial condition, and results of
operations.

Certain of our facilities own and operate ugdeund storage tanks, or USTS, for the storageanbus petroleum products. The USTs are
generally subject to federal, state, and local land regulations that require testing and upgradiigSTs and remediation of contaminated
soils and groundwater resulting from leaking USMsaddition, if leakage from company-owned or opetldJSTs migrates onto the property
of others, we may be subject to civil liabilityttard parties for remediation costs or other darsagased on historical experience, we believe
that our liabilities associated with UST testinggtades, and remediation are unlikely to have &natadverse effect on our financial
condition or operating results.

As with boat dealerships generally, and pantd service operations in particular, our busimeaslves the use, handling, storage, and
contracting for recycling or disposal of hazardousoxic substances or wastes, including envirortaignsensitive materials, such as motor
oil, waste motor oil and filters, transmission fluantifreeze, freon, waste paint and lacquer #inpatteries, solvents, lubricants, degreasing
agents, gasoline, and diesel fuels. Accordinglyaveesubject to regulation by federal, state, acdllauthorities establishing requirements for
the use, management, handling, and disposal oé theserials and health and environmental qualégddrds, and liability related thereto,
providing penalties for violations of those starttalWe are also subject to laws, ordinances, andatons governing investigation and
remediation of contamination at facilities we oper®a which we send hazardous or toxic substancesstes for treatment, recycling, or
disposal.

We do not believe we have any material envirental liabilities or that compliance with enviroantal laws, ordinances, and regulations
will, individually or in the aggregate, have a makadverse effect on our business, financial @ or results of operations. However, soil
and groundwater contamination has been known &t aekicertain properties owned or leased by ush&ve also been required and may in
the future be required to remove aboveground adéngnound storage tanks containing hazardous sutestar wastes. As to certain of our
properties, specific releases of petroleum have beare in the process of being remedied in aeowd with state and federal guidelines.
are monitoring the soil and groundwater as requinedpplicable state and federal guidelines. Intadd the shareholders of the acquired
dealers have indemnified us for specific environtakissues identified on environmental site assesssperformed by us as part of the
acquisitions. We maintain insurance for pollutdatioup and removal. The coverage pays for the egsaio extract pollutants from land or
water at the insured property, if the dischargspelisal, seepage, migration, release, or escape pbllutants is caused by or results from a
covered cause of loss. We may also have additginedge tank liability
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insurance and “Superfund” coverage where applicabladdition, certain of our retail locations éweated on waterways that are subject to
federal or state laws regulating navigable watexd(ding oil pollution prevention), fish and wilt#, and other matters.

Two of the properties we own were historicalbed as gasoline service stations. Remedial aafitbrrespect to prior historical site
activities on these properties has been completaddordance with federal and state law. Also, @our properties are within the bounda
of a “Superfund” site, although neither propertg baen nor is expected to be identified as a dartor to the contamination in the area. We,
however, do not believe that these environmensalds will result in any material liabilities to us.

Additionally, certain states have requirec@ considering requiring a license in order torafeea recreational boat. While such licensing
requirements are not expected to be unduly resgiategulations may discourage potential firsteibuyers, thereby limiting future sales,
which could adversely affect our business, findnmadition, and results of operations.

Product Liability

The products we sell or service may expose petential liabilities for personal injury or gerty damage claims relating to the use of
those products. Historically, the resolution ofguwot liability claims has not materially affectedrdusiness. Our manufacturers generally
maintain product liability insurance, and we maimtiird-party product liability insurance, whichevbelieve to be adequate. However, we
may experience legal claims in excess of our imegaoverage, and those claims may not be coveratgsbrance. Furthermore, any
significant claims against us could adversely after business, financial condition, and resultspérations and result in negative publicity.
Excessive insurance claims also could result ire@m®ed insurance premiums.

Competition

We operate in a highly competitive environmémtaddition to facing competition generally frgectreation businesses seeking to attract
consumers’ leisure time and discretionary spendwiars, the recreational boat industry itselfighty fragmented, resulting in intense
competition for customers, quality products, bdeive space, and suitable retail locations. We relg tertain extent on boat shows to
generate sales. Our inability to participate intlebeows in our existing or targeted markets coatdeha material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, and results of ofiens.

We compete primarily with single-location boaalers and, with respect to sales of marine eagip, parts, and accessories, with national
specialty marine stores, catalog retailers, sppigimods stores, and mass merchants. Dealer coimpetiintinues to increase based on the
quality of available products, the price and vabdfihe products, and attention to customer servibere is significant competition both witl
markets we currently serve and in new marketswvileatnay enter. We compete in each of our markets mgtailers of brands of boats and
engines we do not sell in that market. In addite®yeral of our competitors, especially thosersgllioating accessories, are large national or
regional chains that have substantial financiakkeigng, and other resources. However, we belibaedur integrated corporate infrastructure
and marketing and sales capabilities, our costtre, and our nationwide presence enable us tpetmeffectively against these companies.
Private sales of used boats is an additional sagmif source of competition.
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Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information c@nning each of our executive officers:

Name Age Position

William H. McGill Jr. 62 Chairman of the Board, President, Chief Executiffic€r, and Directo
Michael H. McLamk 40 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial OfficBgcretary, and Direct
Kurt M. Frahn 37 Vice President of Finance and Treast

Jack P. Ezze 35 Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer, and Cofiar

Edward A. Russe 45 Vice Presiden

Michael J. Aiello 49 Vice Presiden

Anthony M. Aisquith 38 Vice Presiden

William H. McGill Jr. has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Maviag since January 23, 1998 and as the Chairmamed8vard
and as a director of our company since March 68188. McGill served as the President of our compiiom January 23, 1988 until
September 8, 2000 and re-assumed the positionlpi JA002. Mr. McGill was the principal owner aptesident of Gulfwind USA, Inc., one
of our operating subsidiaries, from 1973 untilnterger with us.

Michael H. McLambhas served as Executive Vice President of our cagnpace October 2002, as Chief Financial Offidecs
January 23, 1998, as Secretary since April 5, 18088,as a director of our company since Novemb20Q@3. Mr. McLamb served as Vice
President and Treasurer of our company from Jar@@rg998 until October 22, 2002. Mr. McLamb, atified public accountant, was
employed by Arthur Andersen, LLP from December 188December 1997, serving most recently as a semanager.

Kurt M. Frahnhas served agice President of Finance and Treasurer of our @msince October 22, 2002. Mr. Frahn served asciiil
of Taxes and Acquisitions of our company from M&y 1998 until October 22, 2002. Mr. Frahn was erygtbby Arthur Andersen, LLP
from September 3, 1991 until May 15, 1998, servitast recently as a tax consulting manager.

Jack P. Ezzelhas served as Vice President and Chief Accountiffiged of our company since October 22, 2002 an@aporate
Controller of our company since June 1, 1999. Mzdl served as Assistant Controller from Janu&y1P98 until June 1, 1999. Mr. Ezzell,
a certified public accountant, was employed by értAndersen, LLP from August 1996 until January 8,98 rving most recently as a senior
auditor.

Edward A. Russelias served as Vice President of our company sicteb®r 22, 2002. Mr. Russell has served as thedRagManager ¢
our Florida operations since August 1, 2002. Rodhat, Mr. Russell served as the District Predider our Central and West Florida
operations from March 1998 until August 1, 2002. Russell was an owner and General Sales Manadgeuléfind USA Inc., one of our
operating subsidiaries, now called MarineMax of {adrFlorida, from 1984 until its merger with owrpany in March 1998.

Michael J. Aiellohas served as Vice President of our company simtab®@r 22, 2002. Mr. Aiello has served as the ReiManager of
the state of New Jersey and surrounding areas $B#® and was a principal owner and operator ofitNléarine Inc., one of our operating
subsidiaries, now called MarineMax of Mid-Atlantfopm 1985 until its merger with our company in iar1999.

Anthony M. Aisquitthas served as Vice President of our company simeember 1, 2003. Mr. Aisquith has served as thédRed
Manager of our Georgia, Carolinas, Texas, and @ali& operations since August 1, 2000, March 1220@arch 15, 2003, and March 1,
2004, respectively. Mr. Aisquith previously senasithe Store Manager of our Tampa, Florida locdtimm October 1, 1997 until August 1,
2000 and as a salesperson in our
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Clearwater, Florida location from June 18, 1995/@ttober 1, 1997. Mr. Aisquith joined our compamy June 18, 1995 after 10 years of
experience in the auto industry.
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Risk Factors

Our success depends to a significant extent on tkhentinued popularity and reputation for quality of the boating products of our
manufacturers, particularly Brunswick’s Sea Ray, Meaidian and Hatteras boat lines, and Ferretti Group’s Ferretti Yachts, Riva,
Pershing, and Bertram product lines.

Approximately 60% of our revenue in fiscal 3d@sulted from sales of new boats manufactureBrbpswick, including approximately
46% from Brunswick’s Sea Ray division and approxieha7% from Brunswick’s Hatteras Yacht divisioh@ remainder of our fiscal 2005
revenue from new boat sales resulted from salesaafucts from a limited number of other manufaatsiraone of which accounted for more
than 10% of our revenue. Any adverse change ifinl@cial condition, production efficiency, prodwdgvelopment, management,
marketplace acceptance and marketing capabilifiesromanufacturers, particularly Brunswick giveur oeliance on Sea Ray, Meridian, and
Hatteras, would have a substantial adverse impaotio business. Additionally, given the revenueegated by each yacht and mega-yacht
sale, any adverse change in the financial condipooduction efficiency, product development, maragnt, marketplace acceptance, and
marketing capabilities of Ferretti Group would havsubstantial adverse impact on our business.

To ensure adequate inventory levels to supporexpansion, it may be necessary for Brunswitk @her manufacturers to increase
production levels or allocate a greater percentdigleeir production to us. The interruption or disinuance of the operations of Brunswick
or other manufacturers could cause us to experigimagfalls, disruptions, or delays with respectéeded inventory. Although we believe
that adequate alternate sources would be availaiteould replace any manufacturer other than 8mick as a product source, those
alternate sources may not be available at the d¢ina@y interruption, and alternative products mayve available at comparable quality and
prices.

Through our principal operating subsidiarige,maintain dealer agreements with Brunswick coge8ea Ray products. Each dealer
agreement has a multi-year term and provides ®tdWwest product prices charged by the Sea Ragidiviof Brunswick from time to time to
other domestic Sea Ray dealers. These terms gexstb

. the dealer meeting all the requirements and canditof Sea R¢ s applicable programs; ai
. the right of Brunswick in good faith to charge ksprices to other dealel

—  to meet existing competitive circumstanc

—  for unusual and nc-ordinary business circumstances

—  for limited duration promotional progran

Each dealer agreement designates a desiggededaphical territory for the dealer, which islesore to the dealer as long as the dealer is
not in breach of the material obligations and penfance standards under the agreement and SeatRey’surrent material policies and
programs following notice and the expiration of @pplicable cure periods without cure.

Through certain of our operating subsidianes,also maintain dealer agreements with Hattesasring Hatteras products. Each
agreement allows Hatteras to revise prices atiamg, and such new prices will supersede previoitegr Pursuant to the agreement, we must
bear any losses we incur as a result of such phaages and may not recover from Hatteras for @sgek. In addition, certain of our
operating subsidiaries may not represent manufaictur product lines that compete directly withtelgts without its prior written consent.

As is typical in the industry, we deal with mufacturers, other than the Sea Ray division ohBwick, Ferretti Group, and Bertram, under
renewable annual dealer agreements. These agreeedtendt contain any contractual provisions coriogrproduct pricing or required
purchasing levels. Pricing is generally establisbie@ model year basis, but is subject to changfeeimanufacturer’s sole discretion. Any
change or termination of

25




Table of Contents

these arrangements for any reason could adverebt product availability and cost and our finalg@erformance.

Our operations depend upon a number of factors reliéng to or affecting consumer spending for luxury g@ods, such as recreational
boats.

Unfavorable local, regional, national, or gibbconomic developments or uncertainties regarfilinge economic prospects could reduce
consumer spending in the markets we serve and selyeaffect our business. Consumer spending ormryuyoiods also may decline as a re
of lower consumer confidence levels, even if prigvgieconomic conditions are favorable. In an eenitodownturn, consumer discretionary
spending levels generally decline, at times resglith disproportionately large reductions in thke sd# luxury goods. Similarly, rising interest
rates could have a negative impact on the abilitwibingness of consumers to finance boat purckassich could also adversely affect our
ability to sell our products and impact the prdditily of our finance and insurance activities. bnfluences, such as corporate downsizing
and military base closings, also could adversdiycafour operations in certain markets. We mayeble to maintain our profitability during
any period of adverse economic conditions or lowscmner confidence. Changes in federal and statewess such as an imposition of luxury
taxes on new boat purchases, and stock marketrperfee also could influence consumefstisions to purchase products we offer and ¢
have a negative effect on our sales. For examphingl 1991 and 1992 the federal government impasietury tax on new recreational boats
with sales prices in excess of $100,000, whichaded with a sharp decline in boating industry sdtem a high of more than $17.9 billion
in the late 1980s to a low of $10.3 billion in 1992

General economic conditions that impact the recre&nal boating industry could inhibit our growth and negatively impact our
profitability.

General economic conditions, consumer spenglitiggrns, federal tax policies, interest ratellEvend the cost and availability of fuel can
impact overall boat purchases. We believe thalethel of boat purchases has been adversely affégtéttreased competition from other
recreational activities, perceived hassles of boatership, and relatively poor customer service egatation throughout the retail boat
industry. Although our strategy addresses manhedd industry factors and we have expanded ouatipes during periods of stagnant or
declining industry trends, the cyclical naturetod tecreational boating industry or the lack oflistdy growth could adversely affect our
business, financial condition, or results of operat in the future.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability to cdimue to make successful acquisitions and to integte the operations of acquired
dealers and each dealer we acquire in the future.

Since March 1, 1998, we have acquired 18 adiareal boat dealers, two boat brokerage operatams one full-service yacht repair
facility. Each acquired dealer operated indepergenior to its acquisition by us. Our success defe in part, on our ability to continue to
make successful acquisitions and to integrate pleeations of acquired dealers and each dealer qugradn the future, including centralizing
certain functions to achieve cost savings and pogsprograms and processes that promote cooperatidithe sharing of opportunities and
resources among our dealerships. We may not be@bleersee the combined entity efficiently orrpiement effectively our growth and
operating strategies. To the extent that we sufidspursue our acquisition strategy, our resgtgrowth will place significant additional
demands on our management and infrastructure. &lurd to pursue successfully our acquisition sgags or operate effectively the
combined entity could have a material adverse effaour rate of growth and operating performance.

Unforeseen expenses, difficulties, and delays fregutly encountered in connection with rapid expansio through acquisitions could
inhibit our growth and negatively impact our profit ability.

Our growth strategy of acquiring additionatneational boat dealers involves significant risKsis strategy entails reviewing and
potentially reorganizing acquired business openatigorporate infrastructure and systems, and diaanontrols. Unforeseen expenses,
difficulties, and delays frequently encounteredamnection with rapid expansion through acquisgioauld inhibit our growth and negative
impact our profitability. We may
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be unable to identify suitable acquisition candidadr to complete the acquisitions of candidataswie identify. Increased competition for
acquisition candidates or increased asking prigesmchuisition candidates may increase purchasespfar acquisitions to levels beyond our
financial capability or to levels that would nosudt in the returns required by our acquisitioniesia. Acquisitions also may become more
difficult in the future as we acquire more of theshattractive dealers. In addition, we may enoaudifficulties in integrating the operations
of acquired dealers with our own operations or rganmpacquired dealers profitably without substdrtists, delays, or other operational or
financial problems.

We may issue common or preferred stock angrisgbstantial indebtedness in making future adipnis. The size, timing, and integration
of any future acquisitions may cause substantigkflations in operating results from quarter tortpraConsequently, operating results for
any quarter may not be indicative of the resulé thay be achieved for any subsequent quarter @ fial fiscal year. These fluctuations
could adversely affect the market price of our cammtock.

Our ability to continue to grow through theyaisition of additional dealers will depend upomiwas factors, including the following:
. the availability of suitable acquisition candidaség®ttractive purchase price

. the ability to compete effectively for availablegacsition opportunities

. the availability of funds or common stock with dfsient market price to complete the acquisitic

. the ability to obtain any requisite manufacturegovernmental approvals; a

. the absence of one or more manufacturers atteqifitiimpose unsatisfactory restrictions on usoinnection with their approval of
acquisitions

As a part of our acquisition strategy, we freatly engage in discussions with various recreatiboat dealers regarding their potential
acquisition by us. In connection with these distrss we and each potential acquisition candidatb@nge confidential operational and
financial information, conduct due diligence ingesdy, and consider the structure, terms, and camditdf the potential acquisition. In certain
cases, the prospective acquisition candidate agids discuss a potential acquisition with arfyeotparty for a specific period of time,
grants us an option to purchase the prospectiierdies a designated price during a specific tiared agrees to take other actions designed to
enhance the possibility of the acquisition, suchraparing audited financial information and conivey its accounting system to the system
specified by us. Potential acquisition discussiveguently take place over a long period of timd avolve difficult business integration and
other issues, including in some cases, managernec¢ssion and related matters. As a result of thedether factors, a number of potential
acquisitions that from time to time appear likedyoccur do not result in binding legal agreements@e not consummated.

We may be required to obtain the consent of Brunswk and various other manufacturers prior to the acayisition of other dealers.

In determining whether to approve acquisitiananufacturers may consider many factors, inclydur financial condition and ownership
structure. Manufacturers also may impose condit@mmgranting their approvals for acquisitions, irtthg a limitation on the number of their
dealers that we may acquire. Our ability to meetunfiacturers’ requirements for approving future asijons will have a direct bearing on
our ability to complete acquisitions and effect guwwth strategy. There can be no assurance timatnaifacturer will not terminate its dealer
agreement, refuse to renew its dealer agreeméunserto approve future acquisitions, or take o#tation that could have a material adverse
effect on our acquisition program.
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We and the Sea Ray Division of Brunswick hamtered into a revised agreement replacing our pgoeement to provide a process for
continued growth through the acquisition of additibSea Ray boat dealers that desire to be acdoyred. The agreement extends through
June 2015. Under the agreement, acquisitions oRagadealers will be mutually agreed upon by us@ea Ray with reasonable efforts to be
made to include a balance of Sea Ray dealers @vatlheen successful and those that have not bheragieement provides that Sea Ray
not unreasonably withhold its consent to any predascquisition of a Sea Ray dealer by us, subjettiet conditions set forth in the
agreement. Among other things, the agreement peewiiok us to provide Sea Ray with a business @ardch proposed acquisition,
including historical financial and five-year profed financial information regarding the acquisit@andidate; marketing and advertising
plans; service capabilities and managerial and géafonnel; information regarding the ability @ihnclidate to achieve performance standards
within designated periods; and information regagdime success of our previous acquisitions of Sgadealers. The agreement also
contemplates Sea Ray reaching a good faith detatimimwhether the acquisition would be in its battrest based on our dedication and
focus of resources on the Sea Ray brand and Séa ¢tmsideration of any adverse effects that tipr@ml would have on the resulting
territory configuration and adjacent or other desakales and the absence of any violation of agipliéclaws or rights granted by Sea Ray to
others.

Our growth strategy also entails expandingmroduct lines and geographic scope by obtainimtitiatal distribution rights from our
existing and new manufacturers. We may not be takdecure additional distribution rights or obtatntable alternative sources of supply if
we are unable to obtain such distribution rightse Thability to expand our product lines and gepgiascope by obtaining additional
distribution rights could have a material adverect on the growth and profitability of our busgse

Boat manufacturers exercise substantial control oveour business.

We depend on our dealer agreements. Througlerdggreements, boat manufacturers, including 8migk, exercise significant control
over their dealers, restrict them to specified fimees, and retain approval rights over changesanagement and ownership, among other
things. The continuation of our dealer agreemeiitts most manufacturers, including Brunswick, dependon, among other things, our
achieving stated goals for customer satisfactitinga and market share penetration in the markeedeby the applicable dealership. Failure
to meet the customer satisfaction, market sharksgaad other conditions set forth in any dealeeament could have various consequences,
including the following:

. the termination of the dealer agreem

. the imposition of additional conditions in subseafudealer agreement

. limitations on boat inventory allocatior

. reductions in reimbursement rates for warranty wmaiormed by the deale
. loss of certain manufacturer to dealer incentige:

. denial of approval of future acquisitior

Our dealer agreements with certain manufactunecluding Brunswick, do not give us the exchastight to sell those manufacturers’
products within a given geographical area. Accaglyina manufacturer, including Brunswick, couldtarize another dealer to start a new
dealership in proximity to one or more of our laoas, or an existing dealer could move a dealerghglocation that would be directly
competitive with us. These events could have a mahtedverse effect on our competitive position éinencial performance.
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The failure to receive rebates and other dealer irentives on inventory purchases could substantialleduce our margins.

We rely on manufacturers’ programs that previttentives for dealers to purchase and sellqdati boat makes and models or for
consumers to buy particular boat makes or modeig.éliminations, reductions, limitations, or otlanges relating to rebate or incentive
programs that have the effect of reducing the benee receive could increase the effective costuwfboat purchases, reduce our margins
and competitive position, and have a material estveffect on our financial performance.

Our growth strategy may require us to secure signi€ant additional capital, the amount of which willdepend upon the size, timing, an
structure of future acquisitions and our working capital and general corporate needs.

If we finance future acquisitions in wholeiompart through the issuance of common stock ourstes convertible into or exercisable for
common stock, existing stockholders will experiedistion in the voting power of their common staakd earnings per share could be
negatively impacted. The extent to which we willdie or willing to use our common stock for acdigas will depend on the market value
of our common stock from time to time and the wihess of potential sellers to accept our commaeksts full or partial consideration. Our
inability to use our common stock as consideratiorgenerate cash from operations, or to obtaiitiadd! funding through debt or equity
financings in order to pursue our acquisition pesgrcould materially limit our growth.

Any borrowings made to finance future acqioss or for operations could make us more vulneraédla downturn in our operating results,
a downturn in economic conditions, or increasasterest rates on borrowings that are subjectterést rate fluctuations. If our cash flow
from operations is insufficient to meet our debt/gge requirements, we could be required to selitaahal equity securities, refinance our
obligations, or dispose of assets in order to mmaetlebt service requirements. In addition, ouditr@rangements contain financial and
operational covenants and other restrictions witictvwe must comply, including limitations on capbiexpenditures and the incurrence of
additional indebtedness. Adequate financing maybeatvailable if and when we need it or may noavslable on terms acceptable to us.
The failure to obtain sufficient financing on faabte terms and conditions could have a materia¢isgveffect on our growth prospects and
our business, financial condition, and resultspdrations.

Our current revolving credit facility providadine of credit with asset-based borrowing avmlity of up to $340 million and allows us
$20 million in traditional floorplan borrowings. Weve pledged certain of our assets, principalbt loventories, to secure borrowings under
our credit facility. While we believe we will contie to obtain adequate financing from lenders, $melmcing may not be available to us.

Our internal growth and operating strategies of opaing new locations and offering new products involg risk.

In addition to pursuing growth by acquiringabdealers, we intend to continue to pursue aestyadf growth through opening new retail
locations and offering new products in our existamgl new territories. Accomplishing these goalssipansion will depend upon a numbe
factors, including the following:

. our ability to identify new markets in which we calbtain distribution rights to sell our existingamtditional product lines
. our ability to lease or construct suitable fa@ktiat a reasonable cost in existing or new mar
. our ability to hire, train, and retain qualifiedrpennel;

. the timely integration of new retail locations ir@risting operations
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. our ability to achieve adequate market penetratdiavorable operating margins without the acqoisiof existing dealers; ar
. our financial resource

Our dealer agreements with Brunswick requinenBwick’s consent to open, close, or change retail locatioat sell Sea Ray products,
other dealer agreements generally contain similavipions. We may not be able to open and opemterstail locations or introduce new
product lines on a timely or profitable basis. Mwrer, the costs associated with opening new reteditions or introducing new product lines
may adversely affect our profitability.

As a result of these growth strategies, wesekf expend significant time and effort in opgnémd acquiring new retail locations and
introducing new products. Our systems, procedwastrols, and financial resources may not be adedoasupport our expanding operatic
The inability to manage our growth effectively cdbtlave a material adverse effect on our busingssjdial condition, and results of
operations.

Our planned growth also will impose signifitadded responsibilities on members of senior mamagt and require us to identify, recr
and integrate additional senior level managersnvig not be able to identify, hire, or train suieabbditions to management.

Our business, as well as the entire recreational lating industry, is highly seasonal, with seasonalitvarying in different geographic
markets. In addition, weather conditions may adversly impact our business.

During the three-year period ended SeptemBeP@05, the average revenue for the quarterlyogsrended December 31, March 31,
June 30, and September 30 represented 19%, 25%,a8tPR5%, respectively, of our average annualmess. With the exception of Florida,
we generally realize significantly lower saleshe fjuarterly periods ending December 31 and Matchi Be onset of the public boat and
recreation shows in January stimulates boat sal@skows us to reduce our inventory levels andtesl shorterm borrowings throughout t
remainder of the fiscal year. Our business couttbb® substantially more seasonal as we acquirerdehiat operate in colder regions of the
United States.

Weather conditions may adversely impact o@rafing results. For example, drought conditioaduced rainfall levels, and excessive rain
may force boating areas to close or render boakimgierous or inconvenient, thereby curtailing custodemand for our products. In
addition, unseasonably cool weather and prolongatewconditions may lead to shorter selling seasorcertain locations. Hurricanes and
other storms could result in the disruption of operations or damage to our boat inventories atititfes as was the case during the 2004
2005 hurricane season when Florida and other nsavkete affected by numerous hurricanes. Many ofleaterships sell boats to customers
for use on reservoirs, thereby subjecting our lassirto the continued viability of these reserviiirdoating use. Although our geographic
diversity and our future geographic expansion meitluce the overall impact on us of adverse weatheditions in any one market area,
weather conditions will continue to represent ptématerial adverse risks to us and our futureraping performance. As a result of the
foregoing and other factors, our operating resolsome future quarters could be below the expiectsbf stock market analysts and
investors.

We face intense competition.

We operate in a highly competitive environmémtaddition to facing competition generally fraran-boating recreation businesses see
to attract discretionary spending dollars, thegational boat industry itself is highly fragmentetl involves intense competition for
customers, product distribution rights, and su#ablail locations, particularly on or near wateysiaCompetition increases during periods of
stagnant industry growth.

We compete primarily with single-location bdaalers and, with respect to sales of marine pactessories, and equipment, with national
specialty marine parts and accessories storedogattailers, sporting goods stores, and masshmaats. Competition among boat dealers is
based on the quality of available products,
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the price and value of the products, and attertbaustomer service. There is significant compatithoth within markets we currently serve
and in new markets that we may enter. We competadh of our markets with retailers of brands atb@nd engines we do not sell in that
market. In addition, several of our competitorpezsally those selling marine equipment and accessaare large national or regional chains
that have substantial financial, marketing, an&ptlsources. Private sales of used boats reprasemtditional source of competition.

Due to various matters, including environmeotacerns, permitting and zoning requirements @wdpetition for waterfront real estate,
some markets in the United States have experiestéucreased waiting list for marina and storagslability. In general, the markets in
which we currently operate are not experiencingamysual difficulties. However, marine retail adhcould be adversely effected in
markets that do not have sufficient marine andagt@availability to satisfy demand.

We depend on income from financing, insurance, anextended service contracts.

A portion of our income results from referfads derived from the placement or marketing oioesr F&I products, consisting of customer
financing, insurance products, and extended sepgdo&acts, the most significant component of wlhigcthe participation and other fees
resulting from our sale of customer financing caats. During fiscal 2005, F&I products accountedapproximately 3.1% of our revenue.

The availability of financing for our boat phiasers and the level of participation and othes fge receive in connection with such
financing depend on the particular agreement batwseand the lender and the current rate envirohrhenders may impose terms in their
boat financing arrangements with us that may baworible to us or our customers, resulting in redudemand for our customer financing
programs and lower participation and other fees.

The reduction of profit margins on sales ofl pgoducts or the lack of demand for or the unalality of these products could have a
material adverse effect on our operating margins.

We depend on key personnel.

Our success depends, in large part, uponahtneiing efforts and abilities of our executivdicgrs. Although we have an employment
agreement with certain of our executive officers,ea@nnot assure that these or other executiverpebwill remain with us. Our expanding
operations may require us to add additional exeeygersonnel in the future. As a result of our déedized operating strategy, we also rely
on the management teams of our operating subsdidn addition, we likely will depend on the semmanagement of any significant
businesses we acquire in the future. The losseoéévices of one or more of these key employeiesdere are able to attract and retain
qualified replacement personnel could adverselgcafbur business.

The products we sell or service may expose us totpotial liability for personal injury or property d amage claims relating to the use of
those products.

Manufacturers of the products we sell gengmathintain product liability insurance. We also ntain third-party product liability
insurance that we believe to be adequate. We magrience claims that are not covered by or thaireescess of our insurance coverage.
The institution of any significant claims againstaould subject us to damages, result in higheramee costs, and harm our business
reputation with potential customers.

Environmental and other regulatory issues may impaicour operations.

Our operations are subject to extensive réigmasupervision, and licensing under various fatjestate, and local statutes, ordinances, anc
regulations. The failure to satisfy those and otkgulatory requirements could have a material esdveffect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

Various federal, state, and local regulatagrecies, including OSHA or the EPA, and similareied and local agencies, have jurisdiction
over the operation of our dealerships, repair itéesl, and other operations, with
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respect to matters such as consumer protectiorkengrsafety, and laws regarding protection ofehgironment, including air, water, and
soil. The EPA recently promulgated emissions regana for outboard marine engines that imposetstriemissions standards for two-cycle,
gasoline outboard marine engines. Emissions frach sagines must be reduced by approximately 75%awéne-year period beginning
with the 1998 model year. Costs of comparable negines, if materially more expensive than previengines, or the inability of our
manufacturers to comply with EPA requirements, dddve a material adverse effect on our busingemdial condition, and results of
operations.

Certain of our facilities own and operate U%drsthe storage of various petroleum products. 88 generally subject to federal, state,
and local laws and regulations that require testimgj upgrading of USTs and remediation of contataghaoils and groundwater resulting
from leaking USTs. In addition, we may be subjectitil liability to third parties for remediatiotosts or other damages if leakage from our
owned or operated USTs migrates onto the propémyhers.

Our business involves the use, handling, ggrand contracting for recycling or disposal afdrdous or toxic substances or wastes,
including environmentally sensitive materials, sastmotor oil, waste motor oil and filters, transsion fluid, antifreeze, freon, waste paint
and lacquer thinner, batteries, solvents, lubrgatgreasing agents, gasoline, and diesel fuetordingly, we are subject to regulation by
federal, state, and local authorities establisimrgstigation and health and environmental qualigndards, and liability related thereto, and
providing penalties for violations of those stari$ar

We also are subject to laws, ordinances, agdlations governing investigation and remediatiboontamination at facilities we operate
to which we send hazardous or toxic substancesastes for treatment, recycling, or disposal. Iriipalar, the Comprehensive Environmei
Response, Compensation and Liability Act, or CERQIrASuperfund,” imposes joint, strict, and sevdiability on

. owners or operators of facilities at, from, or tbigh a release of hazardous substances has occ
. parties who generated hazardous substances thatraleased at such facilities; ¢
. parties who transported or arranged for the trartiapon of hazardous substances to such facili

A majority of states have adopted “Superfund” sedwcomparable to and, in some cases, more sttittggmCERCLA. If we were to be

found to be a responsible party under CERCLA drralar state statute, we could be held liable fbirevestigative and remedial costs
associated with addressing such contaminationddiitian, claims alleging personal injury or progetamage may be brought against us as a
result of alleged exposure to hazardous substaasaling from our operations. In addition, certafrour retail locations are located on
waterways that are subject to federal or state tagslating navigable waters (including oil polartiprevention), fish and wildlife, and other
matters.

Soil and groundwater contamination has beewkito exist at certain properties owned or ledseds. We have also been required and
may in the future be required to remove abovegramtunderground storage tanks containing hazarsldastances or wastes. As to certain
of our properties, specific releases of petrole@velbeen or are in the process of being remediatactordance with state and federal
guidelines. We are monitoring the soil and grourtéwas required by applicable state and federalgimes. We also may have additional
storage tank liability insurance and “Superfundi@age where applicable. Environmental laws andletigns are complex and subject to
frequent change. Compliance with amended, new,aserstringent laws or regulations, more strictriptetations of existing laws, or the
future discovery of environmental conditions maguiee additional expenditures by us, and such ediperes may be material.

Two of the properties we own were historicalbed as gasoline service stations. Remedial asfitbrrespect to prior historical site
activities on these properties has been completaddordance with federal and state law. Also, @our properties are within the bounda
of a “Superfund” site, although neither propertg bhaen identified as a contributor to the contationan the area.
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Additionally, certain states have requirecm@ considering requiring a license in order torafgea recreational boat. These regulations
could discourage potential buyers, thereby limifniyire sales and adversely affecting our busirfesacial condition, and results of
operations.

Fuel prices and supply may affect our business.

All of the recreational boats we sell are pmaeby diesel or gasoline engines. Consequentlintarruption in the supply, or a significant
increase in the price or tax on the sale, of fiieh@egional or national basis could have a matadizerse effect on our sales and operating
results. At various times in the past, diesel @ojjae fuel has been difficult to obtain. The syppl fuels may be interrupted, rationing may
be imposed, or the price of or tax on fuels mayifigantly increase in the future.

We must evaluate goodwill and identifiable intangile assets for impairment annually and we would regmnize an impairment loss if
the carrying amount of goodwill or an identifiableintangible asset exceeds its fair value.

Goodwill and intangible assets represent koess of the purchase price of businesses acquiexdhe fair value of the net tangible assets
acquired at the date of acquisition. We have detexdhthat our most significantly acquired specificadentifiable intangible assets are de:
agreements, which are indefinite-lived intangibles.

Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets accounted for in accordance with Statement adriéial Accounting Standards No. 141,
“Business Combinations” (SFAS 141), and Statemérirmancial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwilld other Intangible
Assets” (SFAS 142). SFAS 141 requires that alltess combinations initiated after June 30, 200adoeunted for using the purchase
method of accounting and identifiable intangibleeds acquired in a business combination be recedrig assets and reported separately
from goodwill. SFAS 142 requires that goodwill andefinitedived intangible assets no longer be amortizedjrsiead tested for impairme
at least annually and whenever events or changesciimstances indicate that the carrying value natybe recoverable. If the carrying
amount of goodwill or an identifiable intangiblesasexceeds its fair value, we would recognizergairment loss. We measure any potel
impairment based on various business valuation adelbgies, including a projected discounted casW finethod. We completed the annual
impairment test during the fourth quarter of fis2805, based on financial information as of thedtlgjuarter of fiscal 2005, which resulted in
no impairment of goodwill or identifiable intangébhassets. To date, we have not recognized any im@ai of goodwill or identifiable
intangible assets. Prior to the adoption of SFAS, Bl purchase price in excess of the tangibletasscquired was recorded as goodwill and
no identifiable intangible assets were recogniit.goodwill and identifiable intangible assets amtato $50.5 million and $5.7 million,
respectively, as of September 30, 2005.

Impairment of goodwill or the identifiable artgible assets or regulatory action that changestpairment testing methodology, requires
amortization, or a write-off of goodwill or idenible intangible assets may materially and advemsééct the financial position of our
company. A reduction in net income resulting frdra impairment of goodwill or identifiable intangébassets may have an adverse impact
upon the market price of our common stock.

The market price of our common stock could be subj to wide fluctuations as a result of many factors
Factors that could affect the trading priceaf common stock include the following:
. variations in operating resuli
. the thin trading volume and relatively small pulfl@at of our common stocl

. the level and success of our acquisition prograchreaw store opening
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. variations in sarr-store sales

. the success of dealership integrati

. relationships with manufacturel

. changes in earnings estimates published by ana

. general economic, political, and market conditic

. seasonality and weather conditio

. governmental policies and regulatio

. the performance of the recreational boat industryaneral; an
. factors relating to suppliers and competiti

In addition, market demand for small-capitatiian stocks, and price and volume fluctuationthastock market unrelated to our
performance could result in significant fluctuagan market price of our common stock. The perfareeaof our common stock could
adversely affect our ability to raise equity in fhgblic markets and adversely affect our acquisipoogram.

The issuance of additional common stock in the fute, including shares that we may issue pursuant toption grants and future
acquisitions, may result in dilution in the net tamgible book value per share of our common stock.

Our board of directors has the legal powerautiority to determine the terms of an offeringléres of our capital stock, or securities
convertible into or exchangeable for these shaoethe extent of our shares of authorized and urigapital stock.

A substantial number of shares are eligible for fulire sale.

As of September 30, 2005, there were outstandy,678,087 shares of our common stock. Subatiyrdil of these shares are freely
tradable without restriction or further registrationder the securities laws, unless held by afifi&e” of our company, as that term is
defined in Rule 144 under the securities laws. &hheld by affiliates of our company, which gergraiclude our directors, officers, and
certain principal stockholders, are subject tordmale limitations of Rule 144 described below.gbarding shares of common stock issued in
connection with the acquisition of any acquiredlelesaare available for resale beginning one yetar #fie respective dates of the acquisitions,
subject to compliance with the provisions of Rud@ Linder the securities laws.

As of September 30, 2005, we had issued atdlamding options to purchase approximately 2,288shares of common stock under our
1998 incentive stock plan and we issued 387,48Ae¥50,000 shares of common stock reserved foaige under our 1998 employee stock
purchase plan. We have filed a registration stat¢meder the securities laws to register the comstock to be issued under these plans. As
a result, shares issued under these plans willdadyftradable without restriction unless acquirgdaffiliates of our company, who will be
subject to the volume and other limitations of R1Ad.

We may issue additional shares of common sbogkeferred stock under the securities laws asgbany acquisition we may complete in
the future. If issued pursuant to an effectivesergtion statement, these shares generally wiltdedy tradable after their issuance by persons
not affiliated with us or the acquired companies.
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We rely on our operating subsidiaries.

We are a holding company, the principal assktghich are the shares of the capital stock omimership interests of our corporate or
limited liability company subsidiaries, includiniget operating subsidiaries. As a holding companfiauit independent means of generating
operating revenue, we depend on dividends and pthenents from our subsidiaries to fund our oblayret and meet our cash needs.
Financial covenants under future loan agreemensio$ubsidiaries may limit our subsidiaries’ algitio make sufficient dividend or other
payments to permit us to fund our obligations oetrar cash needs, in whole or in part.

We do not pay cash dividends.

We have never paid cash dividends on our comstack and do not anticipate paying cash dividemdise foreseeable future. Moreover,
financial covenants under certain of our creditliites restrict our ability to pay dividends.

Our stockholders’ rights plan may adversely affecexisting stockholders.

Our Stockholders’ Rights Plan may have theatfbf deterring, delaying, or preventing a chaingeontrol that might otherwise be in the
best interests of our stockholders. Under the Riftin, we issued a dividend of one Preferred SPiarehase Right for each share of our
common stock held by stockholders of record asi@fctose of business on September 7, 2001.

In general, subject to certain limited exceps, the stock purchase rights become exercisaida & person or group acquires 15% or r
of our common stock or a tender offer or excharfégr éor 15% or more of our common stock is annadcor commenced. After any such
event, our other stockholders may purchase additsimares of our common stock at 50% of the therentimarket price. The rights will
cause substantial dilution to a person or groupatiampts to acquire us on terms not approvedupyoard of directors. The rights may be
redeemed by us at $0.01 per stock purchase rigttyatime before any person or group acquires 1686ave of our outstanding common
stock. The rights should not interfere with any geeror other business combination approved by oardof directors. The rights expire on
August 28, 2011.

Certain provisions of our restated certificate of hcorporation and bylaws and Delaware law may make ahange in the control of our
company more difficult to complete, even if a changin control were in the stockholders’ interest omight result in a premium over
the market price for the shares held by the stockHders.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylawside the board of directors into three classesafctbrs elected for staggered three-year
terms. The certificate of incorporation also pr@sdhat the board of directors may authorize thieaisce of one or more series of preferred
stock from time to time and may determine the sghteferences, privileges, and restrictions axnth& number of shares of any such series
of preferred stock, without any vote or action hby stockholders. The board of directors may auteotfie issuance of preferred stock with
voting or conversion rights that could adversefgefthe voting power or other rights of the hofdef common stock. The certificate of
incorporation also allows our board of directorgixahe number of directors and to fill vacanc@sthe board of directors.

We also are subject to the anti-takeover gions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Catpmn Law, which prohibits us from
engaging in a “business combination” with an “ietted stockholder” for a period of three yearsrdfte date of the transaction in which the
person became an “interested stockholder,” unlessasiness combination is approved in a prescrifether.

Certain of our dealer agreements could alskentadifficult for a third party to attempt to adgige a significant ownership position in our
company. In addition, the stockholders’ agreemadtgovernance agreement will have the effect akiasing the control of our directors,
executive officers, and persons associated wittnthe
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Our sales of Ferretti Group product may be adversel affected by fluctuations in currency exchange ras between the U.S. dollar and
the Euro.

Products purchased from the ltaly-based Refebup are subject to fluctuations in the EurdJt®. dollar exchange rate, which ultimately
may impact the retail price at which we can sethsproducts. Accordingly, fluctuations in the vabfe¢he Euro as compared with the U.S.
dollar may impact the price points at which we sel profitably Ferretti Group products, and sudicgpoints may not be competitive with
other product lines in the United States. Accorljinguch fluctuations in exchange rates ultimatey impact the amount of revenue, cost of
goods sold, cash flows, and earnings we recogoizthé Ferretti Group product line. The impactha#de currency fluctuations could incre:
particularly as our revenue from the Ferretti Grpopducts increase as a percentage of our totahte: We cannot predict the effects of
exchange rate fluctuations on our operating resdlesare not currently engaged in any foreign awayeexchange hedging transactions to
manage our foreign currency exposure that coule laasignificant impact on our operations. If ancewlve do engage in material foreign
currency exchange hedging transactions, we carssora@ that our strategies will adequately protactoperating results from the effects of
exchange rate fluctuations.

Item 2. Properties

We lease our corporate offices in Clearwdttarida. We also lease 43 of our retail locationder leases, many of which contain multi-
year renewal options and some of which grant uisarfght of refusal to purchase the propertyadt ¥alue. In most cases, we pay a fixed
at negotiated rates. In substantially all of thestl locations, we are responsible for taxestiesijiinsurance, and routine repairs and
maintenance. We own the property associated witl28wther retail locations.

The following table reflects the status, apprate size, and facilities of our various retaitdtions as of the date of this report.

Square Operated

Location Owned or Leased Footage(l) Facilities at Property Since(2) Waterfront
Alabama
Gulf Shores Company owne 4,000 Retail and servic 1998 —
Arizona
Tempe Company owne 34,00( Retail and servic 1992 —
California
Newport Beact Third-party leas 1,900 Retail only; 16 wetslip 2005 Newport Bay
Oakland Third-party leas 17,70( Retail and service; 20 wetslips 1985 Alameda Estuary (San

Francisco Bay
Santa Ros Company owne 8,100 Retail and servic 1990 —
Sacramentt Company owne 24,80( Retail and servic 1995 —
San Diegc Third-party leas 9,500 Retail and servic 2004 —
San Diegc Third-party leas 750 Retail and service; 12 wet sli 1997  Mission Bay
Tower Park (near San Francisi Third-party leas 400 Retail only 1999 Sacramento Rive
Colorado
Denver Third-party leas 16,40( Retail, service, and stora 2003 —
Grand Junctiol Third-party leas 9,300 Retail, service, and stora 1986 —

36




Table of Contents

Square Operated
Location Owned or Leased Footage(l) Facilities at Property Since(2) Waterfront
Delaware
Bear Third-party leas 5,000 Retail and service; 15 wet slips 1995  Between Delaware Bay and
Chesapeake Bz
Florida
Cape Haze Company owne 18,00( Retail, service, and storage; 8 w¢ 1972 Intracoastal Waterway
slips
Clearwatel Company owne 42,00( Retail and service; 16 wet sli 1973 Tampa Bay
Cocoa Company owne 15,00( Retail and servic 1968 —
Coconut Grove Third-party leas 2,000 Retail only; 24 wet slip 2002 Biscayne Bay
Dania Company owne 32,00( Repair and service; 16 wet sli 1991 Port Everglade
Destin Third-party leas 2,178 Retail only; 8 wet slip: 2005 Destin Harbol
Ft Lauderdal¢ Third-party leas 2,400 Retail and service; 12 wet sli 1977 Intracoastal Waterwa
Ft Lauderdal¢ Third-party leas 3,800 Retail only; 4 wet slip: 2002 Seminole Rive
Fort Myers Third-party leas 8,000 Retail and service; 18 wet sli 1983 Caloosahatchee Riv
Ft Walton Beacl Third-party leas 4,800 Retail only 2003 —
Key Largo Third-party leas 750 Retail only 2002 —
Jacksonville Company owne 15,00( Retail and servic 2004 —
Jacksonville Third-party leas 1,000 Retail only; 7 wet slip: 1995 St Johns Rive
Miami Company owne 7,200 Retail and service; I5 wet slij 1980 Intracoastal Waterwa
Naples Company owne 19,60( Retail and service; 14 wet sli 1997 Naples Bay
Palm Beact Company owne 22,80( Retail and service; 8 wet sli| 1998 Intracoastal Waterwa
Pensacol; Third-party leas 24,30( Retail and servic 1974 —
Pompano Beac Company owne 23,00( Retail and service; 16 wet sli 1990 Intracoastal Waterwa
Pompano Beac Company owne 5,376 Retail only; 24 wet slip 2005 Intracoastal Waterwa
Sarasota Thirgharty leas 26,50( Retall, service, and storage; 15 wéo72 Sarasota Bay
slips
Stuart Company owne 22,40( Retail and service; 6 wet sli| 2002 Intracoastal Waterwa
Stuart Company owne 6,700 Retail and service; 60 wet sli 1994 Intracoastal Waterwa
Tampa Company owne 13,10( Retail and servic 1995 —
Venice Company owne 62,00( Retall, service, and storage; 90 w972 Intracoastal Waterway
slips
Georgia
Altoona Third-party leas 8,800 Retail and service; 4 wet sli 2002 Lake Altoona
Buford (Atlanta) Company owne 13,50( Retail and servic 2001 —
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Square Operated

Location Owned or Leased Footage(l Facilities at Property Since(2) Waterfront
Cumming (Atlanta Third-party leas 13,000 Retail and service; 50 wet sli 1981 Lake Laniel
Forest Park (Atlante Third-party leas 47,300 Retail, service, and stora 1973 —
Maryland
Baltimore Third-party leas 500 Retail only; 6 wet slip: 2005 Inner Harbol
Baltimore Company owne 19,800 Retail and servic 1958 —
Chesapeake Bay Company owne 28,400 Retail, service, and storage; 294 1966  Gunpowder River

wet slips
Minnesota
Bay Port Third-party leas 450 Retail only; 10 wet slip 1996 St Croix River
Oakdale Third-party leas 18,500 Retail and servic 1997 —
Rogers Company owne 70,000 Retail, service, and stora 1991 —
Walker Company owne 76,400 Retail, service, and stora 1989 —
Walker Company owne 6,800 Retail and service; 93 wet sli 1977 Leech Lake
Nevada
Las Vegas Company owne 21,600 Retail and servic 1990 —
New Jersey
Brick Company owne 20,000 Retail and service; 225 wet sli 1977 Manasquan Rive
Brant Beact Third-party leas 3,800 Retail and service; 36 wet sli 1965 Barnegat Ba
Greenbroo} Third-party leas 18,500 Retail and servic 1995 —
Jersey City Third-party leas 500 Retail only; 6 wet slip: 2000  Hudson Rivel
Lake Hopatcon Third-party leas 4,600 Retail and service; 80 wet sli 1998 Lake Hopatcon
Ship Bottom Third-party leas 19,300 Retail and servic 1972 —
Somers Poin Affiliate lease 31,000 Retail and service; 33 wet sli 1987 Little Egg Harbor Bay
North Carolina
Wrightsville Beack Third-party leas 34,500 Retail, service, and stora 1996 Intracoastal Waterwa
Ohio
Cleveland (Flats Third-party leas 19,000 Retail and servic 1999 Lake Erie
Port Clinton Thirdparty leas 63,700 Retail, service, and storage; 155 1974 Lake Erie

wet slips
Port Clinton Third-party leas 93,300 Retail, service, and stora 1997 Lake Erie
Toledo Third-party leas 12,200 Retail and servic 1989 —
South Carolina
Myrtle Beach Third-party leas 3,500 Retail only 1999  Coquina Harbo

Tennesset
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Square Operated
Location Owned or Leased Footage(l Facilities at Property Since(2) Waterfront
Chattanoogi Third-party leas 3,000  Retail only; 12 wet slip 2005 Tennessee Rive
Texas
Arlington Third-party leas 31,000 Retail and servic 1999 —
Houston Third-party leas 10,000 Retail only (3) 1987 —
Houston Third-party leas 10,000 Retail and servic 1981 —

League City (floating facility)  Third-party leas 800 Retail and service; 20 wet slips 1988  Clear Lake
4)

Lewisville (Dallas) Company owne 22,000 Retail and servic 1992 —

Lewisville (Dallas) (floating Third-party leas 500 Retail only; 20 wet slips (5) 1994  Lake Lewisville
facility)

Seabrool Company owne 32,000 Retail and service; 30 wet sli 2002  Clear Lake

Utah

Salt Lake City Third-party leas 21,200 Retail and servic 1975 —

(1) Square footage is approximate and does not in@utiide sales space or dock or marina facili

(2) Operated since date is the date the facility waneg by us or opened prior to its acquisition hy

(3) Shares service facility located at the other Hausédail locations

(4) We own the floating facility, however, the relatock and marina space is leased by us from aniliatefd third party
(5) Shares service facility located at the other Leillesvetail location.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are party to various legal actions arismthe ordinary course of business. With the ekoemf a single lawsuit award that we are
currently appealing, the ultimate liability, if argssociated with these matters was not deterngrat$eptember 30, 2005. However, base
information available at September 30, 2005 surnmmthe single lawsuit award that we are curreafipealing, we increased our accrued
litigation expense by approximately $1.7 millionhi¢ it is not feasible to determine the outcom¢hee actions at this time, we do not
believe that these matters will have a materiakasky effect on our consolidated financial conditi@sults of operations, or cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Relat&lockholder Matters and Issuer Repurchases of Egutecurities

Our common stock has been traded on the Newk Stwck Exchange under the symbol HZO since aitiaipublic offering on June 3,
1998 at $12.50 per share. The following table f®th high and low sale prices of the common stimeleach calendar quarter indicated as
reported on the New York Stock Exchange.

High Low

2003

First quartel $13.0¢ $ 8.67

Second quarte $14.5( $ 9.02

Third quartel $15.4¢ $12.62

Fourth quarte $19.9( $14.3¢
2004

First quartel $28.3¢ $18.1(

Second quarte $32.0¢ $23.5¢

Third quartel $28.5¢ $18.0¢

Fourth quarte $30.5¢ $21.5(
2005

First quartel $35.1¢ $27.51

Second quarte $31.77 $23.9¢

Third quartel $35.8¢ $21.5(

Fourth quarter (through November 30, 20 $29.5¢ $22.3¢

On November 30, 2005, the closing sale prfaauo common stock was $26.26 per share. On Nove®M®e2005, there were
approximately 100 record holders and approximatedp0 beneficial owners of our common stock.
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table contains certain finan@ald operating data and is qualified by the motailbel consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto included elsewhere in this reporé Gdlance sheet data as of September 30, 2002, 2008, and 2005 and the statement of
operations data for the fiscal years ended Septe&ihe2002, 2003, 2004, and 2005 were derived ttmrconsolidated financial statements
and notes thereto that have been audited by Er¥aiuiag LLP, an independent registered certifiedlipiccounting firm. The balance sheet
data as of September 30, 2001 and the statemeapeddtions data for the fiscal year ended SepteB8®e2001 were derived from the
consolidated financial statements and notes théhnetchave been audited by Arthur Andersen LLPegpmhdent certified public accountants.
The financial data shown below should be read imjwtction with the consolidated financial statensesmid the related notes thereto and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations” included elsere in this report.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
(amounts in thousands except share and per share tdg

Statement of Operations Data

Revenue $ 504,07: $ 540,71 $ 607,50: $ 762,00 $ 947,34
Cost of sale: 383,98 416,13 459,72! 573,61t 712,841
Gross profit 120,08 124,57! 147,77. 188,39: 234,50:
Selling, general, and administrative exper 92,73¢ 95,56 113,29¢ 139,47( 169,97!
Income from operatior 27,35 29,01: 34,47: 48,92 64,52¢
Interest expense, n 2,39¢€ 1,264 2,471 6,49¢ 9,291
Income before income tax provisi 24,957 27,74¢ 32,00: 42,42 55,23¢
Income tax provisiol 9,60¢ 10,68 12,32: 16,12¢ 21,41
Net income $  15,34¢ $ 17,06 $ 19,68 $  26,29¢ $  33,82¢
Net income per shar

Diluted $ 1.01 $ 1.1C $ 1.2¢ $ 1.5¢ $ 1.8¢
Weighted average number of shai

Diluted 15,238,71 15,540,97 15,671,47 16,666,10 18,032,53
Other Data: (as of yea-end)
Number of retail locations (: 53 58 65 67 71
Sales per store (2) (: $ 12,38 $ 12,27 $  11,90( $ 12,83 $ 16,38¢
Same-store sales growth (3) (: (9)% 3% 6% 21% 23%

September 30,
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital $ 47,44° $ 55,42¢ $ 67,00: $ 88,01: $163,43:
Total asset 264,49( 301,14¢ 329,15! 474,35¢ 539,49(
Long-term debt (including current portion) ( 8,64( 21,76¢ 22,34 26,237 30,08t
Total stockholder' equity 127,69: 145,19( 166,05¢ 196,82: 283,59¢

(1) Includes only those retail locations open at peend.

(2) Includes only those stores open for the entireqating 1:-month period

(3) New and acquired stores are included in the corbpatemse at the end of the s’s thirteenth month of operatior
(4) A store is one or more retail locations that aja@eht or operate as one ent

(5) Amount excludes our shterm borrowings for working capital and inventonyancing.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

We are the largest recreational boat retailéne United States with fiscal 2005 revenue edep$947 million. Through our current 71
retail locations in 17 states, we sell new and wsetkational boats and related marine produatjding engines, trailers, parts, and
accessories. We also arrange related boat finanicisigrance, and extended warranty contracts; geowdat repair and maintenance services;
and offer yacht and boat brokerage services, aretevvailable, offer slip and storage accommodation

MarineMax was incorporated in January 1998.a6educted no operations until the acquisitioniad fndependent recreational boat
dealers on March 1, 1998. Since the initial acgjoiss in March 1998, we have significantly expandead operations through the acquisition
of 18 recreational boat dealers, two boat brokeoggations, and one full-service yacht repairlitgciAs a part of our acquisition strategy,
we frequently engage in discussions with variogsa@tional boat dealers regarding their potentiglasition by us. Potential acquisition
discussions frequently take place over a long pesfdime and involve difficult business integratiand other issues, including in some ce
management succession and related matters. Asllaotthese and other factors, a number of paaéatquisitions that from time to time
appear likely to occur do not result in bindingdeggreements and are not consummated. The folipar@ the acquisitions we have
completed during the fiscal years ending SepterB®e2004 and 2003. No significant acquisitions wempleted during the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2005.

During the fiscal year ended September 3042@@ completed the acquisition of three recreafiboat dealers. During June 2004, we
acquired substantially all of the assets, includiza) estate, and assumed certain liabilities gfdrial Marine (Imperial), a privately held boat
dealership with locations in Baltimore and the herh Chesapeake area of Maryland, for approxim&@Ig million in cash, including
acquisition costs. Imperial operates a highwaytionaand a marina on the Gunpowder River. The aitippim expands our ability to serve
consumers in the Mid-Atlantic United States boatingymunity. Additionally, the acquisition allows tgscapitalize on Imperial's market
position and leverage our inventory managemenirarghtory financing resources over the acquireations. The acquisition resulted in the
recognition of approximately $1.1 million in taxdiectible goodwill, including acquisition costs, aapproximately $580,000 in tax deduct
indefinite-lived intangible assets (dealer agreemsjetmperial has been included in our consolidditeahcial statements since the date of
acquisition.

During June 2004, we purchased inventory amthin equipment and assumed certain liabilitiemfthe previous Jacksonville, Florida-
based Sea Ray dealer (Jacksonville) for the spart dnd sport cruiser product lines for approxifya8800,000 in cash, including acquisition
costs. The purchase enhanced our ability to sers®mers in the northeast Florida boating communytgdding the sport boat and sport
cruiser product lines to our existing Sea Ray pebdéferings. The acquisition resulted in the ratitign of approximately $240,000 in tax
deductible goodwill, including acquisition costagaapproximately $450,000 in tax deductible indédilived intangible assets (dealer
agreements). Jacksonville has been included icansolidated financial statements since the dasegdisition.

During October 2003, we acquired substantilllpf the assets and assumed certain liabildfedsmarine International, Inc. and Steven
Myers, Inc. (Emarine), a privately held boat destigy located in Fort Lauderdale, Florida, for apgrately $305,000 in cash. The acquisi
resulted in the recognition of approximately $300,(n tax deductible goodwill, including acquisiticosts. The acquisition provides us with
an established retail location to sell the newfgi@d Ferretti Group products in the southeastidoboating community. The asset purchase
agreement contained an earn out provision baséldeoiuture profits of the location, assuming certzonditions and provisions were met. In
August 2004, the earn out provisions were modifiiidrawing the requirements for any future earhgayments. Emarine has been
included in our consolidated financial statemeiisesthe date of acquisition.

During the fiscal year ended September 30326@ completed the acquisition of two recreatidowt dealers. During September 2003,
we acquired substantially all of the assets andrasd certain liabilities of Killinger Marine Centénc. and Killinger Marine Center of
Alabama, Inc., a privately held boat dealershighvgtcations in
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Ft. Walton Beach and Pensacola, Florida and Guif&h Alabama, for approximately $2.3 million irsbaincluding acquisition costs. The
acquisition resulted in the recognition of approately $600,000 in tax deductible goodwill, inclugliacquisition costs, and approximately
$300,000 in tax deductible indefinite-lived intaloigi assets (dealer agreements). The acquisiticanelspour ability to serve consumers in the
Alabama and Florida panhandle boating communifidslitionally, the acquisition further allows usl&verage our inventory management
and inventory financing resources over the acquoedtions. Killinger Marine has been included ur eonsolidated financial statements
since the date of acquisition.

During June 2003, we acquired substantiallpfaihe assets and assumed certain liabilitieSwfdance Marine, Inc., a privately held boat
dealership with locations in Denver and Grand Jong¢iColorado, for approximately $3.3 million instg including acquisition costs. The
acquisition resulted in the recognition of approatedy $1.7 million in tax deductible goodwill, incing acquisition costs, and approximately
$900,000 in tax deductible indefinite-lived intaloigi assets (dealer agreements). The acquisiticanelgpour ability to serve consumers in the
western United States boating community. Additibnahe acquisition further allows us to leverage mventory management and inventory
financing resources over the acquired locationg. 8$set purchase agreement contains an earn oigipno which will impact the final
purchase price annually, based on the future grofithe region through September 2008, assumirigieeconditions and provisions are met.
Based on these conditions and provisions, apprdri;n&200,000 has been earned through fiscal 2B0Bdance Marine has been include
our consolidated financial statements since the dathe acquisition.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

We have identified the policies below as caitito our business operations and the understgrdiaur results of operations. The impact
and risks related to these policies on our businpssgations is discussed throughout Managemenssussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations when such fgdiaffect our reported and expected financialltesu

In the ordinary course of business, we makamber of estimates and assumptions relating toejherting of results of operations and
financial condition in the preparation of our fircgal statements in conformity with accounting piptes generally accepted in the United
States. We base our estimates on historical experiand on various other assumptions that we teeies reasonable under the
circumstances. The results form the basis for ngakidgments about the carrying values of assetdialpitities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results could diffem#figantly from those estimates under differentumsptions and conditions. We believe that
the following discussion addresses our most ctiicaounting policies, which are those that aretriroportant to the portrayal of our
financial condition and results of operations aaguire our most difficult, subjective, and compjedgments, often as a result of the need to
make estimates about the effect of matters thahherently uncertain.

Revenue Recognitio

We recognize revenue from boat, motor, aritktraales and parts, service, and storage opagatibthe time the boat, motor, trailer, or
is delivered to or accepted by the customer oriselis completed. We recognize commissions eanrmad & brokerage sale at the time the
related brokerage transaction closes. We recogaeimnue from slip and storage services on a stréiigghbasis over the term of the slip or
storage agreement. We recognize commissions eagnes for placing notes with financial institutioimsconnection with customer boat
financing when the related boat sales are recogniz& also recognize marketing fees earned ontdifediaccident and disability, and hull
insurance products sold by third-party insurancaanies at the later of customer acceptance dhflugance product as evidenced by
contract execution, or when the related boat saledognized. We also recognize commissions eamnextended warranty service contracts
sold on behalf of third-party insurance compantas later of customer acceptance of the senacéract terms as evidenced by contract
execution, or recognition of the related boat sale.

Certain finance and extended warranty commissand marketing fees on insurance products mapdmged back if a customer
terminates or defaults on the underlying contraithiw a specified period of time. Based upon
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our experience of terminations and defaults, wenta@ a chargeback allowance that was not materialir financial statements taken as a
whole as of September 30, 2004 or 2005. Shouldtsegdiffer materially from our historical experiezs; we would need to modify our
estimate of future chargebacks, which could haweterial adverse effect on our operating margins.

Vendor Consideration Received

In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Taskd~(fITF) of the Financial Accounting Standards Bld&ASB) reached a consensus on
Issue No. 02-16, “Accounting by a Customer (Inahgda Reseller) for Certain Consideration Receivethfa Vendor” (EITF 02-16). EITF
02-16 establishes the accounting standards faettwgnition and measurement of cash considerati@hlyy a vendor to a reseller. EITF 02-
16 is effective for interim period financial statents beginning after December 15, 2002, with eadlyption permitted.

In March 2003, the EITF revised certain prmns of its previously reached conclusions on EOPFL6 and provided additional transitio
guidance. EITF 02-16 does not provide for restatdroereclassification of prior year amounts; ratliterequires prospective application for
new agreements or modifications of existing agregmentered into subsequent to December 31, 20@atermined that EITF 02-16
impacted our accounting for certain consideratereived from vendors beginning July 1, 2003 with ttnewal of and amendments to our
dealer agreements with the manufacturers of owtymts. EITF 02-16 most significantly requires uslssify interest assistance received
from manufacturers as a reduction of inventory eost related cost of sales as opposed to nettenggbistance against our interest expense
incurred with our lenders. Also, based on the negments of our co-op assistance programs from aunufacturers, EITF 02-16 permits the
netting of the assistance against related advagtiskpenses. We adopted EITF 02-16 prospectivelfjsical 2003 during the quarter ended
December 31, 2002. Had we been required to addpf B2-16 at the beginning of fiscal 2003, approxeha$2.9 million of interest
assistance that was originally recorded as a remtuof interest expense would have been accouwteasfa reduction of cost of sales.

Inventories

Inventory costs consist of the amount paiddquire the inventory, net of vendor consideragind purchase discounts, the cost of
equipment added, reconditioning costs, and tramstian costs relating to relocating inventory prioisale. New and used boat, motor, and
trailer inventories are stated at the lower of cdstermined on a specific-identification basisparket. Parts and accessories are stated at th
lower of cost, determined on the first-in, firsttdasis, or market. If the carrying amount of owentory exceeds its fair value, we reduce the
carrying amount to reflect fair value. We utilizerdnistorical experience and current sales tresdbhebasis for our lower of cost or market
analysis. If events occur and market conditionsigbacausing the fair value to fall below carryiredue, further reductions may be required.

Valuation of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We account for goodwill and identifiable ingéiole assets in accordance with Statement of FinhAccounting Standards No. 141,
“Business Combinations” (SFAS 141), and Stateméfirancial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwilld other Intangible
Assets” (SFAS 142). SFAS 141 requires that alltess combinations initiated after June 30, 200adoeunted for using the purchase
method of accounting and identifiable intangibleeds acquired in a business combination be recedrg assets and reported separately
from goodwill. We have determined that our moshiigant acquired identifiable intangible assets dealer agreements, which are
indefinite-lived intangible assets. SFAS 142 reggithat goodwill and indefinite-lived intangiblesats no longer be amortized, but instead
tested for impairment at least annually and whenevents or changes in circumstances indicatettleatarrying value may not be
recoverable. If the carrying amount of goodwillaor identifiable intangible asset exceeds its falue, we would recognize an impairment
loss. We measure any potential impairment baseddaus business valuation methodologies, includimgojected discounted cash flow
method. We completed our last annual impairmentdesng the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, basedinancial information as of the third
quarter of fiscal 2005, which resulted in no impant of goodwill or identifiable intangible assels. date, we have not recognized any
impairment of goodwill or identifiable intangiblesets in the application of SFAS
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142. We will continue to test goodwill and iderdlfie intangible assets for impairment at least aliywand whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying value matybe recoverable. Prior to the adoption of SFA3, &ll purchase price in excess of the

tangible assets was recorded as goodwill and nifiddole intangible assets were recognized. Neidgdll and identifiable intangible assets
amounted to $50.5 million and $5.7 million, respesy, at September 30, 2005.

The most significant estimates used in ourdgolb valuation model include estimates of the fatgrowth in our cash flows and future
working capital needs to support our projected ghoBhould circumstances change causing these ptisasito differ materially than
expected, our goodwill may become impaired, resglin a material adverse effect on our operatinggma.

For a more comprehensive list of our accogngialicies, including those which involve varyinggitees of judgment, see Note 3 —
“Significant Accounting Policies” of Notes to Cotlisiated Financial Statements.

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth certain finaadailata as a percentage of revenue for the peindésated:

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

2003 2004 2005
(amount in thousands)
Revenue $607,50: 100.(% $762,00¢ 100.(% $947,34° 100.(%
Cost of sale: 459,72¢  75.7% 573,61t 75.% 712,847  75.2%
Gross profit 147,77 24.%% 188,39: 24. 1% 234,50¢ 24.&%
Selling, general, and administrative exper 113,29¢ 18.7% 139,47( 18.2% 169,97! 17.%
Income from operatior 34,47 5.7% 48,92 6.4% 64,52¢ 6.6%
Interest expense, n 2,471 0.4% 6,49¢ 0.9% 9,291 1.C%
Income before income tax provisi 32,00z 5.2% 42,42 5.6% 55,23¢ 5.8%
Income tax provisiol 12,32: 2.C% 16,12¢ 2.1% 21,41: 2.2%
Net income $ 19,68: 3.2% $ 26,29¢ 3.5% $ 33,82¢ 3.6%

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2005 Compared &z&li Year Ended September 30, 2004

RevenueRevenue increased $185.3 million, or 24.3%, to $d4fillion for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZm5 from $762.0 million
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004. Bfiticrease, $11.9 million was attributable to esoopened or acquired that were not elic
for inclusion in the comparable-store base and $ili8llion was attributable to a 22.8% growth imguarable-store sales in fiscal 2005. The
increase in comparable-store sales in fiscal 2886lted primarily from an increase of approximatl$0.2 million in boat and yacht sales.
This increase in boat and yacht sales on a comigasédire basis helped generated an increase inuevieom our parts, service, finance, and
insurance products of approximately $13.2 million.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased $46.1 million, or 24.5%$234.5 million for the fiscal year ended Septen@f: 2005 from
$188.4 million for the fiscal year ended Septen8ir2004. Gross profit as a percentage of revamreased to 24.8% in fiscal 2005 from
24.7% in fiscal 2004. This increase was primarityilautable to an increase in gross margins on balgis and improvements in service,
finance, insurance, parts, and brokerage revemurgsh generally yield higher gross margins thantisades. The increase in gross profit was
partially offset by an increase in yacht sales,ovtgenerally yield lower gross margins than bobgssa

Selling, General, and Administrative Expensgeglling, general, and administrative expensesased $30.5 million, or 21.9%, to
$170.0 million for the fiscal year ended Septen:r2005 from $139.5 million for the fiscal yeaded September 30, 2004. Selling,
general, and administrative expenses as a pereeafagvenue decreased approximately 35 basispumirit7.9% for the year ended
September 30, 2005 from 18.3% for the year endeteSwer 30, 2004. The decrease as a percentagessfue was attributable to an
approximate 60 basis point decrease in our comfgsibres selling, general, and administrative egps. This decrease incurred by our
comparable-store locations resulted from the legiagpof our operating expense structure, whichltedun
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decreases in personnel costs and fixed expensepasentage of revenue. These decreases weralpantiset by an approximate

$4.4 million increase in marketing expenses asgetiaith achieving our level of comparable-storesgrowth, the addition and expansion
of various product lines, increases in inventorynenance costs related to support our increasermparablestore sales and the addition :
expansion of various product lines, and an incr@aserr accrued litigation expense related to glsitawsuit award that we are currently
appealing. Additionally, the reduction of the comgide-store expenses was partially offset by areese in expenses associated with stores
opened or acquired that were not eligible for ie@u in the comparable-store base. These openachoired stores generally operate at a
higher expense structure than our other locations.

Interest Expenselnterest expense increased $2.8 million, or 431@%$9.3 million for the fiscal year ended Septem®0, 2005 from
$6.5 million for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZ®4. Interest expense as a percentage of revecngased to 1.0% for fiscal 2005 from
0.9% for fiscal 2004. The increase was primaritgsult of a less favorable interest rate envirortmehich accounted for approximately
$2.2 million of the increase, coupled with an irase in the average borrowings associated withexalving credit facility and mortgages,
which accounted for approximately $600,000.

Income Tax Provisiorincome taxes increased $5.3 million, or 32.8%,2b.8 million for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZ®5 from
$16.1 million for the fiscal year ended Septemt&r2)04 as a result of increased earnings. Oucteféetax rate increased to 38.8% for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2005 from 38.0%hfofiscal year ended September 30, 2004 as b ofsureview of our effective tax rate
calculation for the jurisdictions in which we cuntly operate.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004 Compared sz&li Year Ended September 30, 2003

RevenueRevenue increased $154.5 million, or 25.4%, to $¥6&4llion for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZm4 from $607.5 million
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003. Bfiticrease, $30.1 million was attributable to asoopened or acquired that were not elic
for inclusion in the comparable-store base and $tL24dllion was attributable to a 20.7% growth imguarable-store sales in fiscal 2004. The
increase in comparable-store sales in fiscal 288dlted primarily from an increase of approximatklyl 7.5 million in boat sales, primarily
sales from existing product lines of approximat&hlL.5 million and sales from new product lines atloeer the past 24 months of
approximately $46.0 million. These increases intisatées helped generate increases in sales ofnaurck, insurance, parts, and service
products of approximately $6.9 million.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased $40.6 million, or 27.58$188.4 million for the fiscal year ended Septenfk: 2004 from
$147.8 million for the fiscal year ended Septen:r2003. Gross profit margin as a percentagewafmee increased to 24.7% for fiscal 2004
from 24.3% for fiscal 2003. This increase was prilyiattributable to an increase in smaller, highwargin boat sales, a general increase in
gross profit margins of most categories of boadsadnd incremental improvements in finance, inme@abrokerage, parts, and service
revenues, which generally yield higher gross psdfiin boat sales. Gross profit as a percentagevehue increased by approximately 20
basis points as a result of the implementationl®fB2-16, which requires us to classify interestistance received from manufacturers as a
reduction of inventory cost and related cost ofsals opposed to netting the assistance againstterest expense incurred with our lenders.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expens8glling, general, and administrative expensesased $26.2 million, or 23.1%, to
$139.5 million for the fiscal year ended Septen8r2004 from $113.3 million for the fiscal yeaided September 30, 2003. This increase
was primarily attributable to additional expensasluding marketing, incurred by our comparablerstocations associated with the
comparable-store sales increase and approxima®ély,8$00 to protect and repair our facilities angemtories from hurricanes in fiscal 2004.
Selling, general, and administrative expensesmas@entage of revenue decreased to 18.3% for 28 from 18.7% for fiscal 2003. The
decrease in selling, general, and administratiyeeses as a percentage of revenue was attribtiteddizlitional leveraging of our expense
structure resulting from our comparable-store sale®ase, partially offset by the hurricane relaggpenses and stores opened or acquired
that operate at a higher expense structure thantbar locations.
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Interest Expenselnterest expense increased $4.0 million, or 1%0 1 $6.5 million for the fiscal year ended Septen30, 2004 from
$2.5 million for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZ3. Interest expense as a percentage of revecngased to 0.9% for fiscal 2004 from
0.4% for fiscal 2003. The increase in total intedearges was a result of the implementation offHD2-16, which increased interest expense
by approximately $2.7 million. Additionally, inteseexpense increased by approximately $1.3 midi@a result of additional borrowings
associated with our revolving credit facility andnmgages, partially offset by a more favorableriese rate environment.

Income Tax Provisiorincome taxes increased $3.8 million, or 30.9%,1t6.$ million for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZi®4 from
$12.3 million for the fiscal year ended Septemt&rZ)03 as a result of increased earnings. Oucteféetax rate decreased to 38.0% for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2004 from 38.5%hfofiscal year ended September 30, 2003 as b ofsureview of our effective tax rate
calculation for the jurisdictions in which we cuntly operate.

Quarterly Data and Seasonality

Our business, as well as the entire recrealtiomating industry, is highly seasonal, with seadity varying in different geographic marke
With the exception of Florida, we generally reaksignificantly lower sales and higher levels oféntories, and related shaerm borrowings
in the quarterly periods ending December 31 andch&d.. The onset of the public boat and recreatimws in January stimulates boat sales
and allows us to reduce our inventory levels ateted short-term borrowings throughout the remaimdehe fiscal year. Our business could
become substantially more seasonal as we acquaterdeghat operate in colder regions of the UnBtates.

Our business is also subject to weather pettevhich may adversely affect our results of op@na. For example, drought conditions (or
merely reduced rainfall levels) or excessive raiay close area boating locations or render boa#mgerous or inconvenient, thereby
curtailing customer demand for our products. Initaitl unseasonably cool weather and prolongederiodnditions may lead to a shorter
selling season in certain locations. Hurricanesahdr storms could result in disruptions of ouei@ions or damage to our boat inventories
and facilities, as was the case during the 20042808 hurricane season when Florida and other nsavkere affected by numerous
hurricanes. Although our geographic diversity kely to reduce the overall impact to us of adveveather conditions in any one market area,
these conditions will continue to represent potdnihaterial adverse risks to us and our futurarfaial performance.

The following table sets forth certain unaaditjuarterly financial data for each of our laghéiquarters. The information has been derived
from unaudited financial statements that we beli@fect all adjustments, consisting only of normesdurring adjustments, necessary for the
fair presentation of such quarterly financial imf@tion.
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The operating results for any quarter arenegessarily indicative of the results to be expkébe any future period.

December 31  March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31  March 31, June 30, September 30
2003 2004 2004 2004 2004 2005 2005 2005
(amounts in thousands except share and per share tda

Revenue $ 156,65¢% 202,31t $ 219,72¢$ 183,30'$ 184,18¢$ 228,38:$ 306,14: $ 228,63«
Cost of sale! 121,55¢ 157,16( 164,69 130,20t 140,06 173,36¢ 235,47! 163,93t
Gross profit 35,10( 45,15¢ 55,03¢ 53,09¢ 44,12¢ 55,01¢ 70,66¢ 64,69¢
Selling, general, and

administrative expenst 30,01t 34,26¢ 36,60: 38,58 37,14( 40,92 45,90: 46,01
Income from operatior 5,08t 10,88’ 18,43¢ 14,51t 6,98¢ 14,09t 24,76 18,68’
Interest expens 1,45¢ 1,701 1,70¢ 1,63 2,384 2,704 2,261 1,93¢
Income before income tax

provision 3,62¢ 9,18¢ 16,73( 12,88: 4,60( 11,39 22,49¢ 16,75
Income tax provisiol 1,39¢ 3,531 6,324 4,86¢ 1,771 4,38¢ 8,661 6,59¢
Net income $ 2,23( $ 5,64¢ $ 10,40¢ $ 8,01t $ 2,82¢ $ 7,00¢ $ 13,83 $ 10,15¢
Net income per shar

Diluted $ 0.14 $ 0.3¢4 % 0.61 % 0.4¢ $ 0.17 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.74 $ 0.54
Weighted average number of

shares

Diluted 16,280,36 16,728,84 16,937,50 16,717,80 16,959,02 17,834,52 18,633,25 18,703,95

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash needs are primarily for working caid support operations, including new and useat bad related parts inventories, effaso
liquidity, and growth through acquisitions and ngtare openings. We regularly monitor the agingwfiaventories and current market tre
to evaluate our current and future inventory ne®@ds.also use this evaluation in conjunction with @view of our current and expected
operating performance and expected growth to déterthe adequacy of our financing needs. These astis have historically been
financed with cash generated from operations amdiMngs under our line of credit facility. We cently depend upon dividends and other
payments from our consolidated operating subsiaand our line of credit facility to fund our memt operations and meet our cash needs.
Currently, no agreements exist that restrict thiw fof funds from our operating subsidiaries.

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 20632004, cash provided by operating activities aggoximately $27.2 million and
$21.0 million, respectively. For the fiscal yeaded September 30, 2005, cash used in operatingt@stiapproximated $19.2 million. For t
fiscal year ended September 30, 2003, in additaret income, cash provided by operating activittas due primarily to inventory
management, including the management of invenioanting, and an increase in accounts payabledtreettiming of certain payments to
our manufacturers, partially offset by an increiasaccounts receivable due to increased revenwesh€ fiscal year ended September 30,
2004, in addition to net income, cash provided pgrating activities was due primarily to an inceasaccounts payable due to the timing of
certain payments to our manufacturers, and anasera customer deposits, partially offset by @ndase in inventories to ensure appropriate
inventory levels. For the fiscal year ended Sep&m30, 2005, cash used in operating activities duesprimarily to repayments on our short-
term borrowings as a result of the use of procémais the issuance of common shares through theuaepf005 public offering and a
decrease in accounts payable due to the timingrtdio payments to our manufacturers, partiallgeifby net income, inventory managerr
including the management of inventory financingsbiort-term borrowings, and an increase in custateposits.

For the fiscal years ended September 30, Z00®, and 2005, cash used in investing actiwtias approximately $19.4 million,
$20.2 million, and $17.9 million, respectively. Rbe fiscal years ended September 30, 2003 and 2884 used in investing activities was
primarily used in business acquisitions and to pase property and equipment associated with oper@ngretail facilities or improving and
relocating existing retail facilities. For the fidg/ear ended September 30, 2005 cash used irtimyestivities was primarily used to
purchase property and equipment associated withiog@ew retail facilities or improving and reloicet existing retail facilities.
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For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2€8xh used in financing activities approximated $iiléon. For the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2004 and 2005, cash provided bydingractivities was approximately $3.8 million ab40.3 million, respectively. For the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2003, cash udethircing activities was primarily attributablerepayments of long-term debt, partially
offset by proceeds from common shares issued upoaxercise of stock options and under the empleias purchase plan. For the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2004, cash provided agding activities was primarily attributable to peeds from borrowings on lo-term
debt on equipment and real estate acquired, armeds from common shares issued upon the exeffcisect options and under the
employee stock purchase plan, partially offsetdpayments of long-term debt. For the fiscal yealedrSeptember 30, 2005, cash provided
by financing activities was primarily attributatite proceeds from common shares issued throughebrigry 2005 public offering, upon the
exercise of stock options, and stock purchasesrimdeemployee stock purchase plan, partially offiserepayments of long-term debt.

As of September 30, 2005, our indebtednestettpproximately $180.1 million, of which appmstely $30.1 million was associated
with our real estate holdings and $150.0 milliorsvaasociated with financing our inventory and wogktapital needs.

During February 2005, we entered into an aredrahd restated credit and security agreementfedthfinancial institutions. The credit
facility provides us a line of credit with assetsbd borrowing availability of up to $340 millionrfavorking capital inventory financing, with
the amount of permissible borrowings determinedpant to a borrowing base formula. The credit iigcéllso permits approved-vendor
floorplan borrowings of up to $20 million. The crefhcility accrues interest at the London Interb®ffered Rate (LIBOR) plus 150 to 260
basis points, with the interest rate based upomatie of our net outstanding borrowings to ourgiife net worth. The credit facility is
secured by our inventory, accounts receivable,pgent, furniture, and fixtures. The credit faciligquires us to satisfy certain covenants,
including maintaining a leverage ratio tied to tamgible net worth. The credit facility maturesMiarch 2008, with two one-year renewal
options remaining. As of September 30, 2005, weevirecompliance with all of the credit facility cewants.

Prior to the February 2005 amended and rektatalit and security agreement, our line of crpoivided us with asset based borrowing
availability of up to $260 million for working cajai and inventory financing and permitted $20 ruoillin approved-vendor floorplan
borrowings, all of which were determined pursuana borrowing base formula. The facility bore ist&trat LIBOR plus 175 to 260 basis
points, which was determined in accordance witleddPmance Pricing grid, as defined in the credliflity. The credit facility required us to
satisfy certain covenants, including maintainirtgragible net worth ratio.

During the fiscal years ended September 3032R004, and 2005, we completed the acquisitidivefmarine retail operations. We
acquired the net assets, related property, andibgg and assumed or retired certain liabilitiesluding the outstanding floorplan obligations
related to new boat inventories, for approximag&lg.1 million in cash, including acquisition costs.

Except as specified in this “Management’s D&ston and Analysis of Financial Condition, and Rssof Operations” and in our
consolidated financial statements, we have no mehtymmitments for capital for the next 12 mont& believe that our existing capital
resources will be sufficient to finance our opemasi for at least the next 12 months, except fosiptes significant acquisitions.
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Contractual Commitments and Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth a summary of material contractual obligations and commerctahmitments as of September 30, 2005:

Year Ending Line of Long-Term Operating
September 30, Credit Debt Leases Total
(amounts in thousands)

2006 $150,00( $ 4,63¢ $ 6,75¢ $161,39:
2007 — 3,53¢ 6,72¢ 10,26¢
2008 — 3,42¢ 5,161 8,59¢
2009 — 3,52 2,03¢ 5,55¢
2010 — 3,58¢ 1,00¢ 4,59:
Thereafte — 11,37¢ 927 12,30:
Total $150,00( $30,08¢ $22,62¢ $202,71!

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

At September 30, 2005, approximately 94.9%uwfshort- and long-term debt bore interest ataldei rates, generally tied to a reference
rate such as the LIBOR rate or the prime rate tefr@st of certain banks. Changes in interest @tdsans from these financial institutions
could affect our earnings as a result of interatgs charged on certain underlying obligations éhatvariable. At September 30, 2005, a
hypothetical 100 basis point increase in interats on our variable rate obligations would hasgelted in an increase of approximately
$1.7 million in annual pre-tax interest expensdasHstimated increase is based upon the outstabdiagces of all of our variable rate
obligations and assumes no mitigating changes g teduce the outstanding balances or additioniatést assistance that would be received
from vendors due to the hypothetical interest iratecase.

Products purchased from the ltaly-based Refebup are subject to fluctuations in the EurdJt®. dollar exchange rate, which ultimately
may impact the retail price at which we can sethsproducts. Accordingly, fluctuations in the vabfe¢he Euro as compared with the U.S.
dollar may impact the price points at which we salt profitably Ferretti Group products, and sucieg@points may not be competitive with
other product lines in the United States. Accorljinguch fluctuations in exchange rates ultimateby impact the amount of revenue, cost of
goods sold, cash flows, and earnings we recognizthé Ferretti Group product line. We cannot pretlie effects of exchange rate
fluctuations on our operating results. We are notently engaged in any foreign currency excharggging transactions to manage our
foreign currency exposure that could have a sigaifi impact on our operations. If and when we dyage in material foreign currency
exchange hedging transactions, we cannot assureuhatrategies will adequately protect our opegatesults from the effects of exchange
rate fluctuations.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Reference is made to the financial statemémesnotes thereto, and the report thereon, comimgin page F-1 of this report, which
financial statement, notes, and report are incatgdrherein by reference.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by tkjsart, an evaluation was carried out under thersigien and with the participation of the
Company’s management, including its Chief Execufticer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effaeness of the design and operation of
the Company’s disclosure controls and proceduresl€fined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) undeB#turities and Exchange Act of
1934, as amended). Based upon that evaluatioGhihed Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offiamwncluded that, as of the end of such
period, the Company’s disclosure controls and pfooes were effective in timely alerting them to em&tl information relating to the
Company (including its consolidated subsidiariesjuired to be included in the Company'’s periodi€Si#ings. There were no significant
changes in the Company’s internal controls or ireofactors that could significantly affect thesatrols subsequent to the date of their
evaluation.

Management’s Report on Internal Control oveiiriancial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishirdyraaintaining adequate internal control over finaheporting, as such term is defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act @d4.9Jnder the supervision and with the participatd the Company’s management,
including its principal executive officer and pripal financial officer, the Company conducted aalesation of the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of September 30, 2005 as required by the Siesuixchange Act of 1934 Rule 13a-15
(c). In making this assessment, the Company usedriteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsofrganizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) iternal Control — Integrated FrameworBased on its evaluation, management concludedtthiaiternal control
over financial reporting was effective as of Segient30, 2005.

Management’s assessment of the effectivesfebe Company’s internal control over financigboeting as of September 30, 2005 has
been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independegistered public accounting firm, as stated inrtteport which appears belo
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
MarineMax, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, inclodbd accompanying ManagemenReport on Internal Control over Financial Repay,
that MarineMax, Inc. maintained effective internahtrol over financial reporting as of SeptemberZm5, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued byG@oenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission (the COSO
criteria). MarineMax, Incs management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and its assessme

of the effectiveness of internal control over fingh reporting. Our responsibility is to expressogainion on management’s assessment and al
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s mmaécontrol over financial reporting based on cudit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq@nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordwer financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluatirtpiign and operating effectiveness of internatrobrand performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the @tanoes. We believe that our audit provides a redde basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesamssuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttiegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over firgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (8jige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@izé statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadégbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that MdameInc. maintained effective internal control ofi@ancial reporting as of
September 30, 2005, is fairly stated, in all matae@spects, based on the COSO criteria. Alsouiropinion, MarineMax, Inc. maintained, in
all material respects, effective internal contreéofinancial reporting as of September 30, 20@s¢ed on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdi the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of MarineMax, Inc. as of Septembe2@5 and 2004, and the related consolidatedmstatts of operations, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the three y&atlse period ended September 30, 2005 of MarineMax and our report dated Decembe
2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNSTY&®UNG LLP

Tampa, Florida,
December 8, 2005

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.
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PART 1lI

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this Item relattagour directors is incorporated herein by refeesto the definitive Proxy Statement to be
filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchangé f&c our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Tihf®rmation required by this Item
relating to our executive officers included in “Busss — Executive Officers.”
Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive PrSigtement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2006 AahMeeting of Stockholders.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners afinagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive PrBigtement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2006 AahMeeting of Stockholders.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive PrSigtement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2006 AahMeeting of Stockholders.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is ingorated herein by reference to the definitive PrSigtement to be filled pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2006 AahMeeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement &edules

(1) Financial Statements are listed in theelntb Consolidated Financial Statements on pag®fis report.

(2) No financial statement schedules are thefllbecause such schedules are not applicablegtrequired, or because required
information is included in the consolidated finarl@tatements or notes thereto.

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Exhibit

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Regist, including all amendments to date

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrar

3.3 Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Rapiting Preferred Stock (

4.1 Specimen of Common Stock Certificate

4.2 gi)ghts Agreement, dated August 28, 2001 betweersRagt and American Stock Transfer & Trust CompasyRights Agent

10.1(a) ?gzrger Agreement between Registrant and its adgpnssubsidiary and Bassett Boat Company of Flosidd Richard Bassett

10.1(b) Merger Agreement between Registrant and its adgprissubsidiary and 11502 Dumas, Inc. d/b/a LousdHomme Marine and
its stockholders (1

10.1(c) Merger Agreement between Registrant and its adgqnssubsidiary and Gulfwind USA, Inc. and its dtbolders (1

10.1(d) Merger Agreement between Registrant and its adgqnissubsidiary and Gulfwind South, Inc. and isc&holders (1

10.1(e) Merger Agreement between Registrant and its adgqrissubsidiary and Harris’'s Boat Center, Inc. and its stockholders

10.1(F) Merger Agreement between Registrant and its adiqnissubsidiary and Harrison’s Marine Centers aéna, Inc. and its
stockholders (1

10.1(g) Merger Agreement between Registrant and its adgqnissubsidiary and Stovall Marine, Inc. and isckholders (1

10.1(h) Agreement of Merger and Plan of Reorganizationdlageof the 7th day of July, 1998 by and among hvliax, Inc., C & N
Acquisition Corp. (a subsidiary of MarineMax, Ind) & N Marine Corporation and the Stockholders adrtherein (2

10.1(i) Agreement of Merger and Plan of Reorganizationdlateof the 7th day of July, 1998 by and among i\iax, Inc.,
Cochrans Acquisition Corp. (a subsidiary of Marireelinc.), Cochrans Marine, Inc. and the Stockhslaamed therein (.

10.1()) Asset Purchase Agreement between Registrant argdne Cove Marina, Inc. (

10.2(a) Contribution Agreement between Registrant and BaBaat Company and its owner (

10.2(b) Contribution Agreement between Registrant and BaBsalty, L.L.C. and its owner (.

10.2(c) Contribution Agreement between Registrant and Gativbouth Realty, L.L.C. and its owners

10.2(d) Contribution Agreement between Registrant and Har's Realty, L.L.C. and its owners (

10.2(e) Contribution Agreement between Registrant and KHar's Realty California, L.L.C. and its owners

10.3(e) Employment Agreement between Registrant and WilllhnMcGill Jr. (9)

10.3(f) Employment Agreement between Registrant and MicHa&dlcLamb (9)

10.3(g)

Employment Agreement dated August 18, 2004 betvirRagistrant and Michael H. McLan



10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

1998 Incentive Stock Plan, as amended through Nbeertb, 2000 (8
1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Settlement Agreement between Brunswick Corporatitth Registrant (1

Letter of Intent between Registrant and Stovall
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Exhibit

Number Exhibit

10.8 Restated Agreement Relating to the Purchase ofrdisiax Common Stock between Registrant and Bruns@ariporation,
dated as of April 28, 1998 (.

10.9 Stockholders’ Agreement among Registrant, Brunswiokporation, and Senior Founders of Registrangdiapril 28, 1998
1)

10.10 Governance Agreement between Registrant and Brekf®rporation, dated April 28, 1998 (

10.11 Dealer Agreement dated December 7, 2005 betweeBdhdray Division of Brunswick Corporation and Maivax, Inc. (11

10.12 Agreement Relating to Acquisitions dated Decemh&@0D5 between the Sea Ray Division of Brunswickp@oation and the
Principal Operating Subsidiaries of MarineMax, I(il)

10.17 Credit and Security Agreement dated as of Decerb®eP001 among the Registrant and its subsidiaa®8orrowers, and
Banc of America Specialty Finance, Inc. and variotler lenders, as Lenders

10.17(a Amendment No. 2 to Credit and Security Agreememedldanuary 30, 2004 among the Registrant andhisidiaries as
Borrowers, Keybank National Association, N.A., BasfkAmerica, N.A., and various other lenders, asders (10

10.18 Hatteras Sales and Service Agreement, dated J2QOB among the Registrant, MarineMax Motor Yachlts;, and Hatteras
Yachts Division of Brunswick Corporation (1

10.19 Dealer Agreement, effective September 30, 2003 gntiom Registrant, Ferretti Group USA, Inc., andtBen Yacht, Inc. (12

10.20 Amended and Restated Credit and Security Agreemerduted on February 15, 2005 effective as of Febr8, 2005 among
the Registrant and its subsidiaries, as Borrowéegpank National Association and Bank of AmericaANand various other
lenders, as lenders (1

21 List of Subsidiarie:

231 Consent of Ernst & Young LL

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgatetéuthe Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amend

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgatettuthe Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amend

32.1 Certification pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, dgpéed pursuant to Section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 2002

(1) Incorporated by reference to Registration Stateroaritorm -1 (Registration 33-47873).

(2) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Current Report on Forn-K dated July 7, 1998, as filed on July 20, 1¢

(3) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form {-K Report dated September 30, 1998, as filed onligctd0, 1998

(4) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-K for the year ended September 30, 1998, as fieDecember 9, 199

(5) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1i-K for the year ended September 30, 1999, as fieDecember 29 199

(6) Incorporated by reference to Registration Stateraeritorm -A as filed on September 5, 20(

(7) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-K for the year ended September 30, 2001, as fieBDecember 20, 200

(8) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2881Tiled on February 14, 20C

(9) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 288%iled on February 14, 20C
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(10) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2883iled on February 17, 20C
(11) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form K Report as filed on December 9, 20

(12) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2884iled on February 2, 20C
(13) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form K Report dated February 15, 2005, as filed on Falyr23, 2005

(c) Financial Statement Schedules
(1) See Item 15(a) above.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of Sleeurities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrantcdg caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

MARINEMAX , INC .

/sl WiLLiaMv H. McGILL JRr.

William H. McGill Jr.
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer

Date: December 12, 2005

In accordance with the Securities Exchangeofd934, the following persons on behalf of thgisgant and in the capacities and on the
date indicated have signed this report below.

Signature Capacity Date
/s/ WILLIAM H. McGILL JR. Chairman of the Board, President, and December 12, 2005
William H. McGill Jr. Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer]
/s/ MICHAEL H. McLAMB Executive Vice President, Chief Financial December 12, 2005
Michael H. McLamb Officer, Secretary, and Director

(Principal Accounting and
Financial Officer)

/sl ROBERT D. BASHAM Director December 12, 2005
Robert D. Bashar

/s/ HILLIARD M. EURE Il Director December 12, 2005
Hilliard M. Eure Il

/s/ JOHN B. FURMAN Director December 12, 2005

John B. Furmal

/sl ROBERT S. KANT Director December 12, 2005
Robert S. Kan

/sl JOSEPH A. WATTERS Director December 12, 2005
Joseph A. Wattetr

/sl DEAN S. WOODMAN Director December 12, 2005
Dean S. Woodma
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
MarineMax, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of MarineMax, Inc. and subsidiaries &eptember 30, 2005 and 2004, and
the related consolidated statements of operat&iaskholders’ equity, and cash flows for each efttiree years in the period ended
September 30, 2005. These financial statementham@sponsibility of the Company’s management. @sponsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omodits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on glasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statements presentation. We believedbatudits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢consolidated financial position of
MarineMax, Inc. and subsidiaries at September 8052nd 2004, and the consolidated results of tperations and their cash flows for e
of the three years in the period ended Septembhe2@Ib, in conformity with U.S. generally accepsadounting principles.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the effectiveness
of MarineMax, Inc.’s internal control over finanti@porting as of September 30, 2005, based oer@iestablished in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiah@ur report dated December 8,
2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Tampa, Florida,
December 8, 2005
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands except share and per shéag da

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories, ne
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Deferred tax asse

Total current asse

Property and equipment, r
Goodwill and other intangible assets,
Other lon¢-term asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl
Customer deposit
Accrued expense
Shor-term borrowings
Current maturities of lor-term debt

Total current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti
Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

STOCKHOLDERY EQUITY:

Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 1,000,000 shart®rized, none issued or outstanding at SepteBther

2004 and 200!

Common stock, $.001 par value; 24,000,000 shartt®dzed, 15,711,012 and 17,678,087 shares isst

and outstanding at September 30, 2004 and 20Qteatgely
Additional paic-in capital
Deferred stock compensati
Retained earning

Treasury stock, at cost, 30,000 shares held atB8dyar 30, 2004 and 20!

Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde' equity

See accompanying notes.
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September 3C September 3C
2004 2005
$ 15,07¢ $ 27,27
24,97 26,23
283,79’ 317,70¢

5,96¢ 6,934
3,46% 4,95¢
333,28: 383,10:
84,50 99,99
55,86 56,18
70¢ 211

$ 474,35¢ $ 539,49(
$ 55,84] $ 18,14¢
15,917 25,79:
17,62t 21,09¢
153,00( 150,00(
2,88t 4,63
245,26¢ 219,67(
8,91¢ 10,77:
23,357 25,45(
277,53¢ 255,89:
16 18
70,32¢ 125,67:
(2,397)

127,09¢ 160,92-
(61€) (61€)
196,82: 283,59¢
$ 474,35¢ $ 539,49(
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Revenue
Cost of sale:

Gross profi

MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Amounts in thousands except share and per shéag da

Selling, general, and administrative exper

Income from operatior

Interest expens
Income before income tax provisi

Income tax provisiol

Net income

Basic net income per common sh

Diluted net income per common shi

Weighted average number of common shares usedripwting net income per common

share:
Basic

Diluted

See accompanying notes.
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For the Year

For the Year

For the Year

Ended Ended Ended
September 30 September 30 September 30
2003 2004 2005
$ 607,50: $ 762,00¢ $ 947,34

459,72¢ 573,61¢ 712,84:
147,77. 188,39: 234,50«
113,29¢ 139,47( 169,97!
34,47: 48,92 64,52¢
2,471 6,49¢ 9,291
32,00z 42,42¢ 55,23¢
12,32: 16,12¢ 21,41

$ 19,68: $ 26,29¢ $  33,82¢
$ 1.2 $ 1.6¢ $ 2.01
$ 1.2¢€ $ 1.5¢ $ 1.8¢
15,337,87 15,585,31 16,815,44
15,671,47 16,666,10 18,032,53
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BALANCE, September 30, 20

Net income

Purchase of treasury sto

Issuance of treasury sto

Shares issued under employe
stock purchase ple

Shares issued upon exercise of
stock options

Stocl-based compensatic

Tax benefit of options exercist

BALANCE, September 30, 20

Net income

Purchase of treasury sto

Issuance of treasury sto

Shares issued under employe
stock purchase ple

Shares issued upon exercise of
stock options

Stocl-based compensatic

Tax benefit of options exercist

BALANCE, September 30, 20

Net income

Shares issued under employe
stock purchase ple

Shares issued upon exercise of
stock options

Shares issued through public
offering

Stocl-based compensatic

Amortization of deferred stock
compensatiol

Tax benefit of options exercist

BALANCE, September 30, 20

MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(Amounts in thousands except share data)

Additional Deferred Total
Common Stock Paid-in Stock Retained Treasury Stockholder¢

Shares Amount Capital Compensatior Earnings Stock Equity
15,285,70. $ 15 $ 64,037 $ o $ 81,15¢ $ (198 $ 145,19(
— — — — 19,68: — 19,68:
(15,000 — — — — (134) (134)
17,34¢ — (121) — (31) 152 —
32,33 — 36E — — — 36E
52,70¢ — 624 — — — 624
28,59! — 27% — — — 27%
— — 55 — — — 55
15,401,68 15 65,23 — 100,80t — 166,05¢
— — — — 26,29¢ — 26,29¢
(32,000 - - - - (67¢€) (67€)
2,00( — — — (6) 60 54
64,42¢ — 63€ — — — 63€
271,33t 1 2,964 — — — 2,96t
3,55¢ — 80 — — — 80
— — 1,41( — — — 1,41(
15,711,01 16 70,32¢ — 127,09¢ (61¢) 196,82:
— — — — 33,82¢ — 33,82¢
51,727 — 1,01¢ — — — 1,01¢
379,56° — 4,26¢ — — — 4,26¢
1,429,00! 2 44,20: — — — 44,20:
106,78: — 3,13: (3,027) — — 10¢
— — — 63C — — 63C
— — 2,72¢ — — — 2,72¢
17,678,08 $ 18 $12567. $ (2,397  $160,92« $ (61§) $ 283,59¢

See accompanying notes.
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands)

For the Year For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended Ended
September 3C  September 3C  September 3C
2003 2004 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 1968. $ 26,29¢ $ 33,82¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by / (used in) operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,44( 5,27: 6,11¢
Deferred income tax provisic 1,001 18C 363
(Gain) / loss on sale of property and equipn (29 1 (13€)
Stocl-based compensation expel 27¢ 80 73t
Tax benefit of options exercist 55 1,41C 2,72¢
(Increase) / decrease—
Accounts receivable, n (7,35€) (3,220 (1,25%)
Inventories, ne 8,30¢ (110,369 (31,149
Prepaid expenses and other as 14¢ (1,640 (659)
Increase / (decrease)—
Accounts payabl 3,02t 43,43¢ (37,720
Customer deposit 732 5,98¢ 9,87¢
Accrued expense (1,897 2,60¢ 3,471
Shor-term borrowings (1,186) 50,93¢ (5,429
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating actsg 27,19¢ 20,98¢ (19,229
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipm (8,98¢) (10,179 (17,79
Net cash used in business acquisiti (20,716 (20,237 (650)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn 25¢ 23t 571
Net cash used in investing activiti (19,446 (20,177 (17,879
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings of lon-term debt — 3,20( 3,271
Repayments of lor-term deb! (2,4272) (2,426 (3,467)
Purchases of treasury stc (139 (67¢) —
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock thrqudgtic offering — — 44,20:
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock und#sropnd employee purchase pl: 98¢ 3,65¢ 5,28¢
Net cash (used in) / provided by financing actas (1,567%) 3,751 49,29
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6,18t 4,56¢ 12,19¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of peric 4,32z 10,50¢ 15,07¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of perio $ 10,50¢ $ 1507¢ $ 27,27
Supplemental Disclosures of N-Cash Financing Activities
Long-term debt assumed for property and equipment pees $ 3,000 $ 312( $ 4,04(

See accompanying notes.
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

We were incorporated in Delaware in Januag§81@nd are the largest recreational boat retaildre United States. We engage primarily
in the retail sale, brokerage, and service of nedvissed boats, motors, trailers, marine partsaaodssories and offer slip and storage
accommodations in certain locations. In additios,asrange related boat financing, insurance, atehded service contracts. As of
September 30, 2005, we operated through 71 retatibns in 17 states, consisting of Alabama, Ar&dCalifornia, Colorado, Delaware,
Florida, Georgia, Maryland, Minnesota, Nevada, Neemsey, North Carolina, Ohio, South Carolina, Tesae, Texas, and Utah.

We are the nation’s largest retailer of Seg, Baston Whaler, Meridian, and Hatteras Yachispfalvhich are manufactured by Brunswick
Corporation (Brunswick), the world’s largest maraitmer of marine products. Sales of new Brunswigatb accounted for approximately
65%, 60%, and 60% of our revenue in fiscal 200842@nd 2005, respectively. We believe we represkeapproximately 10% of all
Brunswick marine product sales during the sameogsri

We have entered into dealership agreemenksS@a Ray, Boston Whaler, Meridian, Hatteras Yadhescury Marine, and Baja Marine
Corporation, all subsidiaries or divisions of Brutick. We also have dealer agreements with Fei@tiup and Bertram. These agreements
allow us to purchase, stock, sell, and serviceetimesnufacturers’ boats and products. These agrésmakso allow us to use these
manufacturers’ names, trade symbols, and intelégoperties in our operations.

As of September 30, 2005, each of our opegatealership subsidiaries that carry the Sea Raguat line was a party to a ten-year dealer
agreement with Brunswick covering Sea Ray prodaatd,is the exclusive dealer of Sea Ray boats igabgraphic markets. The dealer
agreement was entered into in 1998. Our subsididayineMax Motor Yachts, LLC, is a party to a deagreement with Hatteras Yachts.
The agreement gives us the right to sell Hatterasht throughout the state of Florida (excludirggflorida Panhandle) and the state of
Texas, as well as the U.S. distribution rightsHatteras products over 82 feet. Our subsidiary,fax International, LLC, is a party to a
dealer agreement with Ferretti Group and Bertrarch¥& which expires in August 2007. The agreemppbiats us as the exclusive dealel
Ferretti Yachts, Pershing, Riva, Apreamare, andiM@eaft mega-yachts, yachts and other recreatiooats for the United States, Canada,
and the Bahamas. The agreement also appointstie esclusive dealer for Bertram in the United &dexcluding the Florida peninsula and
certain portions of New England), Canada, and thieaBnas.

As is typical in the industry, we deal with mufacturers, other than the Sea Ray division ofBwick, the Ferretti Group, and Bertram,
under renewable annual dealer agreements, eachiclfi gives us the right to sell various makes awodefs of boats within a given
geographic region. Any change or termination oséhagreements for any reason, including changesnipetitive, regulatory, or marketing
practices, including rebate or incentive progracasild adversely affect our results of operatiorigh@dugh there are a limited number of
manufacturers of the type of boats and productswiasell, we believe that adequate alternativecesuwould be available to replace any
manufacturer other than Brunswick as a productaurhese alternative sources may not be avaitdlitee time of any interruption, and
alternative products may not be available at coatparterms, which could affect operating resultgeasely. Additionally, a change in
suppliers could cause a loss of revenue, which avaffect operating results adversely.

In order to maintain consistency and compéitalietween periods presented, certain amounte baen reclassified from the previously
reported consolidated financial statements to comfto the consolidated financial statement presemaf the current period. The
consolidated financial statements include our astoand the accounts of our subsidiaries, all dtlwvhare wholly owned. All significant
intercompany transactions and accounts have baaimated.
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2. ACQUISITIONS:

We conducted no operations until the acqoisitf five independent recreational boat dealerMarch 1, 1998. Since the initial
acquisitions in March 1998, we have acquired 18aitonal boat dealers, two boat brokerage opemstiand one full-service yacht repair
facility. As a part of our acquisition strategy, fvequently engage in discussions with variousaational boat dealers regarding their
potential acquisition by us. Potential acquisitibhscussions frequently take place over a long pesidime and involve difficult business
integration and other issues, including, in somrsesamanagement succession and related matteastesslt of these and other factors, a
number of potential acquisitions that from timeitoe appear likely to occur do not result in birgliegal agreements and are not
consummated. The following are the acquisitionsharxee completed during the fiscal years ending $eipée 30, 2003 and 2004. No
significant acquisitions were completed duringfikeal year ending September 30, 2005.

During June 2003, we acquired substantiallyhal assets and assumed certain liabilities ofi&noe Marine, Inc., a privately held boat
dealership with locations in Denver and Grand Jong¢iColorado, for approximately $3.3 million insta including acquisition costs. The
acquisition resulted in the recognition of approately $1.7 million in tax deductible goodwill, intling acquisition costs, and approximately
$900,000 in tax deductible indefinite-lived intaloigi assets (dealer agreements). The acquisiticanelspour ability to serve consumers in the
western United States boating community. Additibpahe acquisition further allows us to leverage mventory management and inventory
financing resources over the acquired locationg. d$set purchase agreement contains an earn oigipng which will impact the final
purchase price annually, based on the future grofithe region through September 2008, assumirtgiceonditions and provisions are met.
Based on these conditions and provisions, apprdei;n&200,000 has been earned through fiscal 26@%eacounted for as an adjustment to
the recognized amount of tax deductible goodwillnd&ance Marine has been included in our consolid@&tancial statements since the date
of acquisition.

During September 2003, we acquired substintilllof the assets and assumed certain liakslitEKillinger Marine Center, Inc. and
Killinger Marine Center of Alabama, Inc., a privigtéeld boat dealership with locations in Ft. Wal®each and Pensacola, Florida and Gulf
Shores, Alabama, for approximately $2.3 milliorcash, including acquisition costs. The acquisitiesulted in the recognition of
approximately $600,000 in tax deductible goodviiitluding acquisition costs, and approximately $800 in tax deductible indefinite-lived
intangible assets (dealer agreements). The adguigikpands our ability to serve consumers in ttebama and Florida panhandle boating
communities. Additionally, the acquisition furthefows us to leverage our inventory managementimrehtory financing resources over the
acquired locations. Killinger Marine has been ied in our consolidated financial statements sihealate of acquisition.

During October 2003, we acquired substantillypf the assets and assumed certain liabildfdsmarine International, Inc. and Steven
Myers, Inc. (Emarine), a privately held boat destigr located in Fort Lauderdale, Florida, for apimately $305,000 in cash. The acquisi
resulted in the recognition of approximately $300,& tax deductible goodwill, including acquisiticosts. The acquisition provides us with
an established retail location to sell the newfgi@fd Ferretti Group products in the southeastiddonoating community. The assets purchase
agreement contained an earn out provision baséleoiuture profits of the location, assuming certzonditions and provisions were met. In
August 2004, the earn out provisions were modifiiidrawing the requirements for any future earhgayments. Emarine has been
included in our consolidated financial statemeisesthe date of acquisition.

During June 2004, we acquired substantiallpfahe assets, including real estate, and asswaetdin liabilities of Imperial Marine
(Imperial), a privately held boat dealership wibicdtions in Baltimore and the northern Chesapesda @& Maryland, for approximately
$9.3 million in cash, including acquisition codtaperial operates a highway location and a marm¢e Gunpowder River. The acquisition
expands our ability to serve consumers in the Mild#tic United States boating community. Additidpathe acquisition allows us to
capitalize on Imperial’'s market position and leygraur
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inventory management and inventory financing resesiover the acquired locations. The acquisitisalted in the recognition of
approximately $1.1 million in tax deductible gootinincluding acquisition costs, and approximat$80,000 in tax deductible indefinite-
lived intangible assets (dealer agreements). Iraplés been included in our consolidated finargt@iements since the date of acquisition.

During June 2004, we purchased inventory agegquipment and assumed certain liabilities ftbeprevious Jacksonville, Florida based
Sea Ray dealer (Jacksonville) for the sport bodtsmort cruiser product lines for approximately @800 in cash, including acquisition costs.
The purchase enhanced our ability to serve cus®inghe northeast Florida boating community byiagidhe sport boat and sport cruiser
product lines to our existing Sea Ray product affgs. The acquisition resulted in the recognitibagproximately $240,000 in tax deductil
goodwill, including acquisition costs, and approately $450,000 in tax deductible indefinite-livedangible assets (dealer agreements).
Jacksonville has been included in our consolidéitedhcial statements since the date of acquisition.

Pro forma results of operations have not rersented with respect to any of the fiscal 2003084 acquisitions, as the effects of those
acquisitions were not significant on either anvidiial or an aggregate basis in the related adgprisyear.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Statements of Cash Flows

For purposes of the consolidated statementasif flows, we consider all highly liquid investmgewith an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

We made interest payments of approximatel? $illion, $6.5 million, and $9.0 million for théstal years ended September 30, 2003,
2004, and 2005, respectively, including interestieht to finance our real estate holdings and neat inventory. We made income tax
payments of approximately $9.1 million, $16.2 roiflj and $15.3 million for the fiscal years endegt8&mber 30, 2003, 2004, and 2005,
respectively.

Vendor Consideration Received

We account for consideration received fromamdors in accordance with Emerging Issues TaskeHssue No. 02-16 Atcounting by ¢
Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Consatlen Received from a Vendor” (EITF 02-16). EITE06 most significantly requires us
to classify interest assistance received from nmagtufers as a reduction of inventory cost andedlabst of sales as opposed to netting the
assistance against our interest expense incurtidowr lenders. Additionally, based on the requigata of our co-op assistance programs
from our manufacturers, EITF 02-16 permits theingtof the assistance against related advertisipgreses. We adopted EITF 02-16 during
the quarter ended December 31, 2002 and deterrthiagthe standard impacted our accounting for tedansideration received from
vendors beginning July 1, 2003 with the renewadrmd amendments to our dealer agreements with thefacurers of our products.

Inventories

Inventory costs consist of the amount paiddguire the inventory, net of vendor consideratind purchase discounts, the cost of
equipment added, reconditioning costs, and tramsian costs relating to relocating inventory prioisale. New and used boat, motor, and
trailer inventories are stated at the lower of cdstermined on a specific-identification basisirarket. Parts and accessories are stated at th
lower of cost, determined on the first-in, firsttdaasis, or market. Based on the agings of thenitovies and our consideration of current
market trends, we maintain a valuation allowandg@ctvwas not material to the consolidated finansiatements taken as a whole as of
September 30, 2004 or 2005.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cesbfraccumulated depreciation, and are deprec@tedtheir estimated useful lives using
straight-line method. Useful lives for purposesoiputing depreciation are as follows:

Years
Buildings and improvemen 5-40
Machinery and equipme 3-10
Furniture and fixture 5-10
Vehicles 5

The cost of property and equipment sold areétand the related accumulated depreciationear®ved from the accounts at the time of
disposition, and any resulting gain or loss isudeld in the consolidated statements of operatidamtenance, repairs, and minor
replacements are charged to operations as incunajdy replacements and improvements are capithéinel amortized over their useful liv

Gooduwill and Other Intangible Assets

We account for goodwill and identifiable ingglnle assets in accordance with Statement of FinhAccounting Standards No. 141,
“Business Combinations” (SFAS 141), and StateméRirmancial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwitid Other Intangible
Assets” (SFAS 142). SFAS 141 requires that alltess combinations initiated after June 30, 200adoeunted for using the purchase
method of accounting and identifiable intangibleeds acquired in a business combination be recedrg assets and reported separately
from goodwill. We have determined that our mosh#igant acquired identifiable intangible assets #hre dealer agreements, which are
indefinite-lived intangible assets. SFAS 142 reggithat goodwill and indefinite-lived intangiblesats no longer be amortized, but instead
tested for impairment at least annually and whenevents or changes in circumstances indicatettleatarrying value may not be
recoverable. If the carrying amount of goodwillaor identifiable intangible asset exceeds its falug, we would recognize an impairment
loss. We measure any potential impairment basedoaus business valuation methodologies, includimgojected discounted cash flow
method. We completed the annual impairment teshguhe fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, based omficial information as of the third
quarter of fiscal 2005, which resulted in no impant of goodwill or identifiable intangible assels. date, we have not recognized any
impairment of goodwill or identifiable intangiblesets in the application of SFAS 142.

There was no goodwill amortization expensdtierfiscal years ended September 30, 2003, 20@42@05. Accumulated amortization of
goodwill was approximately $2.6 million at SeptemBe, 2004 and 2005.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards N, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal ofigeLived Assets” (SFAS 144),
requires that long-lived assets, such as propedyeguipment and purchased intangibles subjeantwtization, be reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying amount of an asset may notbeverable. Recoverability of the asset
is measured by comparison of its carrying amouninidiscounted future net cash flows the assetpe@rd to generate. If such assets are
considered to be impaired, the impairment to begeized is measured as the amount by which thgingramount of the asset exceeds its
fair market value. Estimates of expected futurdrdlsvs represent management’s best estimate lmasedrrently available information and
reasonable and supportable assumptions. Any impairnecognized in accordance with SFAS 144 is peemiaand may not be restored. To
date, we have not recognized any impairment of-loregl assets in connection with SFAS 144,
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Customer Deposits

Customer deposits primarily include amounteieed from customers toward the purchase of bidéésrecognize these deposits as
revenue upon delivery or acceptance of the relatads to customers.

Insurance

We retain varying levels of risk relating teetinsurance policies we maintain, most signifisewbrkers’ compensation insurance and
employee medical benefits. As a result, we areomresiple for the claims and losses incurred undesatprograms, limited by per occurrence
deductibles and paid claims or losses up to preraehed maximum exposure limits. Any losses abbegire-determined exposure limits are
paid by our third-party insurance carriers. Wenraate our future losses using our historical logseernce, our judgment, and industry
information.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from boat, motor, aritetraales and parts, service, and storage opagatibthe time the boat, motor, trailer, or
is delivered to or accepted by the customer oriselis completed. We recognize commissions eanrwed & brokerage sale at the time the
related brokerage transaction closes. We recogaeimnue from slip and storage services on a stréiighbasis over the term of the slip or
storage agreement. We recognize commissions ebynesl for placing notes with financial institutiomsconnection with customer boat
financing when the related boat sales are recognizk also recognize marketing fees earned ontdifediaccident and disability, and hull
insurance products sold by third-party insuranceanies at the later of customer acceptance ahtheance product as evidenced by
contract execution, or when the related boat saledognized. Pursuant to negotiated agreemertisin@ncial and insurance institutions, we
are charged back for a portion of these fees shtbeldustomer terminate or default on the relaitgahtte or insurance contract before it is
outstanding for a stipulated minimal period of tirffi@e chargeback allowance, which was not mattridie consolidated financial stateme
taken as a whole as of September 30, 2004 or 200ased on our experience with repayments or #efan the related finance or insurance
contracts.

We also recognize commissions earned on egtbwdrranty service contracts sold on behalf afitharty insurance companies at the |
of customer acceptance of the service contractstesrevidenced by contract execution, or recogndfdhe related boat sale. We are cha
back for a portion of these commissions shouldctigomer terminate or default on the service cohpdor to its scheduled maturity. The
chargeback allowance, which was not material tactivesolidated financial statements taken as a wémlef September 30, 2004 or 2005, is
based upon our experience with repayments or defanlthe service contracts.

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for stock-based compensation pladsr Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 2A¢¢ounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25). We apply the disclosure primrs of Statement of Financial Accounting Stand&ds123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation” (SFAS 123), which allows corgsato continue following the accounting guidanE&BB 25, but requires pro forma
disclosure of net income and net income per sharthé effects on compensation expense had thedhie method of accounting for stock
options and stock purchases been adopted. For 3E3Burposes, the fair value of each option grastiieen estimated as of the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing motteMarch 2003, we adopted the Financial Accoungtandards Board, Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, “AccountiogStock-Based Compensation — Transitions andl@ssire” SFAS 148). Under SFA
148, the pro forma disclosures of stock-based cosgien, as if the fair value method had been usedrequired in both annual and interim
financial statements.

During December 2004, we granted nonvestechuamstock awards (restricted stock) to key emplsymasuant to the 1998 Incentive
Stock Plan. The awards are accounted for usinghégsurement and recognition
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principles of APB 25, and therefore, unearned carepton is measured at the date of grant and réedjas compensation expense over the
vesting period. Shares awarded during December @@DJest after four years. At September 30, 20@aproximately $2.4 million of
unearned compensation remains to be recognizeallings general, and administrative expenses draggét line basis over the remaining
vesting period of the restricted stock awards.tRerfiscal year ending September 30, 2005, we decbapproximately $735,000 of stock-
based compensation expense in selling, generah@dméhistrative expenses related to the restristeck awards and Board of Director fees.

Had compensation expense been determined therfgir value method described in SFAS 123, atiimcome and net income per share,
as reported, would have been the following forftbeal years ended September 30,

2003 2004 2005
(amounts in thousands except per share data)
Net income as reporte $19,68: $26,29¢ $33,82¢
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expendadattin net income, net of related
tax effects — — 38¢
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensatioaresgpdetermined under fair value
based method for all awards, net of related teeces 1,21%) (1,529 (2,159
Pro forma net incom $18,46¢ $24,77¢ $32,05¢

Basic net income per sha

As reportec $ 1l.2¢ $ 1.6¢ $ 2.01

Pro forma $ 1.2C $ 1.5¢ $ 191
Diluted net income per shat

As reportec $ 1.2¢ $ 1.5¢ $ 1.8¢

Pro forma $ 1.2C $ 1.5z $ 1.8C

See Note 12 — “Stock Option and Purchase Pfandurther discussion and assumptions used tatatke the above pro forma informatis

Advertising and Promotional Costs

Advertising and promotional costs are experageihcurred and are included in selling, genarad, administrative expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operatiResed on the requirements of our co-op assisamgrams from our manufacturers,
EITF 02-16 permits the netting of the assistanaaresy the related advertising expenses. Total &idireg and promotional expenses
approximated $8.3 million, $10.0 million and $14nilion, net of related co-op assistance of apprately $1.1 million, $1.8 million and
$1.6 million for the fiscal years ended Septemlfer2B03, 2004, and 2005, respectively.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are retsghfor the future tax consequences attributabtermporary differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assetsiabdities and their respective tax basis. Defetigedassets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxablerirda the years in which those temporary differsrame expected to be recovered or settled.

New Accounting Pronouncements

During December 2004, the Financial Accounfitgndards Board (FASB) issued Statement of FimhAcicounting Standards No. 123
(Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS 123&HAS 123(R) replaces FASB Statement of Finaabunting Standards No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (SFAS)]138persedes Accounting Principles Board (APB)@pi No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees”
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(APB 25), and amends FASB Statement of Financiglofioting Standards No. 95, “Statement of Cash FI¢8BAS 95). Statement 123(R)
requires all share-based payments to employedading grants of employee stock options, to be geeed in the financial statements based
on their fair values and eliminates the pro forriszldsures that were allowed as an alternativénemtial statement recognition. Statement
123(R) was originally effective the beginning oétfirst interim or annual period beginning aftendud.5, 2005. However, on April 14, 2005,
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) isauenv rule amending the effective date of SFASRR® the first fiscal year

beginning after June 15, 2005. Accordingly, we wilplement the revised standard in the first quastdiscal year 2006, under thentdified
prospective” method. Based on this revised effedtiate, there was not a reduction in net incomelihgted share in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2005. We are currently assessing the imfitina of this revised standard and the effect it ndve on our results of operations in the
first quarter of fiscal 2006 and thereafter.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially sulbjas to concentrations of credit risk, consish@ipally of cash and cash equivalents and
accounts receivable. Concentrations of creditwigk respect to our cash and cash equivalentdraiedtl primarily to amounts held with
financial institutions. Concentrations of credgkriarising from our receivables are limited prifyatdo amounts due from manufacturers and
financial institutions.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of our financial instrurtseapproximates fair value due either to lengtmédurity or existence of interest rates that
approximate prevailing market rates unless othendisclosed in these consolidated financial statésne

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financialestagnts in conformity with accounting principles geaily accepted in the United States
requires us to make estimates and assumptionaffeat the reported amounts of assets and liagsligind disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated finahatatements and the reported amounts of revamliex@enses during the reporting periods.
The estimates made by us in the accompanying ddased financial statements relate to valuatioavedinces, valuation of goodwill and
intangible assets, valuation of long-lived assatsl valuation of accruals. Actual results couldedifrom those estimates.

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

Trade receivables consist primarily of recblea from financial institutions, which provide filing for customer boat financing, and
amounts due from financial institutions earned frmmanging financing with our customers. Theseivatses are normally collected within
30 days of the sale. Trade receivables also incudgeunts due from customers on the sale of boatts, gervice, and storage. Amounts due
from manufacturers represent receivables for varimanufacturer programs and parts and service penformed pursuant to the
manufacturers’ warranties.

The allowance for uncollectible receivablebjoh was not material to the consolidated finansiatements taken as a whole as of
September 30, 2004 or 2005, is based on our coasiole of customer payment practices, past traitsabistory with customers, and
economic conditions. We review the allowance fazallectible receivables when a future event or otiange in circumstances results in a
change in the estimate of the ultimate collectipitif a specific account.
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The accounts receivable balances consistétedbllowing at September 30,

2004 2005
(amounts in thousands)
Trade receivable $17,01: $14,57(
Amounts due from manufacture 6,93( 10,37«
Other receivable 1,03¢ 1,291
$24,97% $26,23¢
5. INVENTORIES:
Inventories consisted of the following at Sepber 30,
2004 2005
(amounts in thousands)
New boats, motors and traile $243,34° $265,95-
Used boats, motors and trailt 33,10z 43,19:¢
Parts, accessories and ot 7,34¢ 8,55¢

$283,79° $317,70!

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Property and equipment consisted of the falgwat September 30,

2004 2005

(amounts in thousands'
Land $ 25,59¢ $ 33,22
Buildings and improvemen 49,83( 58,08:
Machinery and equipme 23,691 27,52¢
Furniture and fixture 5,88¢ 6,311
Vehicles 4,80¢ B.DLE
109,82: 130,65:
Less— Accumulated depreciatic (25,319 (30,659
$ 84,507 $ 99,99/

7. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

The changes in the carrying amounts of netlgidband identifiable intangible assets for thechl years ended September 30, were as
follows:

Identifiable
Intangible
Goodwill Assets Total
(amounts in thousands)

Balance, September 30, 2C $48,63¢ $ 4,50t $53,14«
Additions during the perio 1,68: 1,03t 2,71¢
Balance, September 30, 2C 50,32: 5,54(C 55,86:
Additions during the perio 19¢ 122 322
Balance, September 30, 20 $50,52. $ 5,665 $56,18¢
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8. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS:

During February 2005, we entered into an aredrahd restated credit and security agreementfaithfinancial institutions. The credit
facility provides us a line of credit with assetsbd borrowing availability of up to $340 millionrfavorking capital inventory financing, with
the amount of permissible borrowings determinedpant to a borrowing base formula. The credit iffgcéllso permits approved-vendor
floorplan borrowings of up to $20 million. The ciefhcility accrues interest at the London Interh&ffered Rate (LIBOR) plus 150 to 260
basis points, with the interest rate based upomatie of our net outstanding borrowings to ourgiife net worth. The credit facility is
secured by our inventory, accounts receivable,pgent, furniture, and fixtures. The credit faciligquires us to satisfy certain covenants,
including maintaining a leverage ratio tied to tamgible net worth. The credit facility maturesMiarch 2008, with two one-year renewal
options remaining. As of September 30, 2005, weevirecompliance with all of the credit facility cewants.

Prior to the February 2005 amended and rektatalit and security agreement, our line of crprivided us with asset based borrowing
availability of up to $260 million for working capi and inventory financing and permitted $20 roiilin approved-vendor floorplan
borrowings, all of which were determined pursuana borrowing base formula. The facility bore ietrat LIBOR plus 175 to 260 basis
points, which was determined in accordance witkeddPmance Pricing grid, as defined in the credliflity. The credit facility required us to
satisfy certain covenants, including maintainirtgragible net worth ratio.

Short-term borrowings as of September 30, 20082005 were $153.0 million and $150.0 milli@spectively. The additional available
borrowings under the credit facility at Septemb@r 2005 were approximately $180.0 million. At Sepber 30, 2004 and 2005, the interest
rate on the outstanding short-term borrowings wad%e3and 5.2%, respectively. Generally, our shartitborrowings are collateralized by
certain accounts receivable and inventories.

As is common in our industry, we receive iagrassistance directly from boat manufacturectyding Brunswick. The interest assistance
programs vary by manufacturer and generally inclpgigods of free financing or reduced interest patsgrams. The interest assistance may
be paid directly to us or our lender dependingh@narrangements the manufacturer has establisheddépted EITF 026 during the quart
ended December 31, 2002, which most significamtyuires us to classify interest assistance recdro@d manufacturers as a reduction of
inventory cost and related cost of sales as oppimsedtting the assistance against our interestresgincurred with our lenders. See Note 3
— “Significant Accounting Policies — Vendor Considéon Received” for further discussion of the admpof this standard.
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9. LONG-TERM DEBT:

Long-term debt consisted of the following ap&mber 30,

2004 2005
(amounts in thousands)

Various mortgage notes payable to financial intihs, due in monthly installments ranging from $38
$13,744, bearing interest at rates ranging fror%.10 9.79%, maturing February 2006 through Junt
2008, collateralized by machinery, equipment, aad estat: $ 1,26¢ $ 1,081

Various mortgage notes payable to financial instins, due in monthly installments ranging from B&2
to $37,500, bearing interest at rates ranging fB033% to 5.78%, maturing May 2007 through July 2!
collateralized by certain vehicles and machineguigment, and real este 13,21( 11,51:

Various mortgage notes payable to financial instits, due in monthly installments ranging from &&2
to $57,395, bearing interest at rates ranging f6a22% to 7.75%, maturing September 2010 through

2015, collateralized by certain vehicles and mastyinequipment, and real est. 11,75¢ 17,49:
26,237 30,08¢

Less— Current maturitie: (2,889 (4,63Y)
$23,35: $25,45(

The aggregate maturities of long-term debtevees follows at September 30, 2005:

(amounts in thousands)

2006 $ 4,63
2007 3,53¢
2008 3,42¢
2009 3,52¢
2010 3,58¢
Thereaftel 11,37¢

Total $30,08¢
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10. INCOME TAXES:
The components of our provision for incomestagonsisted of the following for the fiscal yeansled September 30,

2003 2004 2005
(amounts in thousands)

Current provision

Federal $10,07¢ $14,31( $18,87:

State 1,246 1,63€ 2,17¢
Total current provisiol 11,32( 15,94¢ 21,04¢
Deferred provision

Federal $ 91C$ 164$% 33C

State 91 16 33
Total deferred provisio 1,001 18C 363
Total income tax provisio $12,32. $16,12¢ $21,41:

Below is a reconciliation of the statutory éeal income tax rate to our effective tax ratetfar fiscal years ended September 30,

2003 2004 2005

Federal tax provisio 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State tax provision, net of federal ben 3% 2.&% 3.€%
Other 0.C% 0.2% 0.2%

Effective tax rate 38.5% 38.(% 38.&%

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact ofgerary differences between the amount of assetéamilities recognized for financial
reporting purposes and such amounts recognizaddome tax purposes. The components of deferrazstakSeptember 30 were as follows:

2004 2005
(amounts in thousands'

Current deferred tax asse

Inventories $ 1,07 $ 1,391
Accrued expense 2,392 3,56¢
Net current deferred tax ass $ 3,46¢ $ 4,95¢

Long-term deferred tax assets (liabilitie
Depreciation and amortizatic $(9,057) $(11,12)
Other 134 35C
Net lon¢-term deferred tax liabilite  $(8,91¢) $(10,77))

At September 30, 2005, we estimated thatritase likely than not that we will recognize thenb#t of our deferred tax assets and,
accordingly, no valuation allowance has been resuhrd

11. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

In November 2000, our Board of Directors appiba share repurchase plan allowing our compamgpierchase up to 300,000 shares of
our common stock. Under the plan, we may buy backnon stock from time to time in the open markenggrivately negotiated blocks,
dependant upon various factors, including price aradlability of the shares, and general marketdaamns. At September 30, 2005, we have
purchased an aggregate of 128,413 shares of corstnckiunder the plan for an aggregate purchase pfiapproximately $1.3 million. At
September 30, 2005, 89,611 and 8,802 of thoseckased shares have been reissued in conjunctibrouitEmployee Stock Purchase Plan
and our Incentive Stock Plan, respectively.
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12. STOCK OPTION AND PURCHASE PLANS:
On April 5, 1998 and April 30, 1998, respeetiy the Board of Directors adopted and the stoltldrs approved the following stock plans:

1998 Incentive Stock Plan (the Incentive Stock PlaThe Incentive Stock Plan provides for the grarinoéntive and non-qualified
stock options to acquire our common stock, thetgsghnommon stock, the grant of stock appreciatights, and the grant of other cash
awards to key personnel, directors, consultantiggendent contractors, and others providing vadusdivices to us. The maximum numbe
shares of common stock that may be issued pursodimé Incentive Stock Plan is the lesser of 4000 shares or the sum of (1) 20% of the
then-outstanding shares of our common stock pluthé@number of shares exercised with respectyaamards granted under the Incentive
Stock Plan. The Incentive Stock Plan terminate&gril 2008, and options may be granted at any tiltmeng the life of the Incentive Stock
Plan. The date on which options vest and the esemmiices of options are determined by the Boafictors or the Plan Administrator. T
Incentive Stock Plan also includes an AutomaticnBRrogram providing for the automatic grant ofiops (Automatic Options) to our non-
employee directors.

The fair value of each option grant has bestimated as of the date of grant using the Bladkefs option-pricing model with the
following weighted average assumptions for thedlisears ended September 30,

2003 2004 2005
Risk-free interest rat 5.1% 5.C% 5.C%
Dividend yield 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Expected life 5.4 years 5.4 years 5.4 years
Volatility 40.7% 41.% 42.1%

Using these assumptions, the fair value oftbek options granted as of September 30, 20034},2(hd 2005 was approximately

$11.6 million, $15.2 million, and $17.5 million,geectively, which would be amortized as compensatipense over the vesting period of
the options.

A summary of the status of our stock opticangl for the fiscal years ended September 30, whlaws:

2003 2004 2005

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Options Price Options Price Options Price

Outstanding beginning of ye 2,376,441 $ 10.5% 2,324,66! $ 10.31 2,446,09! $ 11.92
Granted 395,80( $ 9.9¢ 515,60¢ $ 18.5( 253,21¢ $ 26.67
Exercisec (52,705 $ 11.8¢ (271,339 $ 11.51 (379,56 $ 11.2¢
Forfeited (394,87)) $ 11.2¢ (122,84 $ 9.91 (61,616 $ 16.3¢
Outstanding end of ye: 2,324,66! $ 10.31 2,446,09! $ 11.92 2,258,13 $ 13.5]
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The following table summarizes information aboutstanding and exercisable stock options ateBaper 30, 2005:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Average
Remaining Weighted- Weighted-
Range of Contractual Average Average
Exercise Life in Exercise Exercise
Prices Options Years Price Options Price
$7.00- 12.00 1,078,90: 54 $ 8.7¢ 371,71¢ $ 9.0%
$12.01- 17.0( 487,22: 3.5 $12.65 403,18¢ $12.5¢
$17.01- 22.0( 408,00( 8.1 $17.9( 9,00( $19.4¢
$22.01- 27.0( 215,00( 9.1 $ 26.1¢ 17,00( $ 24 .5¢
$27.01- 32.0( 69,00( 9.2 $ 29.8¢ 10,167 $ 28.8¢
2,258,13. 6.0 $13.57 811,07: $11.47

Generally, the options granted have a teritOofears from the grant date and vest 20% per arragimning at the end of year three.

During the fiscal year ended September 304280 warrants issued in conjunction with the dist999 Boating World acquisition were
exercised. The warrants enabled the holder to pseh0,000 shares of our common stock at $15.08hpee.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the Stock Purchas® PFThe Stock Purchase Plan provides for up to 750sb@@es of common stock
to be issued, and is available to all our regutapleyees who have completed at least one yearraimtmus service. The Stock Purchase |
provides for implementation of up to 10 annual offgs beginning on the first day of October in ylears 1998 through 2007, with each
offering terminating on September 30 of the follogriyear. Each annual offering may be divided imto six-month offerings. For each
offering, the purchase price per share will beldiweer of (i) 85% of the closing price of the comm&tnck on the first day of the offering or
(i) 85% of the closing price of the common stocktbe last day of the offering. The purchase psgeaid through periodic payroll deductic
not to exceed 10% of the participan€arnings during each offering period. Howevempadicipant may purchase more than $25,000 wdi
common stock annually.

13. NET INCOME PER SHARE:

The following is a reconciliation of the sharesed in the denominator for calculating basicdihded earnings per share for the fiscal
years ended September !

2003 2004 2005

Weighted average common shares outstanding used in

calculating basic net income per sh 15,337,87. 15,585,31. 16,815,44
Effect of dilutive options 333,59° 1,080,79: 1,217,08!
Weighted average common and common equivalentshi

used in calculating diluted net income per st 15,671,47 16,666,10 18,032,53

Options to purchase 860,905, 17,460, and B3s8@res of common stock were outstanding at Séete®®, 2003, 2004, and 2005,
respectively, but were not included in the compatebf diluted earnings per share because the ngtexercise prices were greater than the
average market price of our common stock, and thexetheir effect would be anti-dilutive.
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14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
Lease Commitments

We lease certain land, buildings, machineguigment, and vehicles related to our dealershigeunon-cancelable third-party operating
leases. Rental payments, including month-to-moertitals, were approximately $7.2 million, $8.9 roiflj and $9.4 million for the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2003, 2004, and 2005, resplgctRental payments to related parties under batitelable and non-cancelable
operating leases approximated $367,000, $385,0@0$385,000 for the fiscal years ended Septemhe2®IB, 2004, and 2005, respectively.

The rental payments to related parties, ubd#r cancelable and non-cancelable operating lehsasy fiscal 2003, 2004, and 2005,
represent rental payments for buildings to anepttrtially owned by an officer of our company. Walieve the terms of the transaction are
consistent with those that we would obtain fronndiparties.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cahfe=bperating leases at September 30, 2005, wddi@vs:

(amounts in thousands)

2006 $ 6,75¢
2007 6,72¢
2008 5,16
2009 2,03¢
2010 1,00¢
Thereaftel 927

Total $22,62¢

Other Commitments and Contingencies

We are party to various legal actions arisimthe ordinary course of business. With the exoepatf a single lawsuit award that we are
currently appealing, the ultimate liability, if argssociated with these matters was not deterngrat$eptember 30, 2005. However, base
information available at September 30, 2005 surimgthe single lawsuit award that we are curreafipealing, we increased our accrued
litigation expense by approximately $1.7 millionhil¢ it is not feasible to determine the outcomé¢hefse actions at this time, we do not
believe that these matters will have a materiakesky effect on our consolidated financial conditi@sults of operations, or cash flows.

We are subject to federal and state enviromaheegulations, including rules relating to aidamater pollution and the storage and disp
of gasoline, oil, other chemicals and waste. Weebelthat we are in compliance with such regulation

15. EMPLOYEE 401(k) PROFIT SHARING PLANS:

Effective January 1, 2001, we amended ourld@xofit Sharing Plan (the Plan). Employees aigilde to participate in the Plan followi
their 90-day introductory period starting eitherri\ or October 1, provided that they are 21 yedrage. Under the Plan, we match 50% of
participants’ contributions, up to a maximum of 8¥each participants’ compensation. We contributedier the Plan, or pursuant to
previous similar plans, amounts ranging from apjmaxely $700,000 to approximately $1.3 million foe fiscal years ended September 30,
2003, 2004, and 2005.

16. PREFERRED SHARE PURCHASE RIGHTS:

During September 2001, we adopted a Stockmsil&ghts Plan (the Rights Plan) that may haveetffiect of deterring, delaying, or
preventing a change in control that might otheniisén the best interests of our stockholders. Utttz Rights Plan, a dividend of one
Preferred Share Purchase Right was issued forsteake of common stock held by the stockholdersadnd as of the close of business on
September 7, 2001. Each right
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entitles stockholders to purchase, at an exercise pf $50 per share, one-thousandth of a shaaenefvly created Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock.

In general, subject to certain limited excepsi, the stock purchase rights become exercisaida & person or group acquires 15% or r
of our common stock or a tender offer or excharfégr éor 15% or more of our common stock is annathor commenced. After any such
event, other stockholders may purchase additidrares of our common stock at 50% of the then-ctimenket price. The rights will cause
substantial dilution to a person or group thatrafits to acquire us on terms not approved by ourdogDirectors. The rights should not
interfere with any merger or other business contlmnaapproved by the Board of Directors. The rightsy be redeemed by us at $0.01 per
stock purchase right at any time before any peos@roup acquires 15% or more of the outstandimgroon stock. The rights expire on
August 28, 2011.

The Rights Plan adoption and Rights Distritautis a non-taxable event with no impact on ouariicial results.

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

During November 2005, our Board of Directopproved a share repurchase plan allowing our coynfzarepurchase up to 1.0 million
shares of our common stock. Under the plan, we mgyback common stock from time to time in the opearket or in privately negotiated
blocks, dependant upon various factors, includingepand availability of the shares, and generaketaconditions.

During December 2005, we, through our prinkcggeerating subsidiaries, and Brunswick, througthSéea Ray division, entered into a Sales
and Service Agreements relating to Sea Ray proadxtending through June 2015. Each of these dagteements appoints one of our
operating subsidiaries as a dealer for the regigl, glisplay, and servicing of all Sea Ray prodyzasts, and accessories currently or in the
future sold by Sea Ray. Each dealer agreementriesigia designated geographical territory for tredet, which is exclusive to the dealer as
long as the dealer is not in breach of the matetiigations and performance standards under treeatent and Sea Ray’s then current
material policies and programs following notice &imel expiration of any applicable cure periods withcure. Each dealer agreement also
specifies retail locations, which the dealer matatose, change, or add to without the prior wnittensent of Sea Ray, provided that Sea Ray
may not unreasonably withhold its consent. Eaclhedegreement also restricts the dealer from gglkdlvertising (other than in recognized
and established marine publications), solicitingdale, or offering for resale any Sea Ray prodaatside its territory without the prior
written consent of Sea Ray as long as similarictsins also apply to all domestic Sea Ray dealeliing comparable Sea Ray products. In
addition, each dealer agreement provides for tive$b product prices charged by Sea Ray from tintarte to other domestic Sea Ray
dealers, subject to the dealer meeting all theirepents and conditions of Sea Ray’s applicablgiums and the right of Sea Ray in good
faith to charge lesser prices to other dealersdetraxisting competitive circumstances, for unusmal non-ordinary business circumstances,
or for limited duration promotional programs.

During December 2005, we and the Sea Ray Divisf Brunswick have entered into a revised ages@meplacing our previous agreen
to provide a process for our continued growth thfothe acquisition of additional Sea Ray boat dedleat desire to be acquired by us. The
agreement extends through June 2015. Under theragre, acquisitions of Sea Ray dealers will be ailytigreed upon by us and Sea Ray
with reasonable efforts to be made to include arixd of Sea Ray dealers that have been succesdfth@se that have not been. The
agreement provides that Sea Ray will not unreadpneéthhold its consent to any proposed acquisitibra Sea Ray dealer by us, subject to
the conditions set forth in the agreement. Amorigeothings, the agreement provides for us to peofida Ray with a business plan for each
proposed acquisition, including historical finad@ad fiveyear projected financial information regarding #tegjuisition candidate; marketil
and advertising plans; service capabilities andagarial and staff personnel; information regardheyability of candidate to achieve
performance standards within designated period$jrEormation regarding the success of our prevaguisitions of Sea Ray dealers. The
agreement also contemplates Sea Ray reaching afgittodetermination whether the acquisition wobiédin its best interest based on our
dedication and focus of resources on the Sea Radtand Sea Rayconsideration of any adverse effects that theosapwould have on th
resulting territory configuration and adjacent trey dealers sales and the absence of any violatiapplicable laws or rights granted by Sea
Ray to others.
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number Exhibit

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Regist, including all amendments to date

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrar

3.3 Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Rapiting Preferred Stock (

4.1 Specimen of Common Stock Certificate

4.2 (Rsi)ghts Agreement, dated August 28, 2001 betweersRagt and American Stock Transfer & Trust CompasyRights Agent

10.1(a) M()erger Agreement between Registrant and its adgqnssubsidiary and Bassett Boat Company of Floaidd Richard Bassett

10.1(b) Merger Agreement between Registrant and its adgprissubsidiary and 11502 Dumas, Inc. d/b/a LouwsdHdmme Marine and
its stockholders (1

10.1(c) Merger Agreement between Registrant and its adgqnssubsidiary and Gulfwind USA, Inc. and its dtbolders (1]

10.1(d) Merger Agreement between Registrant and its adgqnssubsidiary and Gulfwind South, Inc. and iscéholders (1

10.1(e) Merger Agreement between Registrant and its adgqrissubsidiary and Harris’'s Boat Center, Inc. and its stockholders

10.1(f) Merger Agreement between Registrant and its adgprissubsidiary and Harrison’s Marine Centers azéna, Inc. and its
stockholders (1

10.1(g) Merger Agreement between Registrant and its adgqnssubsidiary and Stovall Marine, Inc. and isckholders (1

10.1(h) Agreement of Merger and Plan of Reorganizationdlageof the 7th day of July, 1998 by and among hvliax, Inc., C & N
Acquisition Corp. (a subsidiary of MarineMax, Ind) & N Marine Corporation and the Stockholders edrtherein (2

10.1(i) Agreement of Merger and Plan of Reorganizationdlateof the 7th day of July, 1998 by and among idiax, Inc.,
Cochrans Acquisition Corp. (a subsidiary of Mariretylinc.), Cochrans Marine, Inc. and the Stockhsldemed therein (:

10.1()) Asset Purchase Agreement between Registrant argdne Cove Marina, Inc. (

10.2(a) Contribution Agreement between Registrant and BaBsat Company and its owner |

10.2(b) Contribution Agreement between Registrant and BaBsalty, L.L.C. and its owner (.

10.2(c) Contribution Agreement between Registrant and Gativsouth Realty, L.L.C. and its owners

10.2(d) Contribution Agreement between Registrant and Har's Realty, L.L.C. and its owners (

10.2(e) Contribution Agreement between Registrant and Har's Realty California, L.L.C. and its owners

10.3(e) Employment Agreement between Registrant and WilllniMcGill Jr. (9)

10.3(f) Employment Agreement between Registrant and MicHa&lcLamb (9)

10.3(g) Employment Agreement dated August 18, 2004 betiragistrant and Michael H. McLan

10.4 1998 Incentive Stock Plan, as amended through Nbeerb, 2000 (8

10.5 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

10.6 Settlement Agreement between Brunswick Corporadiwh Registrant (1

10.7 Letter of Intent between Registrant and Stovall
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10.8 Restated Agreement Relating to the Purchase ofrdisiax Common Stock between Registrant and Bruns@ariporation,
dated as of April 28, 1998 (.

10.9 Stockholders’ Agreement among Registrant, Brunswiokporation, and Senior Founders of Registrangdiapril 28, 1998
1)

10.10 Governance Agreement between Registrant and Brekf®rporation, dated April 28, 1998 (

10.11 Dealer Agreement dated December 7, 2005 betweeBdhdray Division of Brunswick Corporation and Maivax, Inc. (11

10.12 Agreement Relating to Acquisitions dated Decemh&@0D5 between the Sea Ray Division of Brunswickp@oation and the
Principal Operating Subsidiaries of MarineMax, I(il)

10.17 Credit and Security Agreement dated as of Decerb®eP001 among the Registrant and its subsidiaa®8orrowers, and
Banc of America Specialty Finance, Inc. and variotler lenders, as Lenders

10.17(a) Amendment No. 2 to Credit and Security Agreememedldanuary 30, 2004 among the Registrant andhisidiaries as
Borrowers, Keybank National Association, N.A., BasfkAmerica, N.A., and various other lenders, asders (10

10.18 Hatteras Sales and Service Agreement, dated J2QOB among the Registrant, MarineMax Motor Yachlts;, and Hatteras
Yachts Division of Brunswick Corporation (1

10.19 Dealer Agreement, effective September 30, 2003 gntiom Registrant, Ferretti Group USA, Inc., andtBen Yacht, Inc. (12

10.20 Amended and Restated Credit and Security Agreemerduted on February 15, 2005 effective as of Febr8, 2005 among
the Registrant and its subsidiaries as Borroweegbidnk National Association and Bank of AmericadNand various other
lenders as lenders (1

21 List of Subsidiarie:

231 Consent of Ernst & Young LL

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgatetéuthe Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amend

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgatettuthe Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amend

32.1 Certification pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, dgpéed pursuant to Section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 2002

(1) Incorporated by reference to Registration Stateroaritorm -1 (Registration 33-47873).

(2) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Current Report on Forn-K dated July 7, 1998, as filed on July 20, 1¢

(3) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form {-K Report dated September 30, 1998, as filed onligctd0, 1998

(4) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-K for the year ended September 30, 1998, as fieDecember 9, 199

(5) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1i-K for the year ended September 30, 1999, as fieDecember 29 199

(6) Incorporated by reference to Registration Stateraeritorm -A as filed on September 5, 20(

(7) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-K for the year ended September 30, 2001, as fieBDecember 20, 200

(8) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2881Tiled on February 14, 20C

(9) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 288%iled on February 14, 20C

(10) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2883iled on February 17, 20C

(11) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form {-K Report as filed on December 9, 20
(12) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1i-Q for the quarter period ended December 31, 200fleal on February 2, 200
(13) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form {-K Report dated February 15, 2005, as filed on Fatyr@3, 2005



Name Of Subsidiary

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES OF
MARINEMAX, INC.
(as of December 12, 2005)

Exhibit 21

State Of Incorporation
Or Organization

11502 Dumas, Inc

Bassett Boat Compatr

Bassett Realty, L.L.C

Boating Gear Center, In

C & N Marine Realty, L.L.C
Delaware Avlease, LL(

Dumas GP, Inc

Dumas GP, L.L.C. (1

Gulfwind South Realty, L.L.C
Harrisor's Realty California, L.L.C
Harrisor's Realty, L.L.C

Marina Drive Realty I, L.L.C
Marina Drive Realty Il, L.L.C
MarineMax International, LLC (G
MarineMax MidAtlantic, LP (2
MarineMax Motor Yachts, LLC (3
MarineMax New Jersey GP, Inc. (
MarineMax NJ Partners, Inc. (
MarineMax of Arizona, Inc
MarineMax of California, Inc
MarineMax of Central Florida, LLC (<
MarineMax of Colorado, Inc
MarineMax of Georgia, Inc
MarineMax of Las Vegas, In
MarineMax of Minnesota, In¢
MarineMax of New Jersey Holdings, Ir
MarineMax of North Carolina, Inc
MarineMax of Ohio, Inc

Nevadas
Florida
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Nevadas
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Arizona
California
Delaware
Delaware
Georgia
Delaware
Minnesota
Delaware
North Caroling
Delaware




Name Of Subsidiary

State Of Incorporation
Or Organization

MarineMax of Sarasota, LLC (.
MarineMax of Southeast Florida, LLC (
MarineMax of Southwest Florida, LLC (
MarineMax of Utah, Inc

MarineMax Services, Inc. (¢
MarineMax TX, L.P. (6

MarineMax U.S.A., Inc

MMX GP, LLC (7)

MMX Holdings, LLC (8)

MMX Interests, LLC (9)

MMX Member, Inc. (5)

MMX Partners, Inc

MMX Ventures, LP (10

Newcoast Financial Services, It
Walker Marina Realty, L.L.C

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)

Wholly owned subsidiary of 11502 Dumas, |

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Texas
Nevada
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

99% owned by MarineMax NJ Partners, Inc. as limgadner and 1% owned by MarineMax New Jersey 66, &s general partne

Wholly owned subsidiary of MMX Holdings, LL(

Wholly owned subsidiary of MarineMax of New Jers$#¢gidings, Inc.

Wholly owned subsidiary of MMX Partners, Ir

99% owned by 11502 Dumas, Inc. as limited partnér¥%6 owned by Dumas GP, L.L.C. as general par
99% owned by MMX Partners, Inc. and 1% owned by MMEmber, Inc

99% owned by MMX Interests, LLC and 1% owned by MN&R, LLC.

99% owned by MMX Ventures, LP and 1% owned by MMR,&LC.

(10) 99% owned by MMX Partners, Inc. as limited partaed 1% owned by MMX GP, LLC as general parti



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference infelewing Registration Statements:
1) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-83332) pertaining to the 1998 Incentive Stock RiaarineMax, Inc.,

2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-63307gpeng to the 1998 Incentive Stock Plan and th@81EBmployee Stock Purchase
Plan of MarineMax, Inc.

3) Registration Statement (Forn-3 No. 33:-122091) of MarineMax, Inc

of our reports dated December 8, 2005, with resfoettte consolidated financial statements of Maviag, Inc., MarineMax, Inc.
management’s assessment of the effectivenessephaitcontrol over financial reporting, and theeefiveness of internal control over
financial reporting of MarineMax, Inc., includedtime Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year endegt8mber 30, 2005.

/s ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Tampa, Florida,
December 8, 2005



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
[, William H. McGill Jr., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on F&f¥K of MarineMax, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateisy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat, and cash flows of the registrant as of, amdthe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officerdal are responsible for establishing and maintgjrdisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and phwes, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over finahoeéporting, or caused such internal control diremcial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeadtepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regigtsadisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andeguiures as of the end of the period covered kyrdéipiort based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change inrdgastrant’s internal control over financial repiogt that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fotdigbal quarter in the case of an annual repog) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officardal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiafuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and materia@daknesses in the design or operation of internarabover financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize, and refasancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatatves management or other employees who havendisaqt role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/WiLLiam H. McGILL, (R.

William H. McGill Jr.
Chief Executive Office

Date: December 12, 2005



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
[, Michael H. McLamb, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on F&f¥K of MarineMax, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateisy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat, and cash flows of the registrant as of, amdthe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officardal am responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and phares, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over finahoeéporting, or caused such internal control diremcial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeadtyepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regitsalisclosure controls and procedures and predéntthis report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andeguiures as of the end of the period covered kyrdipiort based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change inrdgastrant’s internal control over financial repiogt that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fotigbal quarter in the case of an annual repog) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officardal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiafuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and materia@¢aknesses in the design or operation of internmarabover financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize, and refisancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdatves management or other employees who havendisaqt role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ MicHAEL H. McLAwmB

Michael H. McLamb
Chief Financial Officel

Date: December 12, 2005



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on For@aKlLof MarineMayx, Inc. (the “Company”) for the yeanded September 30, 2005, as filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, William H. McGill JiChief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, to my best knowledge and bepefsuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursad&hp06 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremts of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiestaxge Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a)

or 780(d)); anc
(2) The information contained in the Reportlfapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the
Company
/s/WiLLiam H. McGILL Jr.
William H. McGill Jr.
Chief Executive Office

December 12, 2005



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on For@aKlLof MarineMayx, Inc. (the “Company”) for the yeanded September 30, 2005, as filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, Michael H. McLambhi€f Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, to my best knowledge and bepefsuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursad&hp06 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002, that:
(3) The Report fully complies with the requiremts of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiestaxge Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a)

or 780(d)); anc
The information contained in the Reportljapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the

(4)
Company
/s/ MicHAEL H. McLAwmB
Michael H. McLamb
Chief Financial Officel

December 12, 2005

End of Filing
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